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DEFINITIONS

In this annual report, unless otherwise required by the context, the following terms shall have the meanings set out

below.

“Annual General Meeting” or
“AGM”

“Audit Committee”
“Board”

“China IC Fund”

“China IC Fund II”

“China” or “the PRC”

“Company” or “our Company”

“Company Secretary”
“Director(s)”

“EPS”

“Executive Director(s)”

“Extraordinary General Meeting”
or "EGM”

“GDP”

an annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 11 May 2023;

the audit committee of the Board;
the Board of Directors of the Company;

China Integrated Circuit Industry Investment Fund Co., Ltd.* (BZREK BREER
BESBHABRAR]), a company incorporated in the PRC on 26 September 2014;
its shareholders include the Ministry of Finance, the enterprises in the Integrated
Circuit Industry Cluster, large-scale state-owned enterprises, certain financial
institutions and private enterprises. It mainly focuses on the manufacturing of
semiconductor wafers and takes into account the upstream and downstream links
covering chip design, package test, equipment and materials etc;

China Integrated Circuit Industry Investment Fund (Phase Il) Co., Ltd.* (BIZK&K
BEREXNEES _HBRMAMR AR, a company established in the PRC on 22
October 2019; its shareholders include the Ministry of Finance, the enterprises in
the Integrated Circuit Industry Cluster, large-scale state-owned enterprises, certain
financial institutions and private enterprises. It mainly invests in the value chain
of integrated circuit industry via equity investment, primarily in integrated circuit
chip manufacturing as well as chip designing, packaging test and equipment and
materials. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief and having
made all reasonable enquiry, China IC Fund Il is not an associate of China IC Fund
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules;

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this annual report and for
geographical reference only and except where otherwise required by the context,
references in this annual report to “China” and the “PRC” do not include Taiwan, the
Macau Special Administrative Region and Hong Kong;

Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability on 21 January 2005 and, except where otherwise required by the
context, all of its subsidiaries, or its present subsidiaries where the context refers to
the time before it became the holding company of its present subsidiaries;

the Company Secretary of the Company;

the Director(s) of the Company;

earnings per share;

the Executive Director(s) of our Company;

an extraordinary general meeting of the Company;

gross domestic product;
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DEFINITIONS

“Grace Cayman” Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation, an exempted company with
limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 October 1999 and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company;

“Grace Shanghai” Shanghai Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation (/87 738 88%EHR
[R2 7)), a company incorporated in the PRC on 20 December 2000 and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company. It was deregistered on 3 August 2018;

“Group” our Company and our subsidiaries or, where required by the context, with respect
to the period before our Company became the holding company of our present
subsidiaries (or became such associated companies of our Company), the business
operated by such subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be);

“HHGrace” Shanghai Huahong Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation (_E/8ZE4T 77 7
sl AR /A F)), a company incorporated in the PRC on 24 January 2013 and
a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company;

“HHNEC” Shanghai Hua Hong NEC Electronics Co., Ltd. (E/SZEWINECEFHBR AR, a
company incorporated in the PRC on 17 July 1997 and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of our Company. It was deregistered on 3 August 2018;

“HKS$” Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong;

“Hongri” Shanghai Huahong Hongri Electronics Co., Ltd. (E/BZE M4 B E F AR 2 7)),
previously known as Shanghai Hongri International Electronics Co., Ltd. until 16
December 2021, a company owned as to 51% by Huahong Group and a connected
person of the Company;

“Hong Kong” the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC;
“Huahong Group” Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. (E/B %4 (& E ) R A7), a company

incorporated in the PRC on 9 April 1996 as Shanghai Hua Hong Microelectronics
Co., Ltd. and renamed as Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. in 1998, and a
significant shareholder of our Company;

“Huahong Group Framework the framework agreement dated 31 December 2021 entered into between the
Agreement” Company and Huahong Group to regulate the sales and purchase transactions and
provision of services between the Group and Huahong Group, its subsidiaries or
associates (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) for the year ending

31 December 2022;

“Huahong Real Estate” Shanghai Huahong Real Estate Co., Ltd. (E/8ZFE L E X ABR A A, a company
incorporated in the PRC on 28 October 2011 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Huahong Technology Development;

“Huahong Technology Shanghai Huahong Technology Development Co., Limited (/8RR AR A
Development” Al), a connected person, a company incorporated in the PRC on 10 May 2010, and

a company 50% held by and consolidated with Huahong Group and 50% held by
HHGrace;
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DEFINITIONS

“Huajin Property Management”

“Huali Integrated”

“Hua Hong Wuxi”

“ICRD”

“Independent Non-Executive
Director(s)”

“INESA”

“Jitong”

“Listing Rules”

“Nomination Committee”
“Non-Executive Director(s)”

“QST”

“Remuneration Committee”

Shanghai Huajin Property Management Co., Ltd. (L/8EEWEERBRAG), a
company incorporated in the PRC on 8 June 2012, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Huahong Technology Development and a connected person of the Company;

Shanghai Huali Integrated Circuit Corporation (_E/&%E HERK EKREEE R A R)),
a company incorporated in the PRC on 8 August 2016. Its Shareholders include
Shanghai Huali Microelectronics Corporation, Shanghai Integrated Circuit Industry
Investment Fund Co., Ltd. and China Integrated Circuit Industry Investment Fund
Co., Ltd.;

Hua Hong Semiconductor (Wuxi) Limited, a company incorporated in the PRC
on 10 October 2017 and held 51% by the Group. Upon completion of the Capital
Injection Agreement, the registered capital of Hua Hong Wuxi shall increase from
US$1,800 million to approximately US$2,536.85 million and Hua Hong Wuxi remains
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company held as to approximately 22.22%,
28.78%, 20.00%, 20.58% and 8.42% by the Company, HHGrace, Wuxi Xi Hong Lian
Xin, China IC Fund and China IC Fund Il, respectively;

Shanghai Integrated Circuit Research and Development Center (/85K E K
LB RAT]), a company incorporated in the PRC in 2002 and a connected
person of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022;

the Independent Non-Executive Director(s) of our Company;

INESA (Group) Co., Ltd. (E/BEE (£ B ) BRAQF]), formerly known as INESA
Holding Group (£ /8 & & & & (% &) & R 2 &), a state-owned company
incorporated in the PRC in December 1993, and a controlling shareholder of our
Company prior to 17 December 2020;

Jitong is owned by Huahong Group as to 25.14%. To the best of the Director’s
knowledge, information and belief, Huahong Group has the right to appoint four
out of seven directors at the board of Jitong and thus controls the majority of
Jitong’s board composition. Hence, Jitong is an associate of Huahong Group and is
therefore a connected person of the Company;

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, as amended or supplemented from time to time;

the nomination committee of the Board;

the Non-Executive Director(s) of our Company;

QST Corporation (_E/EWERHEERAF]), a company incorporated in the PRC on
13 September 2012 and a connected person of the Company until 1 September

2020;

the remuneration committee of the Board;
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“RMB”

“SAIL”

“SFC”

“SFO”

“Shanghai Awinic”

“Shanghai Huali”

“Shareholders”

“SITRI”

“Stock Exchange”

“Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin”

* For identification purpose only

DEFINITIONS

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC;

Shanghai Alliance Investment Limited (- /8 B F1 & & & R 2 7)), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 26 September 1994, a substantial shareholder of our
Company;

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong;

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time;

Shanghai Awinic Technology Co., Ltd. (B8 &E FHIlTRMHBRR2AF]), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 18 June 2008 whose shares are listed on the STAR
Market of the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 688798);

Shanghai Huali Microelectronics Corporation (/8% & FHA R A 7)), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 18 January 2010 and a connected person;

holders of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company;

Shanghai Industrial pTechnology Research Institute (/&FEAZEF LBRA
7)), a company incorporated in the PRC in May 2013 and a connected person of
the Company;

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited; and
Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin Investment Co., Ltd.* (5 HITH S EEGR 2 R), a

professional investment company incorporated in the PRC on 19 December 2017,
jointly established by municipal and district-level state-owned enterprises.
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KEY FINANCIALS
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Shareholders,

In 2022, an extraordinary and challenging year, almost all the world’s economies were affected by the continuous
resurgence of the once-in-a-century pandemic, reshaping of the global industry supply chain, and geopolitical
challenges. The semiconductor industry also entered a period of adjustment. Despite many uncertainties in the macro
environment, Hua Hong Semiconductor continued to forge ahead and made continuous improvement in 2022, with its
growth leading the industry. With the advantages of our “8-inch + 12-inch” strategy, the Company stayed committed
to continuous innovation of specialized process technologies and developed core competitiveness of products using
our specialized process platforms, including embedded/standalone non-volatile memory, power device, and analog
& PM. We persisted in our advanced “Specialty IC + Power Discrete” dual-pronged strategy, rapidly penetrated
downstream emerging markets, expanded our markets in automobiles, new energy, Internet of Things, data centers,
etc., continuously providing excellent wafer foundry services and solutions for our global customers.

During the reporting period, the Company'’s revenue hit a record high of US$2,475.5 million, representing an increase
of 51.8% compared to the previous year, and regional revenues from the United States, Europe, Japan, and China
increased significantly. In 2022, we experienced strong demand in our market segments. The Company achieved a
year-on-year increase of more than 100% in annual revenue from automotive electronics and a continual increase in
the number of new products introduced. Meanwhile, the Company made steady progress in the new energy market
and played a significant role in supporting the global industry chain in the wind power/photoelectricity/energy storage
field. Diversified process platforms, abundant customer resources at home and abroad, and a forward-looking and
dedicated capacity arrangement enabled Hua Hong Semiconductor to maintain leading capacity utilization rate in
the industry, despite the downward cycle of the industry. In the year, the overall gross profit margin of the Company
reached 34.1%, representing an increase of 6.4 percentage points compared to the previous year. Profit for the
year was US$406.6 million, representing an increase of 76.0% compared to the previous year; ROE was 15.2%,
representing an increase of 5.5 percentage points compared to the previous year.

As at the end of 2022, Hua Hong Semiconductor had three 8-inch fabs and one 12-inch fab. For the most recent three
years, annual production capacity (8-inch wafer equivalent) increased each year from 2.4852 million to 3.2604 million
and then 3.8627 million, with a CAGR of 24.67%. The existing 12-inch fab was operated at a high level with a monthly
production capacity of 65,000 wafers in 2022. The Company plans to increase its monthly production capacity to
95,000 wafers in 2023 and will start construction of a new 12-inch production line in due course, continuing to improve
its manufacturing capacity and technological upgrading.

As a key part of the global semiconductor industry supply chain, the Company has markets covering the whole
industry, with its strong industry presence. With robust strength in semiconductor manufacturing in China, the Company
won the “20-year Special Contribution Award in China Semiconductor in 2022 China IC Design Achievement Award.”
As a well-known enterprise in Shanghai, the Company worked judiciously in cities to promote regional economic
development in the Yangtze River Delta. Its contribution was recognized by all corners of society. In the year, it won the
“Outstanding Contribution Award for Scientific and Technological Innovation in Pudong New Area” again.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Only with diligent employees will we be able to achieve success in the face of more complicated and fierce
competition. We will continue to strengthen our advantages in various specialized technologies, constantly optimize
product structure in close alignment with market trends, and accumulate new momentum for high-quality development.
New opportunities will be identified from challenges and new prospects will be opened up in a changing environment.
Hua Hong Semiconductor will unswervingly innovate with international vision to create new products for our customers
all over the world and make achievements by establishing development projects in new areas of technology. We
sincerely thank all our employees, shareholders, customers, and friends from all walks of life for their support for and
cooperation with Hua Hong Semiconductor. Let's work together to achieve another year of splendid results.

Mr. Suxin Zhang
Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Junjun Tang
President and Executive Director

Shanghai, PRC
30 March 2023

SOWING HOPE,
HARVESTING DREAMS.

This cherry blossom tree was planted by Suxin
Zhang, our Chairman, and Junjun Tang,

our President, along with the management
members at Hua Hong fab on 12 March 2020
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Corporate Culture

Vision

We empower our
customers through
continuous innovation
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Creating value for shareholders,
customers and employees through

collaboration, innovation and being
a good corporate citizen
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Spirit
Disruptive Innovation,
Confidence, Initiative and

Teamwork
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Executive Directors
Suxin Zhang (Chairman)
Junjun Tang (President)

Non-Executive Directors
Guodong Sun

Jing Wang

Jun Ye

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Stephen Tso Tung Chang

Kwai Huen Wong, JP

Long Fei Ye

Company Secretary
Sui Har Lee

Authorized Representatives
Junjun Tang
Sui Har Lee

Audit Committee

Stephen Tso Tung Chang (Chairman)
Long Fei Ye

Jun Ye

Remuneration Committee

Kwai Huen Wong, JP (Chairman)
Long Fei Ye

Jing Wang

Nomination Committee
Suxin Zhang (Chairman)
Kwai Huen Wong, JP
Long Fei Ye

Website

www.huahonggrace.com

Auditor

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Legal Advisor

Herbert Smith Freehills
23/F, Gloucester Tower
15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Principal Banks

China Construction Bank Shanghai Branch
No. 900, Lujiazui Ring Road

Pudong New Area

Shanghai, PRC

China Development Bank Shanghai Branch
No. 68, Puming Road
Shanghai, PRC

China Construction Bank Corporation Hong Kong Branch
28/F, CCB Tower, 3 Connaught Road, Central
Hong Kong

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
20 Pedder Street, Central
Hong Kong

China Development Bank Jiangsu Branch
No. 232, Middle Jiangdong Road
Nanijing, Jiangsu, PRC

Agricultural Bank of China Wuxi Xinwu Subbranch
No. 26, Hefeng Road

Xinwu District

Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC

China Construction Bank Wuxi High and

New Technology Industrial Development Zone
Subbranch

No. 26, Hefeng Road

Xinwu District

Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC

China CITIC Bank Wuxi New District Subbranch
No. 26, Hefeng Road

Xinwu District

Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC

Bank of China Wuxi High and New Technology Industrial
Development Zone Subbranch

No. 140, Wangzhuang Road

Xinwu District

Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC
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Share Registrar

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Registered Office

Room 2212, Bank of America Tower
12 Harcourt Road, Central
Hong Kong

Principal Places of Business

288 Halei Road
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park
Shanghai, PRC
Postcode: 201203

No. 30, Xinzhou Road
Xinwu District

Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC
Postcode: 214028

Stock Code

1347

CORPORATE INFORMATION



12 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED ZE4[-: & AR AT » 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FZ &

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Suxin Zhang, aged 59, was appointed on 11 March 2016 as the
Chairman and an Executive Director of our Company as well as a member
of and Chairman of the Nomination Committee. He is currently Chairman
and Secretary of the Communist Party of Huahong Group, Chairman of
HHGrace and Hua Hong Wuxi, Chairman of Shanghai Huali, and Director
of Huali Integrated. Mr. Zhang has extensive experience in hi-tech strategic
development, energy strategy research, and the power equipment industry.
Mr. Zhang held various positions, including President of Shanghai Turbine
Co., Ltd., Executive Vice President of Shanghai Electric Power Generation
Group, Chairman of Siemens Gas Turbine Parts Co., Ltd., Executive Director
of Shanghai Electric Group Company Limited, Vice President of Shanghai
Electric (Group) Corporation, Secretary of the Communist Party and General
Manager of Shanghai Jingiao (Holdings) Limited, Chairman and Secretary
of the Communist Party of Shanghai Jingiao Export Processing Zone
Development Co., Ltd., and Deputy Director of both the Shanghai Municipal
Development and Reform Commission and the Administration Commission
of Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Industrial Development Zone. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Tsinghua University with a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering
and is a professor-level Senior Engineer.

Mr. Junjun Tang, aged 58, has served as the President and Executive
Director of the Company since May 2019. Mr. Tang also serves as President
and Director of HHGrace and Hua Hong Wuxi. Mr. Tang has extensive
experience in the integrated circuit industry and management and possesses
strong coordination and execution ability. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Tang was the Secretary of the Party Committee, Vice President and Executive
Vice President of Shanghai Huali from February 2010 to March 2019. He was
concurrently the President of Huali Integrated from August 2016 to March
2019. During the period from July 2008 to February 2010, Mr. Tang was
the Vice Secretary of the Party Committee, President of Trade Union and
head of administrative and government relationships of HHNEC. Each of
Shanghai Huali and Huali Integrated is a connected person of the Company
as defined by the Listing Rules, and HHNEC was a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company prior to its deregistration in August 2018. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Tang successively held various positions, including Associate
Chief Officer of Shanghai Bureau of Instrument and Telecommunications
Industry (/8 EREMNTESR), Technologist of Shanghai Radio No.17 Factory
(B/FEZFE+ /) and Technologist of Shanghai Semiconductor Device No.4
Factory (/842 22(FDUER). Mr. Tang graduated from Southwest Jiaotong
University with an Undergraduate’s degree in Business Administration. He
also graduated from China Europe International Business School with a
Master’'s degree in Business Administration. He holds the title of Chief Senior
Economist, and was awarded titles including National May 1st Labor Medal,
National Model Worker, National Outstanding Party Affairs Worker.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Guodong Sun, aged 46, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of
the Company with effect from 10 December 2020, and is a Director of Hua
Hong Wuxi. Mr. Sun joined China Development Bank in 2000. From 2000 to
2014, Mr. Sun held various positions in China Development Bank, including
Deputy Director of the Human Resources Systems Division, Deputy Director
and Director of the Hubei Branch Human Resources Department, and Vice
Minister and Minister of the Party Committee Organization Department. Mr.
Sun had been the General Manager of the Human Resources Department of
Sino-IC Capital Co., Ltd. (FELIREERHREFAF]) from December 2014 to
July 2016, and has been the Managing Director of Sino-IC Capital Co., Ltd.
since July 2016. Mr. Sun graduated from Beijing Institute of Technology in
the PRC with a Bachelor’'s degree in Computer Application and from Central
University of Finance and Economics in the PRC with a Master's degree in
Business Administration.

Ms. Jing Wang, aged 52, has been a Non-Executive Director of our Company
since June 2019. She currently serves as President, Deputy Secretary of the
Communist Party Committee and Director of Huahong Group, a Director of
HHGrace and Hua Hong Wuxi, Chairman of Hongri, Executive Director of
Shanghai Huahong Investment Development Co., Ltd., and Director of Hua
Hong International. Ms. Wang has extensive experience in management and
economic development. Ms. Wang was the Division Director of the Industrial
Development Division (Service Industry Development Division) of Shanghai
Municipal Development and Reform Commission, Deputy Director of China
(Shanghai) Free Trade Zone Management Committee (B ( b8 ) BE@EE
SABEBEZE), the Deputy District Head of Shanghai Pudong New Area,
a full-time Deputy Director at Shanghai Science and Technology Innovation
Centre Development Office (L/8HE#ERHL A LERZIMAZE) and Deputy
Director of Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-tech Industrial Development Zone
Management Committee (LMK TIRHBEMEEXMREREZT), etc. Ms.
Wang graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a Bachelor’s degree
in Technical Economics in 1992. She also graduated from Fudan University
with a Master’'s degree in World Economics in 2003. She holds the title of
Chief Senior Economist.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Jun Ye, aged 50, has been a Non-Executive Director of our Company
since February 2012, and is a Director of HHGrace. Mr. Ye has more than
20 years of experience in finance and investment. Mr. Ye has successively
held various positions in SAIL, including Manager of the Investment Banking
Division and the Business Development Division, General Manager Assistant
and Deputy General Manager since 1996 and General Manager since May
2018. Mr. Ye is also a Director at Bank of Shanghai, Chairman of Shanghai
Zhaoxin Semiconductor Ltd., Sino Therapeutics Inc. and Sino-US United
MetLife Insurance Company Limited. Mr. Ye obtained a Bachelor’'s degree
in Industrial and International Trade and a Master's degree in Business
Administration from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.

Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang, aged 74, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of our Company and a Director of HHGrace. Mr. Chang has extensive
experience in accounting, auditing and financial management. He was a
certified public accountant in Hong Kong and a member of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants from 1978 to the end of 2003. Mr. Chang is also a
Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales since January 1983, and he held various positions at Ernst & Young
starting in 1976. He became a Management Committee Member of Ernst &
Young in 1989 and was actively involved in establishing and monitoring the
firm’s internal control and risk management policy and procedures. Prior to
his promotion to Managing Partner of the Professional Services Department,
he was Chairman of Ernst and Young’s audit and advisory business services
for four years. He was a Partner of Ernst and Young and the Chairman of
Ernst and Young China and Hong Kong prior to his retirement in 2003. He is a
member of the Investment Committee of Shanghai Fudan University Education
Development Foundation and Fudan University Education Development
Foundation (overseas). He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director
of China World Trade Center Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600007.SH), and was
formerly an Independent Non-Executive Director of China Cinda Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1359.HK), Kerry Properties Limited (stock
code: 683.HK) and China Life Insurance Company Ltd. (stock code: 2628.
HK). Mr. Chang obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Food Science and
Chemistry from the University of London.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, SBS, BBS, JP, aged 71, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director of our Company and a Director of HHGrace. Mr. Wong
had served as the PRC Managing Partner of two international law firms for
15 years. Prior to that, he worked for the Lands Department, Department of
Justice and Legislative Council of the Hong Kong SAR Government for a total
of 10 years. He was appointed as a Member of Airport Authority Hong Kong,
Hospital Authority, and the Competition Commission from 2011 to 2018. He
was the former Chairman of the Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre,
the former President of the Law Society of Hong Kong and Inter-Pacific Bar
Association, and the former Chairman of Hong Kong Copyright Tribunal. He
is presently the Chairman of Hong Kong Inland Revenue Board of Review,
and the Independent Non-Executive Director of Vinda International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 3331.HK) and NWS Holdings Limited (stock code:
659.HK). Mr. Kwai Huen Wong was formerly a Director of the Hong Kong
Mortgage Corporation Limited and an Independent Non-Executive Director
of China Qilfield Services Limited. In addition, he is the Honorary Lecturer,
External Examiner, and Professor at The University of Hong Kong, The
Chinese University of Hong Kong, City University of Hong Kong, and Hong
Kong Shue Yan University. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor of Law degree from the
University of London.

Mr. Long Fei Ye, aged 81, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of our
Company and a Director of HHGrace. Mr. Ye held various positions in the
Shanghai Municipal Government. Mr. Ye relocated to Hong Kong in 1991 and
served until 1995 as the Chief Executive of the “Shanghai Desk”, which was
a cooperation arrangement between the Shanghai government and Arthur
Andersen & Co. for promoting Shanghai. He then joined Kerry Holdings
Limited in 1995, and served as the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of
Shangri-La Asia Limited from October 2000 to August 2003 and August 2003
to March 2007, respectively. He was an advisor to Shangri-La Asia Limited
from March 2007 to February 2018. Mr. Ye obtained a Bachelor's and a
Master’s degree, both in Physics, from Fudan University.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang, aged 60, has been appointed as the Secretary of
the Board of the Company since February 2012. Mr. Wang is also an Executive
Vice President of our Company, HHGrace, and Hua Hong Wuxi, overseeing
finance, information technology, administration and compliance, listed
company affairs, and overseas human resources. He joined Grace Shanghai
in April 2001 and played a central leadership role in each stage of Grace
Shanghai’s development including the preparation for and implementation of
the merger and the successful initial public offering of the Company. Prior to
joining Grace Shanghai, Mr. Wang worked at LS| Logic Corporation in San
Jose, Silicon Valley, California from August 1995 to March 2001 as the Division
Controller in the Broadband Entertainment Division. Before joining LS| Logic
Corporation, Mr. Wang was employed by Franklin Templeton Investments in
the U.S. Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering and
Operations Research from the College of Engineering, University of California,
Berkeley, in the U.S. and a Master of Business Administration degree in
Finance and Banking from the University of San Francisco. In the list of “All-
Asia (Ex-dapan) Executive Team Ranking” published by Institutional Investor,
an authoritative international financial magazine, he was named the “Best
Chief Financial Officer” in the technology/semiconductor industry in 2018,
2019 and 2021.

Senior Management
As at the date of this report, the Company’s senior management includes:

Mr. Suxin Zhang, aged 59, is the Chairman and an Executive Director of
our Company. For more information about Mr. Zhang'’s profile and academic
background, see the section headed "“Directors and Senior Management
Team — Board of Directors”.

Mr. Junjun Tang, aged 58, is the President and Executive Director of the
Company. For more information about Mr. Tang’s profile and academic
background, see the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Team — Board of Directors”.

Mr. Heng Fan, aged 61, was an Executive Vice President of our Company
from the end of 2014 to March 2022, and then acted as an advisor to our
Company until his retirement in July 2022.
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Mr. Weiping Zhou, aged 56, is an Executive Vice President of our Company,
HHGrace, and Hua Hong Wuxi, responsible for marketing. Mr. Zhou joined
the Company at the beginning of 2018. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Zhou was the Executive Vice President of Shanghai Belling Corporation
Limited, the General Manager of Ningbo Shanshan Ulica Solar Technology
Developing Company Limited, the General Manager of Shanghai Belling
Microelectronics Manufacturing Company Limited, the Deputy Secretary
to the Communist Party Committee, President, Chief Executive Officer,
Secretary to the Communist Party Committee and Vice President of Advanced
Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation Limited. Mr. Zhou graduated
from East China Normal University with a Bachelor's degree in Solid State
Electronic Technology and subsequently obtained a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from Fudan University, and he is a professor-level
Senior Engineer.

Mr. Lihua Ni, aged 54, is an Executive Vice President of our Company,
HHGrace, and Hua Hong Wuxi, responsible for manufacturing projects
and security management, and is the Factory Director of Fab 7. He joined
HHGrace in May 2018. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Lihua Ni successively
worked for Wuxi Huajing Group Co., Ltd. (52 &EE A F]), Shanghai Hua
Hong Microelectronics Co., Ltd., HHNEC, acted as a Department Manager
at Shanghai Xinjin Semiconductor Fabrication Co., Ltd., the department head
at HHNEC, and a Deputy Factory Director at Shanghai Huali. Mr. Lihua Ni
graduated from Xidian University with a Bachelor of Engineering degree and
obtained a Master of Engineering degree from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.
He is qualified as a Senior Engineer.

Mr. Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang, aged 60, is an Executive Vice President of our
Company, HHGrace, and Hua Hong Wuxi, overseeing finance, information
technology, administration and compliance, listed company affairs, and
overseas human resources. For more information about Mr. Wang’s profile
and academic background, see the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Team — Board of Directors”.
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Dr. Weiran Kong, aged 59, is an Executive Vice President of our Company,
HHGrace, and Hua Hong Wuxi, and is in charge of technology development
and design services. He joined Grace Shanghai in March 2003 and has
over 30 years’ experience in the semiconductor industry, with a proven track
record of driving innovations in the area of NOR Flash, Logic, and embedded
Flash. Before joining Grace Shanghai, Dr. Kong was based in the U.S. and
has worked for Sun Microsystems, Inc., LS| Logic Corporation, and ISSI. He
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Physics from Nankai University in Tianjin and
graduated with a Master’s degree in Electrical Engineering and a Doctorate
degree in Applied Physics from Oregon Graduate Institute of Science &
Technology in the U.S. Dr. Kong holds 27 U.S. patents, 67 PRC patents and
co-authored over 20 technical papers.

Company Secretary

Ms. Sui Har Lee, aged 45, has been serving as the Company Secretary of
the Company since November 2019. Ms. Lee is currently a Partner of Jun
He Law Offices. She has around 15 years of experience in general business
practices and corporate financial transactions, such as assisting corporations
in listing their shares on the Stock Exchange, merger and acquisitions, capital
reorganization, and compliance and regulatory matters in relation to the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Lee was admitted as a Solicitor of
the High Court of Hong Kong in 2005. Ms. Lee graduated from City University
of Hong Kong with the degree of Bachelor of Laws and obtained the degree
of Master of Laws from University College London.
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company diligently practices good corporate governance and has established corporate governance procedures
that comply with the principles in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules.

The Company understands the importance of sound corporate governance practices and recognizes the changing
regulatory environment. Therefore, the Company has continually monitored and updated its corporate governance
practices, from implementing the Code and evaluating the effectiveness of its practices to responding to continuous
developments in the regulatory landscape.

Compliance with the Code Provisions

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company complied with the Code.

Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries with all of the Directors, each of whom has confirmed that they
have, throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, complied with the required standards set out therein.

Board of Directors

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of managing the business and affairs of the Company. It has
the ultimate responsibility for the day-to-day management of the Company, which is delegated to the Chairman and
management.

The eight-member Board currently comprises two Executive Directors, Mr. Suxin Zhang (Chairman) and Mr. Junjun
Tang (President); three Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Jun Ye, Ms. Jing Wang and Mr. Guodong Sun; and three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang, Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP, and Mr. Long Fei Ye.
More details of the Directors are disclosed on pages 12 to 16 of this annual report. The Company publishes and
maintains on its website and on the Stock Exchange website an updated list of the Directors, identifying their roles and
functions.

Each of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term of three years and is subject to
re-nomination and re-election by the Company in general meetings, unless previously terminated in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the relevant letter of appointment or Director’s service contract.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year. All Directors are given the opportunity to put items on the agenda for
regular Board meetings. All Directors have access to the Company Secretary to ensure that all Board procedures, rules
and regulations are followed. Full minutes of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are available for
inspection on reasonable notice. Any Director may, in furtherance of his duties, take independent professional advice,
where necessary, at the expense of the Company.
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The Board is responsible for setting the strategic direction and policies of the Group and supervising management.
Some functions are reserved by the Board, including, inter alia, the monitoring and approval of material transactions;
matters involving a conflict of interest with a substantial shareholder or a Director of the Company; the approval of
the quarterly, interim and final results; other disclosures to the public or regulators; and the internal control system.
Decisions relating to such matters shall be subject to formal decisions of the Board. Matters not specifically reserved to
the Board and necessary for the daily operations of the Company are delegated to management under the supervision
of the respective Director(s) and the leadership of the Chairman.

The Company has implemented different mechanisms to ensure independent views and input are available to the
Board:

e  Composition of the Board: During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board had at all times complied
with Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Company has three Independent Non-Executive Directors,
representing more than one-third of the Board. At least one of the Independent Non-Executive Directors
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

° Independence assessment: Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has made an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent Non-
Executive Directors are independent in accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

e Board decision-making: A Director who has a material interest in any transaction, contract or arrangement
shall not vote (nor shall be counted in the quorum) on any Board resolution approving the same. If a substantial
shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, such matter shall be dealt with in a Board meeting rather than by a written resolution.

e  Communication between the Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Directors: The Chairman of the
Board values communication with the Independent Non-Executive Directors highly and holds meetings with them
at least once each year without the presence of other Directors.

e Remuneration of Independent Non-Executive Directors: Independent Non-executive Directors receive
fixed fees for their role as members of the Board and Board committees. No equity-based compensation with
performance-related elements is granted to the Independent Non-executive Directors to avoid potential bias in
their decision-making or compromise to their objectivity and independence.

e Board evaluation: The Board assesses and reviews the time contributed by each Independent Non-Executive
Director and their attendance at Board and Board committee meetings, so as to ensure that every Independent
Non-Executive Director has devoted sufficient time to the Board to discharge his responsibilities as a Director of
the Company.

The implementation and effectiveness of the above mechanisms are reviewed on an annual basis. The Board considers
that such mechanisms had been implemented properly and effectively in the year ended 31 December 2022.

The roles of the Chairman and the President are separate. The Chairman is responsible for the overall management
and operations of the Company and for proposing and reviewing the corporate directions and strategies of the
Company. The Chairman is responsible for formulating business strategies and provides leadership to the Board,
ensuring effective running of the Board, including that all appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely manner. The Chairman ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings
and all Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information. The Chairman of the Board highly values
communication with the Independent Non-Executive Directors and will hold meetings with them at least once each
year without the presence of other Directors.
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The President is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Company’s business and operations as well as
implementation of the Company’s business strategies.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

Appropriate insurance has been arranged by the Company to cover potential liabilities of Directors and Officers of the
Company regarding legal actions against said Directors and Officers of the Company and its subsidiaries, arising out
of corporate activities of the Company.

Board Operation

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board held five Board meetings. The attendance record of each Board
member at Board meetings, meetings of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, and the Remuneration
Committee, as well as the annual/extraordinary general meeting is set out below:

Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual Extraordinary
Board Committee Committee Committee General General
meetings meetings meetings meetings Meeting Meeting
Executive Directors
Suxin Zhang 6 N/A 1 N/A 1 1
Junjun Tang 7 N/A N/A N/A 1 2
Non-Executive Directors
Jun Ye giNere) 4 N/A N/A 0 0
Jing Wang 7 N/A N/A 1 1 1
Guodong Sun 7 N/A N/A N/A 0 0
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Stephen Tso Tung Chang 7 5 N/A N/A 1 2
Kwai Huen Wong, JP 7 N/A 1 1 1 2
Long Fei Ye 7 5 1 1 1 2

Note: Suxin Zhang attended the Board meeting on 10 November 2022 as an alternate Director of Jun Ye.

In place of physical meetings, the Board may circulate written resolutions for approval by the relevant members of the
Board except for matters where a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest that the Board has
determined to be material, in which case the matter shall be dealt with by a physical Board meeting (rather than a
written resolution) to comply with provision C.5.7 of the Code.

The Board, having considered the attendance records of the Directors, is satisfied that each Director spends sufficient
time performing his responsibilities.
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Continuous Professional Development

Directors shall keep abreast of their responsibilities as Directors and of the conduct, business activities, and
development of the Company.

Under Code Provision C.1.4, the Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development
programs to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. During the year ended 31 December 2022, all Directors were provided with timely updates
on the Company’s performance, financial position, prospects, and materials on new or salient changes to laws and
regulations applicable to the Group, to enable the Board as a whole and each Director individually to discharge their
duties. Internally-facilitated briefings for the Directors will be arranged in the next financial year and reading material
on relevant topics will be issued to the Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expense.

The participation by each Director in continuous professional development for the year ended 31 December 2022 is
set out below:

Reading related rules and
materials and/or
Name of Director attending training courses

Suxin Zhang (Chairman)
Junjun Tang (President)
Jun Ye

Jing Wang

Guodong Sun

Stephen Tso Tung Chang
Kwai Huen Wong, JP
Long Fei Ye

AN NN TN

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one Non-Executive Director, Ms. Jing Wang, and two Independent
Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP and Mr. Long Fei Ye. The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
is Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP. Each member is sufficiently experienced and is appropriately skilled in the issues of
determining Executive compensation in public companies. The Board expects committee members to exercise
independent judgement in conducting the business of the committee. The roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee include the determination of the specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights, and compensation payments, and making recommendations
to the Board in connection with the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee should
consider factors such as the salaries paid by comparable companies, employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group, and the desirability of performance-based remuneration. A copy of the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available from the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website. The Remuneration Committee
shall meet at least once a year.

On 11 August 2022, the Remuneration Committee held a meeting to discuss the vesting of certain options granted
under the Company’s share option scheme, and resolved to submit a proposal to the Board on the vesting

arrangements for such options.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note 8 to the Financial Statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises one Executive Director, Mr. Suxin Zhang, and two Independent Non-
Executive Directors, Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP and Mr. Long Fei Ye. The Chairman of the Nomination Committee is
Mr. Suxin Zhang. Each member is sufficiently experienced and is appropriately skilled in the issues of nomination of
directors to the Board. The Company has provided the Nomination Committee with sufficient resources to perform
its duties. The Nomination Committee may seek independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to
perform its responsibilities. The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board, make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy, with due regard to the board diversity policy, identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members, select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships, assess the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors, and make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman and the President, and monitor the implementation of the board diversity policy and review such policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee has established a specific written committee
charter which deals clearly with its authority and duties. A copy of the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
is available from the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website. The Nomination Committee shall meet at
least once a year.

On 10 November 2022, the Remuneration Committee held a meeting with the Nomination Committee and discussed
issues such as the Company’s remuneration policy and the competitiveness of the Company'’s salary levels.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”), any person appointed as a Director to fill a
casual vacancy of the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election at the relevant general meeting, and any Director appointed as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election at the relevant general meeting. Every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and shall be eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles. The Articles also allow for removal of a
Director by an ordinary resolution.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration paid and payable to the auditors of the Company, Ernst
& Young, for the provision of audit services and non-audit related services to the Company were US$1.40 million
and US$0.05 million, respectively. Details of significant non-audit related services include tax and risk management
advisory services.

Audit Committee

At least one of the members of the Audit Committee has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit Committee
was a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors within one year immediately prior to the dates of
their respective appointments. All members have appropriate skills and experience in reviewing financial statements
as well as addressing significant control and financial issues of the Company. The Board expects the members of the
Audit Committee to exercise independent judgement and delegates the responsibilities of the corporate governance
functions to the Audit Committee in order to comply with the requirement of the Code.
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The Audit Committee currently comprises one Non-Executive Director, Mr. Jun Ye, and two Independent Non-
Executive Directors, Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang and Mr. Long Fei Ye. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr.
Stephen Tso Tung Chang. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include the reviewing of the Company’s financial
reporting system, the nature and scope of the audit review as well as the effectiveness of the system of internal control
procedures and risk management. The Audit Committee is also responsible for making recommendations in relation
to the appointment, reappointment, and removal of the external auditors, and the reviewing and monitoring of the
independence and objectivity of the external auditors. In addition, the Audit Committee discusses matters raised by
the external auditors and regulatory bodies to ensure that appropriate recommendations are implemented. A copy
of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available from the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website. The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee held five meetings and all the committee members
were present at the meetings. The major work performed by the Audit Committee with respect to the year ended 31
December 2022 included reviewing and recommending the re-appointment of the external auditor, approving the terms
of engagement (including the remuneration) of the external auditor and the audit plan, reviewing the unaudited quarterly
results announcement, reviewing the unaudited interim report and interim results announcement for the six months
ended 30 June 2022, reviewing the audited financial statements and final results announcement for the year ended 31
December 2022, reviewing the work of the Group’s audit department and assessing the effectiveness of the Group’s
systems of risk management and internal control. The Audit Committee also held discussions with management to
ensure that the Company has adequate resources, qualified and experienced staff in the accounting and financial
reporting function, training programs and budget.

Board Diversity
The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) in compliance with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules.

The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s
competitive advantage. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity will be considered from several aspects,
including without limitation, differences in the talents, skills, regional and industry experience, background, gender,
age, and other qualities of the members of the Board, in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of
talents, skills, experience, and background on the Board. In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board,
the Nomination Committee will consider candidates on merit against objective criteria and with due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee discussed and agreed on the measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board and recommended them to the Board for adoption. At any given time, the Board may
seek to improve one or more aspects of its diversity and measure progress accordingly.

The Board believes that, among all measurable objectives, gender diversity is a representative manifestation of Board
diversity. The Company has one female Director, which is in compliance with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules. The Board
considers that the Company has achieved gender diversity at the Board level and targets to maintain at least the
current level of female representation. In addition to gender diversity, the Remuneration Committee took the view that
the measurable objectives for Board diversity had been achieved to a large extent for the year ended 31 December
2022. The Nomination Committee paid particular attention to the cultural and educational background, professional
and technical experience, and skills of the members of the Board and also reviewed the composition of Executive
Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors, so as to ensure appropriate independence within the Board.

The Company will continue to maintain a balance of diverse perspectives on the Board that is appropriate for and
conducive to the Company’s growth.
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Workforce Diversity

As at 31 December 2022, the gender ratio of the Group’s workforce (including the Company’s senior management)
was approximately 73% male to 27% female. The Company'’s hiring is merit-based and non-discriminatory. The Board
is satisfied that the Company has achieved gender diversity in its workforce.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in provision A.2.1 of the Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance with the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Investor Relations

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy, which is subject to annual review to ensure its
implementation and effectiveness. Such policy aims to ensure that Shareholders will have equal and timely access to
information about the Company, so as to enable them to exercise their rights in an informed manner and to allow them
to engage actively with the Company.

A summary of the Company’s shareholders’ communication policy is set out below.

The Company provides information to Shareholders through its financial reports (including quarterly, interim and annual
reports), circulars, announcements and other disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange for publication.

To further promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at www.huahonggrace.com with
information and updates on the Company’s business developments and operations, list of Directors and their roles and
functions, constitutional documents, terms of reference of the Board and its committees, procedures for nomination
of Directors for election, corporate governance practices, financial reports, circulars, announcements and other
information.

Shareholders’ meetings are a primary forum for communication between the Board and Shareholders. The Company
encourages Shareholders to attend and participate in general meetings to ensure a high level of accountability and
to keep them informed of the Company’s goals and strategies. The Chairman of the Board, other Board members,
and the Chairmen of all the Board committees, or in their absence, other members of the respective committees, are
available to answer any questions from Shareholders. Shareholders are given sufficient notice of the meetings, and
detailed voting procedures are included in circulars to Shareholders accompanying the notices of meetings.

In addition to the above, the Company also publishes newsletters through its WeChat public account. Shareholders
can subscribe to the account to obtain the latest news of the Company.

To promote investors’ understanding of the Company’s business, the Company organises roadshows and on-site visits
to its clean rooms and exhibition halls for investors. The Company has also participated in a number of investment
forums and conducted multiple exchanges with securities analysts, fund management companies, and individual
investors through various means.
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In order for the Company to solicit and understand the views of Shareholders and stakeholders, Shareholders and
other stakeholders may make enquiries to the Company through its investor relations contact by email at IR@hhgrace.
com.

The Company has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of its shareholders’ communication policy for the
year ended 31 December 2022, including the steps taken at the general meetings, the handling of queries received
and the multiple communication channels in place. The Company is of the view that the policy is effective and has
been properly implemented.

Company Secretary

Ms. Sui Har Lee, the Company Secretary, is responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board procedures are
followed and that the Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. She is also responsible for ensuring that
the Board is fully appraised of the relevant legislative, regulatory, and corporate governance developments relating to
the Company and facilitating the induction and professional development of Directors.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the President, plays an essential role in the relationship between
the Company and its Shareholders, and assists the Board in discharging its obligations to Shareholders pursuant to
the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Ms. Sui Har Lee attended relevant professional seminars to update her
skills and knowledge and has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened by the Directors on requisition of Shareholder(s) holding not less
than one-twentieth of the paid-up capital of the Company or by such Shareholder(s) who made the requisition (the
“Requisitionist(s)”) (as the case may be) pursuant to sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”). The objects of the meeting must be stated in the requisition,
which must be signed by the Requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office of the Company. Shareholders
should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in sections 580 to 583 of the Companies Ordinance for
convening an extraordinary general meeting.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings and Directing
Enquiries from Shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their written requests, proposals, enquiries, and concerns to the Company for the
attention of Chairman of the Board or the Company Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

288 Halei Road, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Shanghai 201203, China
Tel: (86) 21 38829909

Fax: (86) 21 50809999

Email: IR@hhgrace.com
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Voting by Poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll.

Risk Management and Internal Monitoring

Risk Management and Internal Monitoring Objectives

Risk Management Objective

From a compliance perspective, the Company has implemented the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange to ensure the compliance with relevant requirements in a timely manner.

From the perspective of operations, the management team well understands the risks that may be confronted by the
Company as it undertakes future development. Therefore, the risk management objective of the Company is to identify
and assess risks and take appropriate countermeasures to evade a risk entirely, if possible, otherwise to manage these
risks to reduce their impact and keep them under control. The Company has constructed a robust risk control system
working on a continuous basis, established a risk management platform, clarified risk management mechanisms,
improved a risk map, and carried out an annual risk evaluation. We have developed a concise, scientific, practical,
and efficient risk management and control model which complies with regulatory requirements under the Code and is
in line with the Company’s specific evolving circumstances.

Internal Control System Objective

The Company’s internal control system has fully implemented the requirements for a risk management framework as
set out by COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission) as well as the guidelines of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants for risk management. We refined the three tiers of risk map in the
processes and formed risk-oriented internal control evaluation by considering the Company’s ongoing operational
circumstances and business characteristics. The objective is to evaluate the effectiveness and applicability of our
internal monitoring system and provide reasonable guarantees for the effectiveness of the Company’s operating
activities, the reliability of financial reports, and compliance with laws and regulations.

Risk Management and Internal Monitoring System

To ensure our risk management work develops efficiently and forms a long-term mechanism, the Company has
established a risk management monitoring system comprising a “three-line model”. It covers the roles and duties of
many different aspects as follows:

1st Line Business Departments

e  Establish and maintain various departmental risk management mechanisms;
e Ongoing collection of risk data while performing day-to-day department tasks;
e Continue to carry out risk monitoring and early warning of the department;
Assist in the implementation of the Company’s risk management work, including

providing necessary documents and samples, identify major risks related to the
department, and determine major risk countermeasures;

2nd Line Business Supervision and Administration Departments

e Provide and supplement expertise, play a supportive and supervisory role, help
continuously implement and improve the risk management work; Analyze and report
on the accuracy and effectiveness of risk management;
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3rd Line Internal Audit Level

e Independently inspect and supervise risk management activities conducted by the
Business Departments and the Risk Management Level, and evaluate whether the
Company’s risk management mechanism is implemented effectively and efficiently;

Conduct annual comprehensive risk assessments, based on the risk assessment
results, define the major risk factors and relevant response responsibilities, organize
and guide relevant departments in making response plans for major risks, and follow
up on the implementation of the plans;

e Urge departments or agencies to rectify problems discovered during the auditing and
risk assessment process and monitor the ongoing status of the rectification work;

e  Report the auditing and risk assessment results to the Audit Committee of the
Company.

Risk Management and Internal Monitoring Statement

The Board is responsible for the Company’s risk management and internal monitoring system, as well as ensuring a
review of the system’s effectiveness. The Board designated the Internal Auditing Department to perform the internal
auditing function and granted it full independent responsibility and authority. The internal auditors audited the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal monitoring system every half year according to the
approved auditing scope and in accordance with the provisions in D.2 of the Corporate Governance Code, and no
material deficiency was found.

Based on audits by the Internal Auditing Department, the Board believes that the Company’s risk management and
internal monitoring system is adequate, trustworthy, and effective. However, one must recognize that the Company’s
risk management and internal monitoring framework can only manage rather than completely eliminate risks that may
affect the Company’s ability to accomplish its business obijectives. Therefore, it provides a reasonable but not an
absolute guarantee for the avoidance of material misstatement or loss.

With a view to identifying, handling, and disseminating inside information in compliance with the SFO, procedures,
including pre-clearance on dealing in the securities of the Company by designated members of management,
notification of regular blackout period and securities dealing restrictions to relevant Directors and employees,
identification of projects by code name, and dissemination of information to stated purpose and on a need-to-know
basis, have been implemented by the Group to guard against possible mishandling of inside information within the
Group.

General

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing the Company’s financial statements for each financial
period to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent, fair, and reasonable, and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to the financial reporting are set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 221 to 228 of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Suxin Zhang
Chairman
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The Board presents the annual report of the Company for 2022 and the audited financial statements of the Company
for the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (the “Financial Statements”).

Principal Activities

The Company was a pure-play 8-inch and 12-inch wafer foundry as at the end of 2022, with its long-term focus on
the development and application of “8-inch + 12-inch” differentiated specialty technologies, including Embedded/
Standalone Non-Volatile Memory, Power Discrete, Analog & Power Management, Logic & RF, providing wafer
manufacturing services to its customers. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the Financial
Statements (Pages 237 to 238).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Revenue Analysis

Revenue of Hua Hong Semiconductor for 2022 was US$2,475.5 million, representing a significant increase of 51.8%
compared to the previous year. As at the end of 2022, the Company has been profitable for 48 consecutive quarters.
The good performance for the year was mainly due to the continuous optimization of product mix and capacity
expansion of the Company. Despite significant changes in the global semiconductor market environment in 2022,
the Company adjusted its production line arrangements promptly to meet the market demand and carried out active
expansion in automobiles, industrial control, data centers, new energy generation, and new energy application, thus
achieving rapid growth. Due to the gradual implementation of the Company’s “8-inch +12-inch” strategy, the 12-inch
production platform was continuously expanded and supported by the market. With diversified support of advanced
“Specialty IC + Power Discrete” specialized process technology, product quality and performance were widely
recognized by the market. The Company also maintained good results in the traditional consumer market. In 2022,
the Company maintained its business growth in terms of Embedded/Stand-alone memory, discrete, and analog & PM
platforms, which will continue to create value for shareholders and the market in 2023.

Revenue by Service

YoY YoY
2022 2022 2021 2021 Change Change
US$’000 %  US$000 % US$000 %
Semiconductor wafers 2,376,659 96.0% 1,561,846 95.8% 814,813 52.2%
Others 98,829 4.0% 68,908 4.2% 29,921 43.4%
Total 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%
e In 2022, 96.0% of our revenue was generated from the sale of semiconductor wafers.
Revenue by Customer

YoY YoY
2022 2022 2021 2021 Change Change
US$’000 % US$000 %  US$000 %

Systems and fabless
companies 2,267,446 91.6% 1,496,782 91.8% 770,664 51.5%

Integrated device

manufacturers (IDMs) 208,042 8.4% 133,972 8.2% 74,070 55.3%
Total 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%

e QOur revenue from systems and fabless companies accounted for 91.6%.
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Revenue by Geography

YoY YoY

2022 2022 2021 2021 Change Change

USs$’000 % US$'000 % US$'000 %

China 1,811,269 73.2% 1,205,149 73.9% 606,120 50.3%
North America 297,683 12.0% 159,281 9.8% 138,402 86.9%
Other Asia 210,610 8.5% 169,227 10.4% 41,383 24.5%
Europe 114,728 4.6% 70,627 4.3% 44101 62.4%
Japan 41,198 1.7% 26,470 1.6% 14.728 55.6%
Total 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%

° In 2022, North America was our fastest-growing market by revenue, with a year-on-year increase of 86.9% in

revenue.
Revenue by Technology Type

YoY YoY

2022 2022 2021 2021 Change Change

US$’000 %  US$'000 % US$000 %

Embedded Non-Volatile Memory (eNVM) 767,568 31.0% 459,104 28.2% 308,464 67.2%

Standalone Non-Volatile Memory (sNVM) 208,171 8.4% 88,796 5.4% 119,375 134.4%

Discrete 774,638 31.3% 557,893 34.2% 216,745 38.9%

Logic & RF 274,384 11.1% 272,053 16.7% 2,331 0.9%

Analog & Power Management (PM) 448,648 18.1% 250,466 15.4% 198,182 79.1%

Others 2,079 0.1% 2,442 0.1% (363)  (14.9%)

Total 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%

° In 2022, eNVM technology continued to grow, with continuous and outstanding growth in the results for MCU
products.

e In 2022, there was a year-on-year increase of 38.9% in revenue from Discrete, which remained the Company’s
largest business segment.
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Revenue by Technology Node

YoY YoY

2022 2022 2021 2021 Change Change

Us$’000 % US$'000 % US$'000 %

55nm & 65nm 355,161 14.3% 157,854 9.7% 197,307 125.0%
90nm & 95nm 505,233 20.4% 280,235 17.2% 224,998 80.3%
0.11um & 0.13um 426,387 17.2% 302,920 18.6% 123,467 40.8%
0.15um & 0.18um 206,733 8.4% 164,260 10.1% 42,473 25.9%
0.25um 15,027 0.6% 22,926 1.4% (7,899) (34.5)%
>0.35um 966,947 39.1% 702,559 43.0% 264,388 37.6%
Total 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%

e Revenue from 55nm & 65nm technology nodes increased sharply, with a year-on-year increase of 125.0%.

Revenue by End Market

YoY YoY

2022 2022 2021 2021 Change Change

US$’000 % US$'000 % US$'000 %

Consumer Electronics 1,599,116 64.6% 1,039,325 63.7% 559,791 53.9%
Industrial & Automotive Electronics 550,342 22.2% 316,194 19.4% 234,148 74.1%
Communications 248,033 10.0% 218,946 13.4% 29,087 13.3%
Computing 77,997 3.2% 56,289 3.5% 21,708 38.6%
Total 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%

e All end markets recorded strong growth in revenue in 2022, particularly for Industrial & Automotive Electronics in
74.1% growth.



32 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED #1828 5R A 7] « 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE3E

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Capacity and Capacity Utilization

Fab (In thousands of wafers per month) 2022 2021 YoY Change
Fab 1 65 65 -
Fab 2 60 60 -
Fab 3 53 53 -
Total monthly 8-inch wafer capacity 178 178 -
Fab 7 (12-inch wafer capacity) 65 60 5
Capacity utilization (8-inch wafer equivalent) 107.4% 107.5% (0.1)%

e In 2022, capacity utilization (8-inch wafer equivalent) was 107.4%.

Wafer Shipments
In thousands of wafers 2022 2021 YoY Change

Wafer shipments (8-inch wafer equivalent) 4,087 3,328 22.8%

° In 2022, there was a year-on-year increase of 22.8% in the Company’s wafer shipments.

Research and Development

Hua Hong Semiconductor is committed to research and development (R&D), innovation, and optimization of
differentiated technologies, with a focus on eNVM, sNVM, Discrete, analog & PM, and logic & RF. It continues to
provide customers with well-featured process technologies and services that meet market demand. In 2022, Hua Hong
Semiconductor continued to expand the construction of the “8-inch + 12-inch” production platforms and enriched the
advanced “Specialty IC + Power Discrete” process capability through expansion of the 12-inch production platform.

The technology platform related to eNVM remained one of the main sources of revenue for Hua Hong Semiconductor
in 2022 and was mainly used for smart card IC and MCU. In terms of smart cards, shipments of smart card products
produced using the 90nm embedded flash memory technology, with independent intellectual property rights, remained
stable; the 55nm process was successfully mass-produced; and competitiveness of the eNVM platform remained
at a high level. In terms of MCU, 12-inch embedded flash memory MCUs were mass-produced, and increased
production capacity ensured double-digit growth in both shipments and sales of MCUs for the Company in 2022.
The Company has a rich combination of embedded flash memory processes as well as a good market reputation.
The industry-leading 0.11um and independently-developed 90nm low power and ultra-low leakage embedded flash
memory technology platforms, remained highly recognized in the market and were widely used in general MCU,
Type-C interface control IC, touch control IC, smart meter control IC, and highly reliable Automotive Electronics,
etc. Meanwhile, shipments using the 55nm high-speed MCU embedded flash memory technology platform, with
independent intellectual property rights, increased rapidly. This further improved the richness and the competitiveness
of the process platform and gradually enhanced the ability to provide manufacturing services to customers through
differentiated processes.
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In 2022, continuous growth of new energy power generation and new energy applications, such as electric vehicles,
and the gradual increase in market share of power devices for household appliances, communications, and other
industries, will continue to promote growth of the Company’s power discrete technology platform for a long period of
time. Specifically, the insulated gate bipolar transistor (IGBT) technology platform continued to perform excellently,
with rapid growth for eight consecutive years. The three-digit percentage growth in sales and production of IGBT in the
12-inch fab has greatly eased the problem of capacity constraints. After optimization for large current, high reliability,
small pitch size, etc., IGBT technology showed strong competitiveness in electric vehicle inverters and new energy
power generation. The Company made achievements in 12-inch Super Junction Metal Oxide Semiconductor Field
Effect Transistor (MOSFET) with completion of the production capacity ramp-up and a three-digit growth in annual
shipments. With regard to the specialty new-generation Deep-Trench technology, the Company accumulated valuable
mass production experience and a good reputation among customers, as the technology was widely used in data
center power supplies, charging piles, and new energy on-board chargers (OBCs) for new energy vehicles. In terms
of the overall power device process platform, the Company will carry out development towards smaller pitch size and
lower on-resistance, expand its presence in the automotive electronics market, continuously meet the demand of the
end market, and provide customers with higher quality products and OEM services.

In terms of the BCD (Bipolar-CMOS-DMOS) process platform, the Company continued to achieve strong growth in
2022, with double-digit growth in revenue. The process scope covered low-medium, high, and ultra-high voltage
products. Specifically, the Company achieved rapid production ramp-up of the 12-inch medium-low voltage 90 nm
BCD process platform, which was successfully applied to digital power supplies, digital audio power amplifiers, and
other market segments. In the analog power and motor driver IC applications, using the 8-inch 0.18um and above
medium-low voltage BCD process platforms, the Company maintained double-digit growth, achieving continuous
improvement in market recognition and a technical level matching the industry-leading indicators. In the high and
ultra-high voltage sectors, the Company has a 600-700V BCD process platform for application in lighting control as
well as industrial and household motor driver chips. The process and reliability were continuously improved to meet
future market demand. With changes in automotive electronics architecture and using our advantageous embedded
flash memory and power device technology, the Company developed various integrated BCD processes to meet the
continuous demand for highly integrated and intelligent automotive power management IC.

In addition to the above main technology platforms, Hua Hong Semiconductor continued to expand into new
differentiated technology fields. With greater demands on the volume consumed and performance required for
semiconductor products in smart home devices, wearable hardware, Automotive Electronics, etc., the Company
continuously strengthened research and development of radio frequency, standard memory, and other technology
platforms, which paid off in 2022. In terms of patents, it applied for 654 patents throughout the year and was granted a
total of over 4,100 Chinese and U.S. authorised invention patents. The Company is committed to continuous innovation
and providing customers with a rich selection of specialty technology platforms and extensive IP support.

2022 was a year full of both opportunities and challenges. Despite multiple challenges, the Company achieved all
its production, research, and development targets. As HHGrace persisted in and practiced the advanced “Specialty
IC + Power Discrete” process technology programs for a long time, the Company has maintained steady growth
in results despite significant change in the traditional consumer market. Looking forward to the future, there will be
rapid growth in the application of new energy in the world as well as demand for semiconductors in automobiles
and other industries. The Company’s process research and development will be rapidly oriented towards relevant
fields. In the long run, with the continuous increase in proportion of semiconductors in end-user system products and
further penetration of digitalization and informatization into daily production and life, there will certainly be a long-term
positive trend in global demand for semiconductor components. In 2023, the Company will further expand the phase-|
production capacity in Wuxi and start the phase-Il production capacity construction plan in time to provide the market
with more extensive process capability and production capacity support.
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Outlook

Looking forward to 2023, there will be many uncertainties in the global economic recovery. According to the forecast
by an authoritative institution, the global GDP growth rate is expected to drop to 1.7% in 2023, and the GDP growth
rate of China is expected to increase to 5%. The slowdown in global economic growth and the decline in traditional
consumer demand may become a common challenge for the semiconductor industry in the new year. Despite the
decline in overseas market demand and the accelerated transformation and upgrading of domestic market demand,
Hua Hong Semiconductor actively made plan for emerging new markets including electric vehicles and new energy,
accelerated its activities to meet new these market demands, and maintained the sustained and healthy development
of its business in alignment with the market trends. The Company will further improve competitiveness of the 12-inch
production platform. More abundant and advanced specialty technology, with long-term and continuous strategic
cooperation, including mutual trust with customers, will become the key engine to maintain growth of the Company
in the new year. In terms of production capacity, in order to better meet the long-term demand of the semiconductor
market, the Company will give full support to the “8-inch + 12-inch” strategy, maintain optimization of the existing
8-inch platform, continue capacity expansion of phase-| for the 12-inch platform, and in due course start construction
of the phase-Il production capacity expansion in Wuxi. In terms of products and technical promotion, all fabs of the
Company have been recognized under the IATF16949 quality system. In 2023, the Company will continue to improve
its automotive electronics product lines and seize the market opportunity due to the explosive increase in demand
for semiconductor components in the local automobile market supply chain. The Company will continue to improve
its specialized process technology capabilities, particularly for the embedded flash memory and power discrete
technology platform, with a view to maintain its dominant position and contribute to the Company’'s long-term and
sustainable development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

2022 2021 Change
US$’000 US$000
Revenue 2,475,488 1,630,754 51.8 %
Cost of sales (1,631,832) (1,179,156) 38.4 %
Gross profit 843,656 451,598 86.8 %
Other income and gains 70,986 60,758 16.8 %
Fair value gain on an investment property 78 183 (57.4)%
Selling and distribution expenses (12,464) (10,673) 16.8 %
Administrative expenses (266,666) (198,920) 34.1 %
Other expenses (111,360) (165) 67,390.9 %
Finance costs (40,331) (13,226) 204.9 %
Share of profit of associates 12,171 6,765 79.9 %
Profit before tax 496,070 296,320 67.4 %
Income tax expense (89,499) (65,349) 37.0 %
Profit for the year 406,571 230,971 76.0 %
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent 449,912 261,476 721 %
Non-controlling interests (43,341) (30,505) 421 %
Revenue

Revenue was US$2,475.5 million, an all-time high and an increase of 51.8% over the prior year, due to increased wafer
shipments and improved average selling price.

Cost of sales
Cost of sales was US$1,631.8 million, an increase of 38.4% over 2021, primarily due to increased wafer shipments and
increased depreciation costs.

Gross profit
Gross profit was US$843.7 million, an increase of 86.8% compared to 2021, mainly due to improved average selling
price and product mix, partially offset by increased depreciation costs.

Other income and gains
Other income and gains were US$71.0 million, an increase of 16.8% compared to 2021, primarily due to increased
government subsidies and interest income.

Selling and distribution expenses
Selling and distribution expenses were US$12.5 million, an increase of 16.8% from 2021, primarily due to increased
labor expenses.

Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses were US$266.7 million, an increase of 34.1% from 2021, primarily due to decreased
government grants for research and development and increased labor expenses.

Other expenses
Other expenses were US$111.4 million, compared to US$0.2 million in 2021, largely due to foreign exchange loss
versus foreign exchange gain in the previous year.
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Finance costs
Finance costs were US$40.3 million, an increase of 204.9% from 2021, primarily due to increased bank borrowings.

Share of profit of associates
Share of profit of associates was US$12.2 million, an increase of 79.9% from 2021, due to increased profit realized by
the associates.

Income tax expense
Income tax expense was US$89.5 million, an increase of 37.0% compared to 2021, primarily due to increased taxable
profit.

Profit for the year

As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, profit for the year increased to US$406.6 million, from
US$231.0 million in 2021. Net profit margin was 16.4%, compared to 14.2% in 2021.

FINANCIAL STATUS

31 December 31 December

2022 2021 Change
US$’000 US$'000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3,367,716 3,116,501 81 %
Investment property 169,363 184,883 (8.4)%
Right-of-use assets 78,425 75,331 41 %
Investments in associates 130,721 122,040 7.1 %
Equity instruments designated at fair value

through other comprehensive income 178,632 257,788 (30.7)%
Other non-current assets 54,794 54,364 0.8 %
Total non-current assets 3,979,651 3,810,907 4.4 %
Current assets
Inventories 578,060 432 917 335 %
Trade and notes receivables 291,856 181,042 61.2 %
Due from related parties 13,006 6,910 88.2 %
Other current assets 182,996 157,935 15.9 %
Restricted and time deposits 1,042 2,248 (53.6)%
Cash and cash equivalents 2,008,765 1,610,140 24.8 %
Total current assets 3,075,725 2,391,192 28.6 %
Current liabilities
Trade payables 236,999 194,385 21.9 %
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 426,756 195,024 118.8 %
Due to related parties 6,096 7,501 (18.7)%
Government grants 37,714 66,837 (43.6)%
Other current liabilities 674,851 616,654 9.4 %
Total current liabilities 1,382,416 1,080,401 28.0 %
Net current assets 1,693,309 1,310,791 29.2 %
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 1,481,580 1,395,279 6.2 %
Lease liabilities 14,644 16,137 (9.3)%
Deferred tax liabilities 41,268 25,735 60.4 %
Total non-current liabilities 1,537,492 1,437,151 7.0 %

Net assets 4,135,468 3,684,547 122 %
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Explanation of items with fluctuation over 10% from 31 December 2021 to 31 December 2022

Equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
Equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income decreased from US$257.8 million to
US$178.6 million, primarily due to decrease of fair value and a disposal of equity instruments.

Inventories
Inventories increased from US$432.9 million to US$578.1 million, primarily due to increased customer demand.

Trade and notes receivables
Trade and notes receivables increased from US$181.0 million to US$291.9 million, mainly due to increased revenue.

Due from related parties
Due from related parties increased from US$6.9 million to US$13.0 million, primarily due to increased receivables from
certain of our related parties.

Other current assets
Other current assets increased from US$157.9 million to US$183.0 million, primarily due to increased properties under
development.

Restricted and time deposits
Restricted and time deposits decreased from US$2.2 million to US$1.0 million, primarily due to decreased pledged
deposits.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents increased from US$1,610.1 million to US$2,008.8 million, mainly due to reasons stated in
the cash flow analysis below.

Trade payables
Trade payables increased from US$194.4 million to US$237.0 million, primarily due to increased purchase of materials.

Due to related parties
Due to related parties decreased from US$7.5 million to US$6.1 million, primarily due to decreased trade payables
from certain of our related parties.

Government grants
Government grants decreased from US$66.8 million to US$37.7 million, primarily due to decreased receipts of
government funding.
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Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Total interest-bearing bank borrowings increased from US$1,590.3 million to US$1,908.3 million, due to increased

drawdowns of bank borrowings.

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities increased from US$25.7 million to US$41.3 million, primarily due to increased withholding tax

accrued for dividend distribution.

CASH FLOW
2022 2021 Change
US$’000 US$'000

Net cash flows generated from operating activities 750,865 518,471 448 %
Net cash flows used in investing activities (930,156) (863,059) 7.8 %
Net cash flows generated from financing activities 672,177 1,014,640 (33.8)%
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 492,886 670,052 (26.4)%
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,610,140 922,786 745 %
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (94,261) 17,302 (644.8)%
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 2,008,765 1,610,140 24.8 %

Net cash flows generated from operating activities
Net cash flows generated from operating activities were US$750.9 million, an increase of 44.8% from 2021, mainly due
to increased revenue, partially offset by increased payments for materials, maintenance and payrolls.

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Net cash flows used in investing activities were US$930.2 million, primarily attributed to (i) US$996.2 million for capital
investments, (ii) US$6.7 million for investment in an associate, offset by receipts of (i) US$38.4 million of government
grants, (i) US$28.5 million of interest income, (iii) US$5.7 million of disposal of an equity instrument, and (iv) US$0.1
million of disposal of fixed assets.

Net cash flows generated from financing activities

Net cash flows generated from financing activities were US$672.2 million, including (i) US$514.6 million of proceeds
from bank borrowings, (ii) US$392.0 million of capital contribution from non-controlling interests, (iii) US$11.1 million
of government grants for interest expenses, and (iv) US$6.2 million of proceeds from issue of shares, offset by (i)
US$199.7 million of repayments of bank borrowings, (ii) US$47.3 million of interest payments, (i) US$3.2 million
payment of principal portion of lease payments, (iv) US$0.8 million payments of listing fee, and (v) US$0.8 million
payment of restricted deposits.

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, cash and cash equivalents increased from US$1,610.1 million
as of 31 December 2021 to US$2,008.8 million as of 31 December 2022.
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FINANCIAL RISKS

Interest rate risk

Our exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a floating interest rate. Our policy is to manage interest rate risk using a mix of fixed and variable rate
debts.

As at 31 December 2022, if the interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, profit before tax for the year would have been US$14.5 million lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate bank borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

We have transactional currency exposures, arising primarily from sales or purchases by our significant subsidiaries
operating in Mainland China in US$ rather than the subsidiary’s functional currency, which is RMB. During the year,
approximately 27% of our sales were denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the subsidiary
making the sale, whilst 71% of costs of sales were denominated in the subsidiary’s functional currency.

In addition, we have currency exposures from interest-bearing bank borrowings, held by our subsidiary operating in
Mainland China. As at 31 December 2022, interest-bearing bank borrowings with a carrying amount of US$1,775.8
million are dominated in United States dollars, other than the subsidiary’s functional currency, which is RMB.

As at 31 December 2021, if the US dollar had strengthened or weakened against the RMB by 5 percent, with all other
variables held constant, our profit before tax for the year would have been approximately US$60.5 million lower or
higher.

Credit risk

We trade only with recognized and creditworthy third parties and related parties. It is our policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis, and our exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Our maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to our financial assets is: the carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and notes receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets,
amounts due from related parties, and restricted and time deposits included in the consolidated statement of financial
position. We have no other financial assets which carry significant exposure to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

To meet liquidity requirements in the short and long term, our policy is to monitor regularly the current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that we maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions.

Capital management
Our primary objectives of capital management are to safeguard our ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios to support our business and maximize shareholders’ value.

We manage our capital structure and make adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. To do this, we may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, or issue new shares. We are not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies, or processes for
managing capital during the year.
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Gearing Ratio

Details of the gearing ratio are set out in note 38 to the Financial Statements.

Results

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the state of affairs as at that date are set out in the
Financial Statements on pages 229 to 232 of this report.

Final Dividends

In order to better cater to market demand, enhance the Company’s market position and core competitiveness in the
wafer foundry industry and cope with the changing market environment, the Company is maintaining a stable, prudent,
and responsible policy for our shareholders. Based on the requirements for a sustainable operation and long-term
development, the Board does not recommend payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
Nil). The Company will retain sufficient cash to continue its investment activities, in order to maximize benefits for our
shareholders.

Dividend Policy

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders and the requirements of law, it has been decided that the Company
will pay dividends to the Shareholders for the year of 2015 and onwards if the Group is profitable, the operations
environment is stable, and there is no significant investment made by the Group. It is intended that the average of
dividends paid in three consecutive years will be no less than 30% of the average distributable net profit of these three
years. The remaining net profit will be used for the development and operations of the Group.

This dividend policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will
be paid in any amount for any given period. In the event that the Board recommends a dividend, the form and amount
will depend on the assessment by the Directors of the factors affecting the Group from time to time.
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Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had no distributable reserves available for distribution to our shareholders.
Bank Loans

The particulars of bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2022 are set out in note 26 to the Financial Statements.

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s bank loans were secured by pledges of the Group’s assets. Please
refer to note 26 to the Financial Statements for further details.

Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is set out
on page 348. This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of additions and other changes during the year ended 31 December 2022 in the property, plant and equipment,
and investment property of the Group are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the Financial Statements.

In addition, details of the investment property are set out below:

Gross Floor Area

Location Type of Use Term of Lease Group’s Interest (sgq.m.)
Portions of 9 buildings Industrial use Held under a land 100% 91,568.11
No. 818 Guo Shou Jing Road use right for a term

Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park expiring on 8 March 2051

Pudong New Area
Shanghai, PRC

Significant Events After the Reporting Period

There is no significant subsequent event undertaken by the Group after 31 December 2022.
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Share Capital and Share Option Scheme

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note
30 to the Financial Statements. These movements include the automatic inclusion of the amount standing to the share
premium account into the share capital as from 3 March 2014, in accordance with section 37 of Schedule 11 to the
New Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), as part of the transition to the no-par value regime.

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was approved by an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 1 September 2015. A summary of the Share Option Scheme is as follows:

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme:

Participants:

Maximum entitlement of each Participant:

Minimum period, if any, for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised:

The amount payable on application or
acceptance of the Share Option and
the period within which payments or calls
must be made or loans for such
purposes must be paid:

Number of options available for grant as at
1 January 2022:

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract, retain and
provide incentives to the Participants (defined below), to provide them
with the opportunity to obtain Shares of the Company, and to link their
interests closely to the operating results and share performance of the
Company, with the view to increasing the value of the Company.

The participants of the Share Option Scheme (“Participants”)
include (1) existing Executive and Non-Executive Directors of any
member of the Group; or (2) senior management and key managerial
and technical personnel having a direct impact on the results of
operations and sustainable development of any member of the Group,
subject always to any limits and restrictions specified in the Share
Option Scheme, but shall not include any Independent Non-Executive
Directors.

If the total number of Shares allotted and which may fall to be allotted
upon exercise of all the share options (“Share Options”) granted
and to be granted (including exercised, cancelled, and outstanding
Share Options) to a Participant in any 12-month period in aggregate
exceeds 1% of the issued share capital of the Company at the time,
no further grant of Share Options shall be given to such Participant.
Share Options may be granted to a Participant in excess of the
individual limit of 1% in any 12-month period only with the approval
of the Shareholders at a general meeting. No Share Option shall be
granted to any person who holds over 5% of Shares which carry
voting rights on the Grant Date (as defined in the Share Option
Scheme), unless such grant is approved by shareholders at the
general meeting.

Two years unless otherwise stated in the grant notice of the Share
Option.

HK$1.00 is to be paid by each grantee as consideration for the grant
of Share Option within 28 days from the date of proposed offer.

93,944,356

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
seven (7) years commencing on the date of adoption. It has therefore
expired on 1 September 2022. No further options could be granted,
and none has been granted, under the Share Option Scheme from
that date.
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As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
23,438,871 shares, representing approximately 1.79% of the total number of shares in issue.

Share Options Granted under the Share Option Scheme

On 4 September 2015, the Company granted 30,250,000 share options (the “2015 Options”) to subscribe for a total of
30,250,000 ordinary shares of the Company to certain individuals under the Share Option Scheme. Details of the 2015
Options are as follows:

Date of grant: 4 September 2015

Exercise price of options granted: HK$6.912

Number of options granted: 30,250,000 (representing 2.31% of the issued shares of the Company as at 31
December 2022).

Validity period of the options: From 4 September 2015 to 3 September 2022 (seven (7) years), both dates
inclusive.
Vesting period of the options: One third of the options shall vest on each of 4 September 2017, 4 September

2018, and 4 September 2019.

The exercise price of HK$6.912 per Share represents a premium of 0% over the higher of (i) the closing price of
HK$6.87 per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant; (ii)
the average closing price of HK$6.912 per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the closing price of HK$6.800 per Share
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the day immediately before the grant date.

On 24 December 2018, the Company granted 34,500,000 share options (the “2018 Options”) to subscribe for a total of
34,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company to certain individuals under the Share Option Scheme. Details of the 2018
Options are as follows:

Date of Grant: 24 December 2018

Exercise price of options granted: HK$15.056

Number of options granted: 34,500,000 (representing 2.64% of the issued shares of the Company as at 31
December 2022)

Validity period of the options: From 24 December 2018 to 23 December 2025 (seven (7) years), both dates
inclusive
Vesting period of the options: For employees at or above the level of the vice president of the Company (together

with Directors), one fourth of the 2018 Options shall vest on each of 24 December
2020, 24 December 2021, 24 December 2022, and 24 December 2023; for the
other employees of the Company, one third of the 2018 Options shall vest on each
of 24 December 2020, 24 December 2021, and 24 December 2022

The exercise price of HK$15.056 per share represents the higher of (i) the closing price of HK$14.440 per share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant; (i) the average closing
price of HK$15.056 per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; (iii) the closing price of HK$14.380 per Share as stated
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in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the day immediately before the grant date; and (iv) the
nominal value of the share.

On 29 March 2019, the Company granted 500,000 share options (the “March 2019 Options”) to subscribe for a total of
500,000 ordinary shares of the Company to one individual under the Share Option Scheme. Details of the March 2019
Options are as follows:

Date of Grant: 29 March 2019
Exercise price of options granted: HK$18.400

Number of options granted: 500,000 (representing 0.04% of the issued shares of the Company as at 31
December 2022)

Validity period of the options: From 29 March 2019 to 28 March 2026 (seven (7) years), both dates inclusive

Vesting period of the options: One fourth of the options will vest on each of 23 December 2021, 12 August 2022,
29 March 2023, and 29 March 2024

The exercise price of HK$18.400 per share represents the higher of (i) the closing price of HK$18.400 per share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant; (ii) the average closing
price of HK$18.176 per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; (iii) the closing price of HK$18.220 per share as stated in
the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the day immediately before the grant date; and (iv) the
nominal value of the share.

On 23 December 2019, the Company granted 2,482,000 share options (the “December 2019 Options”) to subscribe
for a total of 2,482,000 ordinary shares of the Company to certain individuals under the Share Option Scheme. Details
of the December 2019 Options are as follows:

Date of Grant: 23 December 2019

Exercise price of options granted: HK$17.952

Number of options granted: 2,482,000 (representing 0.19% of the issued shares of the Company as at 31
December 2022)

Validity period of the options: From 23 December 2019 to 22 December 2026 (seven (7) years), both dates
inclusive
Vesting period of the options: For employees at or above the level of the vice president of Hua Hong Wuxi, one

fourth of the options will vest on each of 23 December 2021, 23 December 2022,
23 December 2023, and 23 December 2024; for the other employees of Hua
Hong Wuxi, one third of the options will vest on each of 23 December 2021, 23
December 2022, and 23 December 2023

The exercise price of HK$17.952 per share represents the higher of (i) the closing price of HK$17.260 per share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant; (i) the average closing
price of HK$17.952 per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; (iii) the closing price of HK$17.200 per share as stated in
the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the day immediately before the grant date; and (iv) the
nominal value of the share.
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Among the March 2019 Options, 500,000 share options were granted to the Directors of the Company, subject to their
acceptance.

Details of the movements in the share options during the year ended 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Name or category of participants

Director
Number of share options Mr. Junjun Tang Other employees Total
Granted at 4 September 2015 - 29,262,000 - - 30,250,000
Granted at 24 December 2018 - - 33,820,000 - 34,500,000
Granted at 29 March 2019 500,000 - - - 500,000
Granted at 23 December 2019 - - - 2,482,000 2.482,000
Cancelled during the year 2015 - -130,000 - - -130,000
Cancelled during the year 2016 - -1,458,000 - - -1,458,000
Cancelled during the year 2017 - -1,353,399 - - -1,353,399
Cancelled during the year 2018 - -754,595 - - -754,595
Cancelled during the year 2019 - -58,000 -1,035,000 -36,000 -1,729,000
Cancelled during the year 2020 - - -993,904 -84,000 1,276,904
Cancelled during the year 2021 -62,500 - -5,751,868 -592,993 -6,407,361
Exercised during the period - 4,738,332 847,614 59,209 5,645,155
Cancelled during the period - - -530,077 -73,483 -603,560
Lapsed during the period: - - -13,651 -500 -14,151
QOutstanding at 1 January 2022 437,500 4,738,332 22,781,065 1,744,840 29,701,737
QOutstanding at 31 December 2022 437,500 - 21,389,723 1,611,648 23,438,871
Veesting period of share options: From 29 March ~ From 4 September ~ From 24 December ~ From 23 December
2019 t0 28 March 2015 to 3 September 2018 to 23 December 2019 to 22 December
2026 2022 2025 2026
Exercise period of share options From 29 March ~ From 4 September ~ From 24 December  From 23 December
202110 28 March 2017 to 3 September 2020 to 23 December 2021 to 22 December
2026 2022 2025 2026
Exercise price of share options HK$18.400 HK$6.912 HK$15.056 HK$17.952
Weighted average closing price of
the shares immediately before the
dates on which the share options
were exercised HK$28.29 HK$30.71 HK$30.89

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not adopted any other share option scheme during the year ended 31
December 2022.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 233 to 234 of this report.
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Continuing Connected Transactions and Connected Transactions

Continuing Connected Transactions
The Group disclosed in the prospectus dated 3 October 2014 the continuing connected transactions with, amongst
others, Shanghai Huali, Huahong Real Estate and Huajin Property Management. Certain details of such transactions
are summarized in the table below. With respect to such transactions, the Company had applied for and the Stock
Exchange had granted a waiver from, among others, strict compliance with the announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirement (as the case may be). Details of such continuing connected transactions of the
Group together with certain other continuing connected transactions conducted during 2022 are set out as follows:

Actual Proposed
Transaction Transaction Annual
Transaction Date Parties to the Transaction ~ Connected Relationship Transaction Amount 2022 Caps 2022
(1) 1 January 2022 Huahong Group (as Huahong Group is a substantial The Company's sale of semiconductor US§17,447,000  US$30,036,000
purchaser) shareholder of the Company. products to Huahong Group, its
subsidiaries and associates, including
The Company (as seller) Hongri and Huahong Zealcore are Hongri, Huahong Zealcore and ICRD,
owned 51% and 93.02% owned by pursuant to the Huahong Group
Huahong Group, respectively. Framework Agreement.
ICRD was regarded by Huahong Group
as its subsidiary during 2022.
() 1January 2022 Huahong Group (as seller)  Huahong Group is a substantial The Company’s purchase of wafers and  US§19,247,000  US$25,920,000
shareholder of the Company. chemicals from Huahong Group, its
The Company (as purchaser) subsidiaries and associates, including
Hongri and Huahong Zealcore are Hongri and Huahong Zealcore, pursuant
owned 51% and 93.02% owned by to the Huahong Group Framework
Huahong Group, respectively. Agreement.
(3) 1January 202 Huahong Group (as sevice  Huahong Group is a substantial Provision of (i) foundry services — US$89,000  US$5,179,000
provider) shareholder of the Company. by Shanghai Huali and (i) general
supporting services by Jiong pursuant
The Company (as recipient of ~ Shanghai Huali is 53.79% owned by to the Huahong Group Framework
service) Huahong Group. Agreement.
Huahong Group controls the majority of
Jitong's board composition.
(4 2 March 2022 SITRI (as purchaser) SITRI'is 80% held by and a subsidiary Sales agreement between the Company — US$344,000  US$1,500,000

The Company (as seller)

of SAIL, the Company’s substantial
shareholder.

(as seller) and SITRI (as purchaser) in
relation to the sale of wafers and other
semiconductor products to SITRI.
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Actual Proposed
Transaction Transaction Annual
Transaction Date Parties to the Transaction ~ Connected Relationship Transaction Amount 2022 Caps 2022
(5) 1 January 2021 HHGrace (as service Hua Hong Wuxi is a non-wholly Service agreement between HHGraceRMB145,000,000 RMB145,000,000
provider) owned subsidliary which is held as to (as service provider) and Hua Hong (approx. (approx.
approximately 20.58% by China IC Wuxi (as recipient of services) in relation US$21,529,000)  US$21,529,000)
Hua Hong Wuxi (as recipient  Fund, a substantial shareholder of the to the provision of corporate services by
of service) Company. HHGrace to Hua Hong Wux.
Accordingly, Hua Hong Wuxi is a
connected subsidiary of the Company.

(6) 25 February 2010 Shanghai Huali (as lessee) ~ Shanghai Huali is 53.79% owned Lease agreement between Shanghai RMB95,809,000 RMB107,000,000
(together with by Huahong Group, a substantial Huali (as lessee) and the Company (as (approx. (approx.
the supplemental  The Company (as lessor) shareholder of the Company. lessor) in relation to the factory premise US$14,254,000)  US$16,041,000)
agreements dated situated at Hill 2, 13th street, Zhangjiang
10 June 2011 and Hi-Tech park, Pudong New Area,

25 July 2014) Shanghai, PRC leased by the Company
fo Shanghal Huali for their 300mm wafer
production line. The total gross floor area
leased was 96,099.2 square meters.

(7 10 January 2013 Huahong Real Estate (as Huahong Real Estate is a wholly-owned  Lease agreement between Huahong RMB11,504,000  RMB12,000,000
(together with lessor) subsidiary of Huahong Technology Real Estate (as lessor) and the Company (approx. (approx.
a supplemental Development, a company 50% held (as lessee) in relation to the dormitory US§1,696,000)"  US$1,799,000)
agreement dated  The Company (as lessee) by and consolidated with Huahong premises situated at Hua Hong
10 June 2014) Group, a substantial shareholder of the - Innovation Park, Nong 2777, Jinxiu Road

Company, and 50% held by HHGrace, East, Pudong New Area, Shanghai, PRC

a wholly-owned subsidiary of the (“Dormitory Premises”) rented by the

Company. Company from Huahong Real Estate for

use as staff quarters for the Company's

employees. The total gross floor area

rented was 17,412.87 square meters.

8) 1 January 2021 Huajin Property Management  Huajin Property Management is a Property management agreement RMB2445000  RMB4,000,000
(as property manager) wholly-owned subsidiary of Huahong between Huajin Property Management (approx. (approx.
Technology Development, a company  (as property manager) and the Company ~ US$362,000)  US$600,000)

The Company (as lessee)

50% held by and consolidated
with Huahong Group, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and 50%
held by HHGrace, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

(as lessee) in relation to the engagement
of Huajin Property Management by the
Group to provide property management
services for the Dormitory Premises.
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Actual Proposed
Transaction Transaction Annual
Transaction Date Parties to the Transaction ~ Connected Relationship Transaction Amount 2022 Caps 2022
9) 7 September 2022 Huahong Real Estate (as Huahong Real Estate is a wholly-owned  Lease agreement between Huahong RMB1,622,000  RMB1,800,000
lessor) subsidiary of Huahong Technology Real Estate (as lessor) and the Company (approx. (approx.
Development, a company 50% held (as lessee) in relation to the dormitory — US$229,000)  US$270,000)
The Company (as lessee) by and consolidated with Huahong premises situated at Hua Hong
Group, a substantial shareholder of the - Innovation Park, Nong 2777, Jinxiu Road
Company, and 50% held by HHGrace, East, Pudong New Area, Shanghai, PRC
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the (*Additional Dormitory Premises”) rented
Company. by the Company from Huahong Real
Estate for use as staff quarters for the
Company's employees. The total gross
floor area rented was 7,726.32 square
meters.
(10) 7 September 2022 Huajin Property Management  Huajin Property Management is a Property management agreement  RMB268,000 RMB450,000
(as property manager) wholly-owned subsidiary of Huahong between Huajin Property Management (approx. (approx.
Technology Development, a company  (as property manager) and the Company ~ US$38,000) US867,000)
The Company (as lessee) 50% held by and consolidated (as lessee) in relation to the engagement
with Huahong Group, a substantial of Huajin Property Management to
shareholder of the Company, and 50% provide property management Services
held by HHGrace, a wholly-owned for the Additional Dormitory Premises.
subsidliary of the Company.
Notes:
(1) The Group entered into a twenty-year lease with respect to certain dormitory premises from Huahong Real Estate before the

adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 16. Thus, the Group are not required to re-comply with the notifiable
or connected transaction Rules. The amount of rent payable by the Group under the lease is US$1,696,000 per year. As at
31 December 2022, the balances of those right-of-use assets and lease liabilities were US$12,229,000 and US$14,772,000,
respectively.
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The price and terms of the continuing connected transactions as described above were determined in accordance
with the pricing policies and guidelines as set out in the relevant announcements of the Company. The Board (including
the Independent Non-Executive Directors) has reviewed the continuing connected transactions as described above
and confirmed that such transactions did in fact continue in 2022:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(ii) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are no sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have confirmed in a letter to the Board that, with respect to the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions of 2022:

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company’s Board;

(i) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to their attention
that causes the auditors to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Company;

(iii) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to believe that the transactions were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(iv) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to their
attention that causes the auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded
the relevant annual caps disclosed in the relevant announcement(s) with respect to each of the disclosed
continuing connected transactions.

Connected Transactions
The Capital Injection Agreement

On 29 June 2022, the Company, HHGrace, Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin, China IC Fund, China IC Fund Il and Hua Hong
Wuxi entered into the Capital Injection Agreement pursuant to which it is agreed that the registered capital of Hua
Hong Wuxi shall increase from US$1,800 million to approximately US$2,536.85 million, where each of the Company,
HHGrace, Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin and China IC Fund Il shall contribute approximately US$177.78 million, US$230.22
million, US$160 million and US$232 million in cash, respectively as capital injection into Hua Hong Wuxi. Upon
completion of the capital injection, Hua Hong Wuxi remains a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company held as to
approximately 22.22%, 28.78%, 20.00%, 20.58% and 8.42% by the Company, HHGrace, Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin, China
IC Fund and China IC Fund I, respectively.

Hua Hong Wuxi is a connected subsidiary of the Company given it was held as to approximately 29% by China
IC Fund, a substantial shareholder of the Company, prior to the capital injection. Further, Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin
is a connected person at the subsidiary level because it holds 20% of Hua Hong Wuxi as the latter’s substantial
shareholder. Accordingly, each of Hua Hong Wuxi and China IC Fund is a connected person of the Company, and the
transactions contemplated under the Capital Injection Agreement constitute connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The Capital Injection Agreement was approved by the Shareholders at the EGM of the Company on 29 August 2022.
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29 June 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 9
August 2022 for further details of the Capital Injection Agreement.

Related Party Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as
“related parties” under the applicable accounting standards. Details of the related party transactions entered into
by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements. The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed
in the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions and Connected Transactions” in this annual report, the
other related party transactions disclosed in note 35 were not regarded as connected transactions or were exempt
from reporting, announcement, and shareholder approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Performance of the Equity Investments

The table below sets out the breakdown of the performance with respect to the Equity Investments during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Shanghai Huali QST Shanghai Awinic
(USD’000) (USD’000) (USD’000)
[nitial investment cost 229,133 1,704 6,290
Book value at the beginning
of the year 241,242 2,236 14,310
Redemption - - (5,707)
Changes in fair value (48,601) (28) (5,079)
Exchange realignment (18,471) (188) (1,082)
Book value at the end of the year 174,170 2,020 2,442
Dividends received - - -
Gain on disposals - - 1,943
Subscribed capital contribution/
number of shares held RMB1,400,000,000 10,377,050 178,000
Percentage of equity interest held 6.3428% 0.6220% 0.1072%
Size compared to the total
assets of the Company 2.5% 0.0% 0.0%

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group disposed of 350,000 shares of Shanghai Awinic, amounting
US$5,707,000. Decrease in the fair value of the Company’s equity investment in Shanghai Huali, QST, and Shanghai
Awinic were US$48,601,000, US$28,000, and US$5,079,000 respectively.

Shanghai Huali was established in 2010. As an industry-leading IC wafer foundry company, Shanghai Huali has
advanced process technologies and offers comprehensive solutions. It is devoted to providing one-stop wafer foundry
technical services for process technology nodes from 65/55nm to 28/22nm for design companies, IDM companies,
and other system companies. Shanghai Huali has two 12-inch fully-automated wafer fabs in China.

During the financial year of 2022, the book value of the Company’s equity investment in Shanghai Huali decreased
by US$67,072,000, including a decrease of US$48,601,000 in the fair value and a foreign currency statement loss
of around US$18,471,000. Accordingly, the Board is of the view that the performance of Shanghai Huali during the
financial year of 2022 has been in line with its expectations.



2022 FE#HE ANNUAL REPORT 2022 o #EHI@E82E R A7 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 51

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

QST was founded in September 2012 and has a robust IP portfolio, with over 83 patents issued. QST is a leading
sensor platform company engaged in the development and marketing of Innovative MEMS sensors and solutions to
simplify advanced perception, measurement, and control in consumer, automotive, and industrial applications.

During the financial year of 2022, the book value of the Company’s equity investment in QST decreased by
US$216,000, including a decrease of US$28,000 in the fair value and a foreign currency statement loss of around
US$188,000. As the business of QST is still in its early development stage, the Board is of the view that the
performance and strategic planning of QST during 2022 have been consistent with its expectations.

Shanghai Awinic, founded in June 2008, is a high-tech company focusing on high-quality and high-performance IC
design of mixed signal, analog, and RF for mobile phone, Al, Internet of Things, automotive electronics, wearables,
and consumer electronics. Shanghai Awinic is a listed company on the STAR Market of the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

During the financial year of 2022, the Company disposed of 350,000 shares of Shanghai Awinic. The fair
value decreased by US$5,079,000 and there was a foreign currency statement loss of around US$1,082,000.
Notwithstanding the disposal, the Board considers its investment in Shanghai Awinic as part of a long-term strategic
investment, which will see the Group and Shanghai Awinic collaborate in areas such as development of Analog, BCD
(including 12-inch 90nm), eFlash, Power Device, RF and IC technologies, and expansion of production capacity, with
a view to providing more competitive products with higher performance and quality to customers. The Board is of the
view that the performance of Shanghai Awinic during the financial year of 2022 has been in line with its expectation.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the accounting policy of investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKFRS 9, applicable since 1 January 2018) as contained in the annual report of the Company for the

year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company expects the future prospects of the aforementioned investments to be largely in line with that over the
past year. No significant changes in investment strategy or source of funding are expected for the coming year.

Annual General Meeting

The AGM will be held on Thursday, 11 May 2023.

Closure of Register of Members

For determining the eligibility of Shareholders to attend and vote at the AGM

Latest time to lodge transfer documents for registration 4:30 p.m. on 5 May 2023
Closure of register of members 8 May to 11 May 2023 (both dates inclusive)
Record date 11 May 2023

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, unregistered holders of shares should
ensure all share transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates are lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for
registration no later than the aforementioned latest time.



52 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED #1828 5R A 7] « 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE3E

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts
The Directors of the Company during the year and as of the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Suxin Zhang (Chairman)
Mr. Junjun Tang (President)

Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Guodong Sun

Ms. Jing Wang

Mr. Jun Ye

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang

Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP

Mr. Long Fei Ye

Each of the Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term of three years and is subject to re-nomination
and re-election by the Company in general meetings, unless his/her appointment has been early terminated in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the relevant letter of appointment or director’s service contract.

Mr. Guodong Sun, Mr. Jun Ye and Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang will retire by rotation from office as Directors at the
Annual General Meeting, and Mr. Guodong Sun, Mr. Jun Ye and Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election pursuant to the articles of association of the Company.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the general meeting has a service contract which is terminable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from each of the existing Independent Non-
Executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the Independent
Non-Executive Directors are independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
Profiles of Directors and Senior Management of the Company are set out on pages 12 to 18 of this report.

Remuneration of the Highest Paid Individuals and Directors and Senior Management
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report, respectively.
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Interests of the Directors and the Chief Executive in Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company

As at 31 December 2022, save as disclosed below, none of the Directors or the Chief Executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares, or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register kept under section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing
Rules.

Number of underlying Approximate

shares held in long percentage

Name of Director Capacity position™ of interests
Mr. Junjun Tang Beneficial owner 437,500 0.03%

Note:

(1) Long position in the underlying shares of the Company under share options granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

Interests of Directors in a Competing Business

During the year, none of the Directors of the Group had any interests in a business which competes, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Company or the Group.

Interests of Directors in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts of Significance

On 29 June 2022, the Company, HHGrace, Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin, China IC Fund, China IC Fund Il and Hua Hong
Wuxi entered into the Capital Injection Agreement. Mr. Guodong Sun, a non-executive Director of the Company, is the
managing director of Sino IC Capital Co., Ltd., the fund manager of China IC Fund and China IC Fund Il. Therefore,
he was considered to have a material interest in the Capital Injection Agreement. Please refer to the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions and Connected Transactions — Connected Transactions — The Capital Injection
Agreement” for further details of the Capital Injection Agreement.

Save as disclosed above, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries or associates was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director has or had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2022 or at any
time during the year.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has devised its own code of conduct regarding Directors dealing in the Company’s securities (the
“Company Code”) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code. Specific enquiry has been made to all the
Directors, and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Company Code and the Model Code
throughout 2022.

Indemnity and Insurance

The Company provides directors and officers liabilities (D&O) insurance for the Directors and Officers. The D&O
insurance covers day-to-day management liability and is renewed every year.
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Director(s) of the Subsidiaries

The names of Directors who have served on the boards of the Company’s subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2022, or during the period from the end of the year 2022 to the date of this report, were as follows:

Name of the Subsidiary Place of Incorporation Name of the Director(s)
Grace Cayman Cayman Islands Mr. Suxin Zhang

Mr. Jun Ye
HHGrace Shanghai, PRC Mr. Suxin Zhang

Mr. Junjun Tang

Ms. Jing Wang

Mr. Yuchuan Ma

Mr. Takayuki Morita

Mr. Jun Ye

Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang
Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP

Mr. Long Fei Ye

Hua Hong Wuxi Wuxi, PRC Mr. Suxin Zhang
Mr. Jun Wei
Mr. Junjun Tang
Mr. Guodong Sun
Ms. Jing Wang
Ms. Qi Chen'
Mr. Xin Jin
Mr. Xiaoming Zhu?

Huahong Real Estate (Wuxi) Co., Ltd. Wuxi, PRC Mr. Weiping Zhou
Huahong Semiconductor Manufacturing (Wuxi) Wuxi, PRC Mr. Suxin Zhang
Co., Ltd.

Global Synergy Technology Limited Hong Kong, PRC Mr. Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang
Mr. Cheng Fu

HHGrace Semiconductor USA, Inc. CA, USA Mr. Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang
Mr. Cheng Fu

HHGrace Semiconductor Japan Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan Ms. Maki Nakamura
Mr. Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang
Mr. Cheng Fu

Notes:

(1) Ms. Qi Chen’s appointment as a director of Hua Hong Wuxi was registered with the relevant market supervision and
management authority on 13 January 2023.

(2) Mr. Xiaoming Zhu's resignation as a director of Hua Hong Wuxi was registered with the relevant market supervision and
management authority on 13 January 2023.
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Interests of Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2022, persons other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, having interests of 5% or
more or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Group, were as follows:

Approximate
percentage of

aggregate

interests in

Number of issued share

Substantial shareholders Capacity and nature of interest shares held capital*

Shanghai Hua Hong International, Inc. Legal and beneficial owner 347,605,650 26.60%

(“Hua Hong International”)®

Huahong Group® Interest in a controlled 347,605,650 26.60%
corporation

Sino-Alliance International, Ltd. Legal and beneficial owner 160,545,5410® 12.29%

(“Sino-Alliance International”)

Sino-Alliance International Interest in a controlled 28,415,606 217%
corporation

SAIL Interest in a controlled 188,961,147(M® 14.46%
corporation

Xinxin (Hong Kong) Capital Co., Limited Legal and beneficial owner 178,705,925 13.67%

Xun Xin (Shanghai) Investment Co., Ltd. Interest in a controlled 178,705,925 13.67%
corporation

China IC Fund Interest in a controlled 178,705,925 13.67%
corporation

Notes:

(1) Long positions in the shares of the Company.

(2) Hua Hong International is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huahong Group.

(3) Including 3,084 shares held in escrow by Sino-Alliance International pursuant to an escrow arrangement.

(4) SAIL indirectly held interests in the Company through two wholly-owned subsidiaries, including Sino-Alliance International.

* The percentages are calculated based on the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2022, i.e.,
1,306,836,740 shares.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to any of the Directors and the Chief Executive of the Company, as at
31 December 2022, no other person or corporation other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2022 were rights to acquire benefits by means of an acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them, or was the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries, or

fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Major Customers and Suppliers
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the purchases attributable to the Group’s top five suppliers combined were

less than 30% of total purchases, and the turnover attributable to the Group’s top five customers combined was less
than 30% of total turnover.

Emolument Policy

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 6,753 employees. The Group recruits and promotes individuals
based on their merit and development potential. The emolument policy for employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications, and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s

operating results and individual performance. The emoluments of the Directors on a named basis are set out in note 8
to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

For the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities.

Right of First Refusal

There are no provisions for right of first refusal under the Company'’s articles of association, or the laws of Hong Kong,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report in this annual report.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

As far as the Board is aware, the Company has complied in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Company.
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Environmental and Social Responsibilities

Environmental, social, and governance factors have been deeply integrated into the Company’s strategy, management,
and long-term development goal and have been involved in the entire process of our business operations. The
Company firmly believes that the effective management of environmental, social, and governance initiatives, which
mutually influence each other, can promote the long-term development of our business, and help create and share
value for all stakeholders.

Detailed information on the environmental, social, and governance practices adopted by the Company in 2022 is set
out in the 2022 Environmental, Social, and Governance Report.

The Company is committed to reducing the negative impact of its operations on the environment through green
products and green production, thereby providing customers with more environment-friendly products. In active
response to the “Dual Carbon” goal, the Company continued to increase investment in energy conservation and
emission reduction and set energy use and greenhouse gas reduction targets to strengthen its ability to address
climate change risk.

In 2022, the Company actively carried out special transformation of safety and environmental protection technology,
and all of its factories were certified by the ISO14001 environmental management system. Moreover, the Company has
made significant progress in the research and development of technologies in the field of new energy. The seventh
generation IGB technology has been successfully developed and applied in mass production and has been deployed
to mainstream new energy vehicles and photovoltaic power generation, providing solid technical support for the
development of green products in the whole value chain.

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Company is committed to promoting the construction of a sustainable value
chain. In 2022, the Company set an additional goal for ESG management with respect to a sustainable supply chain,
i.e. “a due diligence rate of 100% of suppliers’ conflict minerals and a utilization rate of 100% of compliant minerals”,
so as to strengthen the management of suppliers’ conflict minerals and build up a harmonious industrial ecosystem.

Compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition and the Deed of Right of First
Refusal

Huahong Group, SAIL, and INESA, being the then controlling shareholders of the Company, entered into a deed of
non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) dated 23 September 2014, details of which have been set out in the
paragraph headed “Non-Competition Undertaking” in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”
of the Company’s prospectus dated 3 October 2014 (the “Prospectus”). In addition, Huahong Group and SAIL also
entered into a deed of right of first refusal (the “Deed of Right of First Refusal”’) dated 10 June 2014, details of which
have been set out in the paragraph headed “Right of First Refusal” in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus. The Company has reviewed the written declaration from each of the controlling
shareholders mentioned above on their compliance with their undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition and
the Deed of Right of First Refusal (as the case may be) for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Independent Non-
Executive Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the Deed of
Non-Competition and the Deed of Right of First Refusal (as the case may be) have been complied with by the relevant
parties.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this report, the Directors are satisfied that the Company has maintained the prescribed minimum public float
under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

A resolution will be submitted at the AGM to re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Suxin Zhang
Chairman

30 March 2023
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

The Company adheres to the core values of “showing loyalty to and love for the motherland, always keeping the
promise, being diligent and dedicated, and always fulfilling the mission”, insists on the concept of “openness,
innovation and cooperation”, actively promotes industrial exchanges and cooperation, and responds to the
expectations of stakeholders, including customers, employees and investors with substantive actions, so as to jointly
achieve sustainable development.

The Company makes efforts to implement the environment-friendly and sustainable development concept and
comprehensively improves the performance level of its environmental, social, and governance (ESG) responsibility by
providing green products and promoting the application of green technologies.

The Company has a top-down environmental, social, and governance (ESG) structure, under which the Board
undertakes the ESG responsibilities:

a) to direct the formulation of ESG management policies and strategies of the Company and ensure that they are up
to date, relevant, and in compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements;

b) to direct the identification and determination of the importance of significant ESG issues of the Company;
c) to supervise the setting and implementation of the Company’s ESG goals, including: setting ESG management
performance goals of the Company; monitoring the progress in achieving the goals; and advising on actions

required to achieve the goals;

d) to review and approve the Company’s annual Environmental, Social, and Governance Report and other ESG
related disclosures.

The management and practical progress of ESG issues in this report were considered and approved at the third
meeting of the Board of Directors held in March 20283.
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1 ESG Management System

1.1 ESG Management Structure and Strategies

Based on the corporate vision of “Continuous Innovation and Empowering the Future for Global Customers”, the
Company established a top-down ESG management structure, continues to improve the management system,
encourages innovation-driven development and fosters innovative talents, and strives to reduce the impact of business
operation on the environment. We also make efforts to improve the supply chain performance and promote the joint

creation of corporate business value and social value.

The Board, as the highest decision-making body for the Company’s ESG management, is responsible for supervising
the formulation and implementation of ESG goals, guiding and reviewing ESG management strategies and policies,
properly managing the ESG risks that the Company may suffer and taking ultimate responsibility for such risks. The
Board establishes an inter-departmental ESG working group. Under the authorization of the Board, the ESG working
group assists in the implementation of ESG management and regularly reports to the Board on the progress of ESG
key performance indicators, so as to promote the realization of the Company’s ESG management targets.

ESG Management Structure

Decision-making Level

Board of Directors
Management Level

Implementation Level

ESG Working Group
. [3
B 2 il am | M | 52 5Q
—
@ M| s OB
General Marcom General Compliance Internal Purchase Qc
Office  Department  Affairs  Department  Audit Department Department
Department Department
—
={|l HR || EHS M
s
Planning Human EHS Finance  Marketing Labor
Department Resources Department Department Union
L J

The Company has integrated ESG management into its products, business operations, and corporate
development, and formed a complete ESG management strategy covering the four aspects of “Responsibility

» oo

for Employees”,
Investors”.

Responsibility for the Industry

n o«
)

Responsibility for People’s Livelihood”, and “Responsibility for



“Heart Felt” Value for Employees

® Respect for the Value of Employees

® Caring about the Growth of Employees

® Protecting Occupational Health

“Prosperous” Environment for Society

® Promoting Green Development

® Utilizing Resources Efficiently

® Jointly Promoting Social Harmony
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ESG Management Strategies

Empowering the Future for Global Customers

Responsibility
for the Industry

Responsibility
for Employees

7 {3

® Providing Quality Products

® Guaranteeing Rights & Interests of Customers

® Booming Industrial Economy

Continuous
Innovation
Empowering the
Future for Global
Customers

Responsibility “New” Profits for Shareholders
for People’s

Livelihood

Responsibility
for Investors ® Development through Innovation

® Consolidate Operations with Integrity

& >

® Sharing the Benefits of China’s Growth
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1.2 Goals and Development of ESG Management

The Company has set goals for water use efficiency, energy use efficiency, GHG emissions, and waste reduction,
based on the development of its business and its ESG performance in operation. The Board of Directors reviews the
ESG performance and the achievement of ESG performance goals of the Company for the previous year on an annual
basis and discloses the results in the ESG report, so as to promote the achievement of ESG performance goals.

In 2022, the Company increased the management targets on the topic of “sustainable supply chain” and clearly set

the due diligence targets for conflict minerals to intensify its management of conflict minerals.

ESG Management Targets and Progress in 2022

Aspect

Target

Progress in 2022

Water resources
management

Energy consumption
management

GHG emissions
management

Waste discharge
management

Sustainable supply
chain management!

The water consumed per unit product (m?
per 8-inch wafer) in 2030 will decrease by
12% as compared with 2015

Comprehensive energy consumption per
unit product (MWh per 8-inch wafer) in
2030 will decrease by 7% as compared
with 2015

GHG emissions per unit product (tCO,e
per 8-inch wafer) in 2030 will decrease by
12% as compared with 2015

Under the philosophy of lean
manufacturing management, the
Company will take reduction measures
to continuously reduce the hazardous
waste produced per unit product and the
non-hazardous waste produced per unit
product

The due diligence rate on suppliers of
conflict minerals will reach 100%, and the
utilization rate of compliant minerals will
reach 100%

Target achieved ahead of schedule

The water consumed per unit product in 2022
was 2.46m?3 per 8-inch wafer, decreasing by
23% as compared with 2015

Target achieved ahead of schedule
Comprehensive energy consumption per unit
product in 2022 was 0.25 MWh per 8-inch
wafer, decreasing by 33% as compared with
2015

Target achieved ahead of schedule

GHG emissions per unit product in 2022 was
0.12 tCO,e per 8-inch wafer, decreasing by
52% as compared with 2015

Target achieved

e The hazardous waste produced per unit
product in 2022 was 4.88 kg per 8-inch
wafer, decreasing by 2% as compared
with 2021

e The non-hazardous waste produced
per unit product in 2022 was 2.36 kg
per 8-inch wafer, decreasing by 8% as
compared with 2021

Target achieved

e Have conducted due diligence on
suppliers of “conflict minerals” , with a
coverage rate of 100%, and completed
the latest version of the investigation
report on conflict minerals and extended
minerals

e According to due diligence, all suppliers
are found to use compliant raw materials,
with the utilization rate of compliant
minerals up to 100%

1 The sustainable supply chain management target is a newly added target in 2022
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Social Recognitions in 2022

No.

Honors

@ N O O b

11

National

2022 National May Day Labor Award Certificate

2022 China IC Design Achievement Award: China Semiconductor Special Contribution Award for 20
Years

2021 Excellent (Process) Solution Award for High-Reliability MCUs

Shanghai

2022 Shanghai Worker Pioneer

2022 Shanghai March 8 Red Flag Collective

Shanghai “13th Five-Year Plan” Advanced Collective for Energy Conservation

Quality and Technology Award of Shanghai Association for Quality

2021 Outstanding Contribution Award for Scientific and Technological Innovation in Pudong New Area
Jiangsu Province

Jiangsu May Day Labor Award Certificate

Jiangsu Worker Pioneer

Wuxi Worker Pioneer
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1.3 Involvement of Stakeholders

Based on the business and operational characteristics of our Company and leveraging the experience and practices
in industry at home and abroad, Hua Hong Semiconductor has determined the following to be our stakeholders: our
shareholders, customers, employees, government agencies and regulators, partners, communities, and the public, and
actively communicates with all of these stakeholders via various channels and methods, including websites, media,
meetings, reports, and social activities.

Communications and Issues of Concern of Stakeholders

Communications and

Key stakeholders Description Issues concerned responses
Shareholders and Domestic and foreign Compliant operation, risk Shareholders’ meetings,
senior management investors holding equity management, anti-corruption,  financial reports, performance
and debt investments in customer relationship reports, results road shows,
our Company, and senior management, water resource  etc.
management members of the management
Company
Customers IDMs and fabless Data security and privacy Product exhibitions, customer
semiconductor companies protection, product quality research, technical seminars,
and safety, customer B2B (such as E-tapeout
relationship management, systems, WIP report and WAT
R&D innovation report, etc.), customer service

hotlines, and customer
satisfaction surveys, etc.

Employees Our employees and contract  Employee interests and Employee activities, employee
personnel who serve our welfares, employee health representatives congress,
Company on a continuous and safety, employee intranet, employee trainings,
basis development and training self-service systems,

employee manuals, internal
publications, etc.

Government and Manufacturing, tax, Compliant operation, On-site visit, policy

regulators environmental protection, green products, emissions enforcement, information
security and other management and energy disclosure, etc.
departments, local management

governments, SFC and other
governmental or regulatory

authorities
Partners Suppliers, research Industry development, Public tender conferences,
institutions, industry product quality and safety, strategic cooperation
associations, etc. customer relationship negotiations, exchanges and
management, R&D visits, etc.
innovation, sustainable supply
chain management
Communities and Communities in which we Green products, emissions Community activities,
the public operate, the public and management, community and employee volunteer activities,
media, etc. public benefit public welfare activities,

social cause campaigns, etc.
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In accordance with the Environmental, Social, and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Sustainability Reporting Standards of Global Reporting Initiative (“GRI”), the
Company identified 19 substantial issues in 2022 based on the concerns of internal and external stakeholders, policy
research, and peer benchmark analysis.

Identification &

screening

~

In accordance with
the ESG Guide and
the GRI
Sustainability
Reporting
Standards, conduct
in-depth
interpretation on
laws, regulations
and policies,
industry policies,
corporate strategies
and operation
directions, and the
Company’s ESG
concepts and
policies

ubIH

sieployayels 0] souepodu)

Analysis Process of Substantive Issues

Assessment arid
ranking

~

Based on the
research findings of
domestic and
overseas peer
companies and
expert opinions, the
Company conducts
comprehensive
analysis and ranking
on the importance of
material issues, and
develop the Matrix
of Material ESG
Issues

J

Matrix of Substantive Issues

* Employee development and training
* Responsible marketing

e Community and social welfare

* Risk management

® Industry development

Product quality and safety
Water resources utilization
Green products
R&D innovation

Energy management

Customer relationship management

Anti-corruption
Compliance management
Emissions management
Climate change mitigation and adaptation
Employee health and safety
Employee interests and benefits

Reporting

~

Highly substantive
issues will be mainly
disclosed in the
report according to
the ranking results
of issues

Sustainable supply chain management

Information security and privacy protection

Low

Importance to the Company
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Instructions on Adjustment of Issues

Issues Explanation Form of Adjustment Notes
Responsible The Company ensures the New issue This adjustment more
marketing authenticity and accuracy comprehensively responds to

Water resources
management

Energy
management

R&D innovation

Sustainable supply
chain management

of the product information
provided to customers/
consumers and never
misleads, exaggerates,
or defrauds customers/
consumers during the
marketing process

The type of water resources Restatement
utilized by the Company and
its utilization management,
resource conservation, etc.,
including data disclosure
related to management
methods and resource
utilization

The type of energy utilized Restatement
by the Company and its

utilization management,

energy conservation, etc.,

including data disclosure

related to management

methods and energy

utilization

The Company’s development  Restatement
and management in the field
of scientific and technological
innovation, including
management and planning for
R&D innovation and tracking
progress of products under
development

Supplier classification, Restatement
environmental and social

risk management and green

procurement, including data

disclosure related to supplier

statistics, risk assessment,

etc.

the disclosure requirements in
the ESG Guide of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

This adjustment is more in
line with standard industry
nomenclature and the
Company’s ESG goals and
strategies

This adjustment is more in
line with standard industry
nomenclature and the
Company’s ESG goals and
strategies

This adjustment is more in
line with standard industry
nomenclature and the

Company’s ESG strategies

This adjustment is more in
line with standard industry
nomenclature
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Issues Explanation Form of Adjustment Notes
Information security The Company regulates Restatement -
and privacy data processing activities
protection and ensures data security,
including management
methods, actions, etc.
Customer The Company’s management Restatement -
relationship system and measures related
management to customer relationship,

such as customer service,
customer complaint and
handling, and customer
education, including data
disclosure related to customer
satisfaction, customer service
and complaint

2 Environmental Responsibilities

Main Progress in 2022

Measures

Achievements

Technical transformation related to safety and
environmental protection

A total of 49 special technical transformation projects
related to safety and environmental protection

An investment of RMB17.59 million in safety and
environmental protection

Formulate the “energy conservation project plan of
3000 tons of standard coal”, covering measures for
replacement of equipment with high energy efficiency
but low energy consumption, technical transformation,
etc.

Economic benefit of RMB7.13 million from energy
saving and emission reduction

Reduction of natural gas consumption by 344.4
thousand m?

Reduction of electricity consumption by 412.66 kWh

Reduction of carbon emissions by 2,487.21 tons

2.1 Environmental Management System

The Company adheres to the philosophy of environmental friendliness and sustainable development, strictly abides by
the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations, and has revised
the Exhaust Gas Emission Management Policy, the Related Party Management Procedure, the Radiation Equipment
Management Procedure, the Waste Management Procedure, the Management Regulations for Water Use, the
Resource and Energy Management Procedure, etc. pursuant to the ISO 14001 Environmental Management System. It
has also built an environmental management system covering the whole life cycle and has improved its environmental
management level by continuously optimizing environmental management measures.

In addition, the Company actively promotes energy conservation and emission reduction and reduces the impact
of production on the environment by constructing green buildings, reducing the energy and resource consumption
during operation. In 2022, the Company invested RMB17.59 million in special transformation projects of safety and
environmental protection technologies, with a total of 49 optimization and transformation projects involved.
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During the Reporting Period, the Company has paid the taxes and fees related to environmental protection in full, and
all factories have passed the ISO 14001 System certification, and no violation against the environmental protection
laws and regulations has occurred to the Company.

Certification in Relation to Environmental Responsibilities of Hua Hong Semiconductor

Name of
Certification Coverage

ISO 14001: 2015 Environmental Management System All factories

“Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design” (LEED v4) Gold Award ~ Hua Hong Wuxi

Two-Star Green Building Design Label Certificate Hua Hong Wuxi

QC 080000 Hazardous Substance Process Management System All factories

The Company’s EHS Department is responsible for coordinating its environmental management system, including
formulation of management regulations, performance analysis and evaluation with respect to energy and resource use,
emissions management, etc. It also assists external agencies in the audit and testing of the Company’s environmental
management system. Furthermore, the Company uses the safety management auditing and tracking system to sort
out and list the nonconforming items against the environmental protection regulations found in daily management, then
follow up and record the subsequent rectifications through the regular reminder function of the system.
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Main Resources Used and Management Regulations

Main Energy and Resources

Management Regulations

Energy

Water sources

Raw materials

Electric power, heat, natural gas, and a
small amount of gasoline and diesel

Municipal water supply

Silicon slice, quartz, target material,
gas, and chemicals

Resource and Energy Management Procedure
Management Regulations for Water, Electricity, Steam
and Gas Metering

Management Regulations for Water, Electricity, Steam
and Gas Metering

Management Regulations for Water Use

Standard Operating Procedures for Industrial Water
Supply System, etc.

CSR & RBA Statement for Suppliers

Control Policy for Service Life of Raw Materials

Risk Identification and Countermeasures for Key
Materials

Risk Analysis Form for Key Materials

Management Specification of the Materials
Management Department for Storage of Chemicals and
Gases, etc.
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Overview on Environmental Management Performance

Water Resources

Total water consumed

of which: Water from municipal water supply
Wastewater reused

Water consumed per unit product

Volume of recycled water

18,010,226 m?®
10,284,063 m?
7,726,163 m®

2.46 m?® per 8-inch wafer
107,163,560 m?

Energy

Total electricity consumed

Electricity consumed per unit product
Natural gas consumed

Natural gas consumed per unit product

954,667 MWh

228 kWh per 8-inch wafer
10,530,287 m?®

2.52 m?® per 8-inch wafer

Packaging Materials

Total packaging materials used for finished products
Total packaging materials recycled for finished products

313.32 tons
53.94 tons

Other Raw Materials

Silicon slice, quartz, target material, gas, chemicals and other raw materials for production

4

o)

Supplier environment

and soical »

management

Product R&D and

production »

operation

Green products with

low power
consumption

\4

Build a responsible value chain
and comprehensively evaluate
and manage the environmental
and social risks of suppliers

Implement full-life cycle
environmental management
covering processes from design
and production to disposal, so
as to continuously reduce the
environmental impact of the
products

The Company’s green products
are widely used in clean energy,
new light source LED, etc., thus
contributing to global energy
conservation
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Air Emissions

Total hazardous waste 20,385 tons
Hazardous waste produced per unit product 4.88 kg per 8-inch wafer
Total non-hazardous waste 9,864 tons
Non-hazardous waste produced per unit product 2.36 kg per 8-inch wafer
Waste
Total air emissions 23,910.24 million m?®
Nitrogen oxide (NO,) emissions 32,650 kg
Sulfur dioxide (SO,) emissions 3,546 kg
Greenhouse Gas
GHG emissions 497,938 tCO.e
GHG emissions per unit product 0.12tCO,e per 8-inch wafer
Wastewater
Total wastewater discharge 8.32 million m?®

Green Culture

The Company continuously promotes the environmental protection concept, regularly holds environmental management
sharing sessions, and organizes each production plant to share excellent environmental management cases and
measures at the sharing sessions, so as to strengthen employees’ awareness of environmental protection and the
economical use of office resources and energy.

Practice in Green Culture

Saving paper around the Implementing office informatization to reduce paper consumption.
office e Making efforts to promote the use of recycled paper, including for printing
business cards of employees, to support recycling.

Saving electricity e Turning off the power supply when leaving work or for a long time.
e Reasonably setting air conditioning temperature above 26 T in summer and
below 20T in winter.

Saving water e Developing employees’ awareness of saving water and posting water saving tips.
Waste disposal e (Classifying domestic waste in each factory into 4 categories, namely dry, wet,
recyclable and harmful waste, and putting up posters for waste classification to

raise employees’ awareness.

Commuting e Encouraging employees to commute by public transport.
e Using new energy vehicles as shuttle buses for the Company.

2.2 Energy Management

Energy consumed by the Company is mainly electric power, heat, natural gas, and a small amount of gasoline and
diesel. The Company strictly complies with the Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
laws, regulations and relevant provisions, sets the energy conservation management goals, and formulates various
rules, including the Resource and Energy Management Procedure, the Management Regulations for Water, Electricity,
Steam and Gas Metering, etc. The Company continues to optimize and improve its energy management system, and
constantly enhance the energy efficiency by carrying out various energy-saving technical transformation projects and
by using energy-saving equipment.
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Philosophy

e Carry out source
control and
continuous
improvement
while satisfying
and improving
productivity, and
reduce the impact
on the environment
while reducing
production costs

Energy Management System

Goal

* By 2030, the
Company’ s
comprehensive
energy consumption
per unit product will
decrease by 7%
compared with 2015

Policy

* Resource and
Energy Management
Procedure

* Management
Regulations for Water
Use

* Management
Regulations for
Water, Electricity,
Steam and Gas

Measures

e Carrying out
technical
transformation for
energy-saving

* Regularly engaging
third-party agencies
to conduct energy
audits of the
Company

e Qrganizing energy-
saving publicity

Metering
and implementation

activities and post
energy-saving signs

To ensure the stable supply of electricity and smooth production, the Company developed the Emergency Plan for
Emergency Unloading, the Emergency Plan for Emergency Power Cut and the On-site Treatment Plan of the Power
Department for Power Cut and carried out emergency plan training and emergency drills in fabs on a regular basis.
The power supply is guaranteed through daily inspection, special system investigation, and emergency drills.

The Company has actively carried out a series of energy-saving publicity activities, and upheld the energy-saving and
low-carbon concept, including sharing existing energy-saving action cases, popularizing relevant laws and regulations,
etc. to enhance the energy-saving awareness of all employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Company responded to the “One Percent” Energy Conservation and Carbon
Reduction Initiative in Shanghai Industrial and Communication Industry of Shanghai Municipal Economic and
Informatization Commission, and formulated the “energy conservation project plan of 3000 tons of standard coal”,
covering measures such as the replacement of equipment with poor energy efficiency and high energy consumption,
transforming the process to use equipment with better energy efficiency and lower energy consumption, technical
transformation, waste heat recovery, etc. The Company has also carried out internal and external energy consumption
audits to better sort out and analyze the Company’s energy consumption, enhance its management level and achieve
the goal of energy conservation and efficiency increase.
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Energy Saving Work and Achievements in 2022

Fabs Measures Annual Reduction in Energy Consumption
Fab 1 e To replace the old refrigeration 618,000 kWh
machine with new ones to save Annual reduction in electricity consumption
energy and reduce consumption
Fab 2 e To optimize product flow and reduce 11,700 m?®
usage of pure water and natural gas Annual reduction in natural gas consumption
6,048 tons
Annual reduction in pure water consumption
Fab 3 e  DUPS replacement and renovation 2,562,300 kWh
project in Fab 3 Annual reduction in electricity consumption
Fab 7 e NORD Flash Cell New Process 1,890,000 kWh
Project Annual reduction in electricity consumption

16,000 tons of water

Annual reduction in water consumption
8,000 tons of wastewater

Annual reduction in wastewater discharge

2.3 Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation

The Company recognizes that climate change mitigation is of great significance to enterprises and the world. For this
purpose, the Company formulates the Carbon Trading Management Regulations for achieve carbon emission reduction
in response to China’s “30 - 60" carbon peaking and carbon neutrality goals. The Company has also regularly carried
out carbon emission verification in applicable production factories, continuously improved energy use efficiency in
production and operation, developed products with low-energy consumption, and assisted in the realization of China’s
carbon peaking and carbon neutrality goals.

The Company’s GHG emissions mainly come from direct GHG emissions from the use of natural gas and indirect GHG
emissions from outsourced electricity. The Company carries out GHG emission reduction work from the management
level and the technical level to reduce the carbon emissions generated in its operation activities, thereby lessening the
impact on climate change.
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Major Sources of GHG Emissions

Type of GHG Source

Scope 1 Consumption of natural gas of the Company, gasoline for self-owned vehicles and diesel
for self-owned vehicles

Scope 2 GHG emissions generated by the consumption of outsourced electricity and steam of the
Company

The Company is a key GHG emission entity, with production bases in Shanghai and Wuxi. During the Reporting Period,
the Company conducted a third-party carbon emission audit on all factories in the Shanghai Production Base to ensure
carbon compliance.

Countermeasures against Climate Change

Aspect Content

Management e Establish emergency contingency plans and organize emergency drills and trainings
on a regular basis
e Timely follow up relevant laws and regulations and the government’s new
requirements, and develop relevant improvement plans to meet the new requirements
e Carry out GHG verification, carbon inventory and other work

Technology e Construct and maintain emergency equipment, replace with efficient and energy-
saving equipment, etc.
e Use green energy, high-efficiency and energy-saving equipment, etc. to enhance
energy efficiency and reduce carbon footprint

Product e Use green technology and green raw materials to reduce the generation of harmful
substances and reduce the impact on the environment
e Develop products with lower power consumption and higher efficiency to enhance
energy efficiency of the industry and reduce carbon emissions

Green Products

Green products refer to safe, environment-friendly and high-quality products manufactured in the closed-loop process
of product design, manufacturing, use, scrapping and reuse, during which the green concept is always considered.
Green products are also characterized by low resource and energy consumption, low pollutant emissions, low toxicity
and less harm, easy recycling, treatment and reuse. Based on the environmental footprint throughout the whole life
cycle of a product, the Company actively develops green products, and continuously reduces their impact on the
environment through green procurement, technology improvement and other measures. Meanwhile, the Company’s
green products are widely applied in many industries, which can help reduce their impact on the environment.



Warehousing of
Raw Materials

e Carry out hazardous e

substance
examination and
systematic control
on raw materials

e Review the
qualification and
environmental
compliance of
suppliers and
require suppliers
to sign the
Environmental
Protection
Undertaking
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Environmental Management for the Full Life Cycle of Products

Product Production

Choose production
equipment with
low energy
consumption and
high performance

Implement water
recovery projects to
improve the overall
recycling rate of
water

Implement green
procurement

=

Product Transportation
e Recycle and reuse

product packaging
materials to reduce
the consumption

of packaging
materials and waste
generation

End-user Products

* By helping

customers produce
low energy
consumption
products, reduce
the environmental
impact of the use of
end-user electronic
products

||

Disposal

e The wafers
produced by the
Company are
monitored for
harmful substances,
which means
that the end-user
electronic products
manufactured by
using the wafers
have less impact on
the environment after
disposal

e Recyclable waste
is handed over to
qualified third parties
for recycling

Currently, the Company’s products have been widely applied to the fields of industrial frequency conversion, smart
grid, new energy vehicles, PV and wind power generation, new light source LED, etc. The Company continues to
optimize the energy efficiency of its compound semiconductor power devices, develop silicon-based power devices
with higher energy efficiency, and develop new integrated technical solutions such as BCD600V Highside and HiPower
to provide environment-friendly solutions for variable frequency household appliances and new energy vehicles,
thereby reducing the environmental impact for end users.

Actions for Contribution to Global Climate Change Mitigation
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2.4 Sustainable Water Management

The Company sets water management goals and formulates water management strategies in strict accordance with
the Water Law of the People’s Republic of China. It also introduces higher-efficiency equipment and processes,
continuously optimizes water resources management measures, and enhances its water consumption efficiency.

Water Management Target
Water consumed per unit product (m®8-inch wafers) in 2030 will decrease by 12% as compared with 2015.

Water used by the Company comes from the municipal water supply to a large extent, in addition to a smaller
amount of recycled water and air conditioning condensate from the pure water manufacturing process. The Company
constantly monitors the risk of water resources in areas where we operate through the “Aqueduct Water Risk Atlas”,
an external tool from the World Resources Institute (WRI). We analyze the rationality of water consumption for the
production and operation of our fabs and the possible impact of water intake, and formulate effective measures to
reduce risks and ensure that water resources can support the Company’s sustainable development.

WRI Risk Monitoring Results and Countermeasures of the Company

Water risk monitoring e Type of physical risks: Water consumption risk, drought, decline of groundwater water
indicators level, etc.
e Condition of physical risks: Coastal erosion, untreated water
e |aws, regulations and reputation risks: Quality of drinking water, sanitary conditions,
etc.

Monitoring results e Medium-risk area: Wuxi Fab
e High-risk area: Shanghai Fab

Countermeasures e Relying on water monitoring sites for each fab, the Company has conducted water
balance tests on a regular basis to calculate the process water, recycled water,
wastewater, and domestic water of each fab

e The Company records the flow, volume and recycling of water resources, so as to
analyze whether there is any abnormal utilization of water resources and predict the
reasonable allocation of water resources among water-consuming units

e Build green buildings, upgrade or replace equipment with high water consumption, and
enhance water consumption efficiency

e Expand the sources of water resources, recycle air-conditioning condensate, organic
wastewater, etc., and refine the recycled water into industrial water

e Carry out water-saving awareness publicity activities, and post water-saving signs

The Company has continuously improved the lean management of water resources, formulated management
regulations such as the Standard Operating Procedures for Industrial Water Supply System and the Disposal
Procedures for Abnormal Tap Water Supply, established sound ledger management mechanism to regularly conduct
statistics, analysis and improvement on water consumption. While meeting the reasonable water demand, the
Company makes efforts to save water resources and maintain sustainable water balance. By taking measures such as
water-saving publicity activities, the Company has reduced water consumption in all aspects and continuously reduced
water consumption in production systems and process systems. In addition, the Company is committed to taking
water-saving measures such as water-saving technological transformation and wastewater recycling in production and
operation, and constantly improving efficiency in the use of water resources in all fabs.
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Water Consumed Per Unit Product in Recent Three Years

o9 2.89

2.8
2.7
2.6
2.5
2.4
2.3
2.2
2.1

Water consumed per unit product
Unit: m® per 8-inch wafer

2020 2021 2022

Year

During the Reporting Period, the Company won the second prize of the 2022 Shanghai Industrial Water Reuse and
Comprehensive Rainwater Utilization Award.

Water Resources Management Work and Achievements in 2022

Actions Measures Achievements

° Recycling of ° Lightly contaminated cleaning water containing Recycled water:
process cleaning inorganic acid and organic matters discharged 7,575 mé/day
water from production shall be collected separately by

pipeline and delivered to the transit tank. If the
water quality is unqualified, it shall be discharged
to the industrial wastewater system; if the water
quality is qualified, it shall be recycled to the pure
water system for secondary use after treatment
with activated carbon and anion resin, so as to
reduce the tap water consumption and wastewater

treatment.

° Recycling of ° Primary RO concentrated water will be produced Recycled water:
primary RO in the ultra-pure water reverse osmosis treatment 2,300 mé/day
concentrated water system, and will be recycled.

° Recycling of ° Condensed water from air conditioning system Recycled water: 440
condensed water will be recycled and used in cooling tower and for ~ m?3/day

exhaust gas washing.

Moreover, in the Supplier Questionnaires, the Company requires the major suppliers to disclose information on
sustainable management of water resources use, including water consumption statistics for production and operation,
water-saving measures, water-saving goals of the suppliers, etc., so as to continuously reduce the water footprint of
products. During the Reporting Period, the Company carried out actions related to water resource management and
performance surveys on silicon wafer suppliers, with the coverage ratio of 100%.
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2.5 Emissions Management

In order to meet the emission standards and reduce the impact on environment, the Company has standardized the
management of air emissions, wastewater and waste discharge in strict accordance with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes, Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Soil Pollution, Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution, as well as other laws and regulations and relevant provisions. During the Reporting Period, no incident of
excessive or illegal discharge of pollutants has occurred to the Company, nor has any litigation case arising from the
above incidents occurred.

Air Emission Discharge Management

The Company strictly complies with national and local discharge requirements such as the Discharge Standards of
Pollutants for Semiconductor Industry (DB31/374-2006). The Company has formulated improved testing plans and
management measures for the air emissions discharged during production, including sulfuric acid mist, hydrogen
chloride (HCI), nitric oxide (NOx), ammonia (NH,), and volatile organic compounds (VOCs). The Company has further
developed testing plans for major air emissions according to the production situation and regularly carried out testing
and evaluation to ensure the compliance of air emissions.

Air Emissions Management

Type Treatment Method

Air Emissions Acid air emission Up-to-standard discharge after removing most of the
components through pretreatment and centralized treatment
of the washing tower

Alkaline air emission (mainly Purification through a washing tower

ammonia gas)

Organic air emission Purification through activated carbon adsorption, or
combustion after concentration

Air Emissions containing dust Removal through a dust-extraction unit

(mainly small particulates of silicon

dioxide)

The Company has standardized the requirements on online monitoring and management of organic waste gas,
improved the on-site supervision capacity of its fabs; The Company’s waste gas treatment facilities are maintained at a
higher level of treatment efficiency through annual overhaul and other measures.

In addition, the Company optimized and improved the treatment technology of its organic waste gas treatment system,
enhanced the treatment efficiency of the system, and reduced the emission of organic waste gas.
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Waste Management

The Company maintains consistently high standards and strict requirements in the implementation of the waste
management system. The Company has formulated the Waste Management Procedure, the Code of Practice for
Industrial Waste Management and other management regulations to standardize waste management operations and
recorded and managed waste treatment through the unified environmental protection management system of the
government to ensure all transportation records are traceable and controllable.

Hazardous wastes generated in the Company’s production and operation activities include waste acid and waste
isopropanol. The Company has authorized a qualified third-party company for treatment of hazardous wastes, mainly
by means of incineration, physical-chemical treatment, and recycling. Non-hazardous solid waste was recycled by the
Company or submitted to a qualified third-party agency for collection and treatment to improve the utilization efficiency.

Waste Management Measures

In-house waste management Outsourced recycling and reuse Reused for other industrial purpose

* Raw materials are recycled in the e Submitted to a qualified third- e Wastes are recovered, recycled
fabs, such as raw materials for party company for recycling and and reused for other industrial
production and office supplies, to disposal purpose

delay raw materials from becoming
waste
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Classification and Treatment Methods of Waste

Categories Treatment Method

Non-hazardous waste Domestic waste and kitchen garbage Entrusting the environmental sanitation
departments in the places where
we operate for unified disposal on a
regular basis

Such as sludge Landfilling
Hazardous waste Such as waste acid, waste isopropanol, and Recycling
waste phosphoric acid
Such as waste glass bottles, 200L chemical Physical-chemical treatment

barrels, and waste liquid from laboratory

Such as cleaning cloths, plastic bottles, organic Incineration
waste liquid, waste activated carbon, waste

resin, and arsenic-containing waste

The Company has established a waste discharge management system, and reduced the impact on the environment
through technological transformation and reuse of waste based on the concept of “reduction from the source” and
“circular economy”. Since 2017, the Company has carried out work to reduce the discharge of various hazardous
wastes every year to constantly reduce the impact of hazardous waste emissions on the environment.

In 2022, Hua Hong Fab 3 built and put into use an ammonia-nitrogen treatment tank for innocuous treatment of
ammonia-containing waste. Waste sulfuric acid generated in the treatment process was delivered to titanium dioxide
manufacturers for recycling and reuse, so as to enhance the utilization efficiency of resources.

Wastewater Discharge Management

The Company strictly complies with the Discharge Standard of Water Pollutants for Electronic Industry (GB39731-2020),
the Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard (DB31/199-2018), the Waste Water Quality Standards for Discharge to
Municipal Sewers (GBT 31962-2015) — Grade B Standard, and formulates the Management System for Drainage and
Waste. The Company also reduces the generation of wastewater by continuously optimizing manufacturing processes
and wastewater recovery.

In terms of pollution discharge and information disclosure, the Company carried out online monitoring and
management of wastewater, with relevant data of Shanghai Fab disclosed on the environmental information disclosure

platform, thus improving transparency of environmental information for the Company.

Wastewater Discharge Management

Categories Treatment Method

Wastewater pH, COD, ammonia nitrogen, fluorine ion, etc. Discharged through a pipeline into
a designated urban sewage pipe
network after treatment and meeting
relevant standards

In 2022, the Shanghai Fab self-monitored the soil and groundwater in its fabs according to the requirements of the
Technical Guide for Self-Monitoring of Soil and Groundwater for Industrial Enterprises (HJ1209) issued by the Shanghai
Municipal Bureau of Ecology and Environment, and prepared a complete soil and groundwater monitoring report,
ensuring that the wastewater discharge complies with the laws, regulations and relevant standards.
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3 Employee-Related Responsibilities

3.1 Rights and Benefits of Employees

Rights and Interests of Employees

The Company strictly complies with laws and regulations including the Labor Law of the PRC and the Law on
Employment Contracts of the PRC. We insist on fair employment, implement the principle of equal pay for equal work,
and ensure that employees are not discriminated against or treated differently based on non-work factors including
age, gender, place of birth, religious belief, marital status, or disability. We prohibit the employment of child labor or
forced labor.

The Company has formulated relevant management regulations, including the Employment Procedures and the
Management Procedures for Trainees. The Company strictly checks the identity information of employees and never
employs adolescents under the age of 16. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Company had 6,760 regular
employees. As at the end of the Reporting Period, it has neither infringed the rights and interests of its employees, nor
been subject to complaints or penalties by a regulatory authority.

Overview on Employee Rights and Interests

Recruitment and Remuneration Working Hours and Democratic
Dismissal Vacation System Participation
* Recruitment: e The Company * A standard working e Establishing labor
Adhering to provides hours system union, employee

the principle of
fairness, equity and

competitive
salaries for

is adopted. A
comprehensive or

congress, etc.
to ensure the

openness;

Dismissal: The
Company and
employees

go through
the dismissal
procedure
according to
relevant laws,
regulations, and
the Dismissal
Management
Procedure.

employees, which
are higher than
the minimum wage
in the place of
operation.

flexible working
hours system is
adopted for certain
positions with the
approval of the
government labor
and personnel
authorities;

Based on holidays
and festivals
specified by the
government,
supplementary
annual leaves

are provided for
employees.

democratic
participation of
employees in
the Company’ s
decision-making.
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Employee Communication

An unblocked communication channel is favorable to the establishment of harmonious labor relations. The Company
is committed to building and improving employee communication and feedback mechanisms and has formulated the
Employee Communication Rules and encouraged the multi-way communication between the Company and employees,
between officers and subordinate officers, and among employees through the creation of multiple communication
channels.

In May 2022, the Company held a symposium for young employees with the theme of “Devoting to forging a new
journey in the new era”. The Company’s leaders, the Chairman of the Trade Union and many young front-line
employees attended the symposium and shared their work experience and feelings, which enhanced the cohesion
among employees.

Employee Diversity

Hua Hong attaches great importance to the diversity of employees, formulates relevant regulations and procedures,
and continues to create an open, inclusive, respectful and diverse employment environment. We respect the lifestyle of
all kinds of employees and try to provide them with convenient conditions to meet their living habits. The Company is
also committed to creating better office and service facilities for employees and improving their happiness.

Measures for Creating a Good Working Environment

Office
)
.).\;a e An air purification system is installed to improve office air quality;
\H/
e  Green space is increased in office areas.
Diet
* e  There are staff canteens and coffee shops in factory zones;

e  Establishing a food safety supervision team, adopting the mode of centralized purchasing of
food materials and qualified supplier management, and inviting employees and department
representatives to carry out supervision;

e Publishing the canteen food cooking guideline to manage balanced nutrition, oil and salt control, for
the employees’ diet in the canteens.
Accommodation
I.- e Construction of dormitory with private bathrooms, 24-hour supply of hot water, and WIFI network,

etc.;

e The dormitory area has a library, computer room, snooker room, laundry, TV room, HIVE BOX, and
other facilities.

Travel
e  Providing all employees with travel allowance;

e  Providing free commuter bus services between the park, subway stations, and the dormitory;

e  Creating a commuting route for employees living in the transit-challenged areas and arranging
commuter bus services for departments which need to have such services on weekends.
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In terms of care for female employees, we care for the welfare and development of female employees, by organizing
a special physical examination every year, continuously improving human-based management of lactating employees,
and providing relevant service facilities to ensure convenience for pregnant employees and lactating employees at
work.

Employees by gender Employees by age

= Male Female = Under 30 30-50 = Over 50

In addition, the Company established the Employee Assistance Mechanism, under which we provide assistance for
needy employees at special festivals such as Spring Festival, Labor Day, and Mid-Autumn Festival, in addition to
routine expression of sympathy and solicitude to injured or families of diseased employees; and we give timely care
and support to employees who suffer a significant misfortune and help them overcome their plight as soon as possible
through multiple forms of assistance including donation, support, care, and nursing.

3.2 Employee Health and Safety

The Company attaches great importance to occupational health and safety of employees, and strictly complies with the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases, the Production Safety Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurances, as well as other laws, regulations
and provisions. The Company has established a complete occupational health and safety system that meets the safety
goal of “zero accident for production safety”, defining the occupational health and safety policy, so as to provide
employees with a good working environment and ensure their occupational health.
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Occupational Health and Safety Management System

Occupational Health and Safety Management Policy
The Company strictly complies with safety, health, and environmental protection regulations; makes efforts for clean production; carries ouf
continuous improvement; creates a safe, healthy, and comfortable working environment for employees; and strenuously pursues the highest

goal of “zero accidents” and sustainable operation, becoming a model corporate citizen in the world.

System e The Company has established the Safe Management e Emergency response to hazards/environmental
Construction Production Committee; implemented the Factors factors;

Committee’ s Safe Production Responsibility e Special equipment and posts;

System; and implemented the Regular Safety e Chemicals management;

Meeting System; e Occupational health monitoring and Protection.

e All employees at all levels are required to
sign the Safety Responsibility Letter, so as to
implement the Safe Production Responsibility
System for the staff.

Internal Audit, e Safety technology transformation; Construction e Safety awareness and safety training;
Inspection e Establishing a dual prevention work of Safety e Emergency drills.

and Hazard mechanism of hierarchical control of Culture

Identification safety risks and management or hazard

identification.

Safe Production

Improving the Establishment of Systems

The Company pays great attention to safety assurance of employees in the production process, strictly abides by
the Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, and formulates the Implementation Measures for the
Production Safety Responsibility System of the Production Safety Committee. We also establish the safe production
management committee and the weekly production safety meeting system to ensure the stable operation of the
Company’s safe production system. In accordance with the requirements of the Production Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Company optimizes various management systems for production safety, consolidates safety
responsibilities, intensifies the dual control system, strengthens the emergency response mechanism, ensures safety
investment, and facilitates the construction of corporate safety culture.

In 2022, the Company actively implemented the standardization, systematization and intelligent construction of safety
work, and optimized the production safety responsibility system of all employees. In accordance with the principle of
“one post with one responsibility” and “whoever takes charge and uses shall take the responsibility”, the Company
has compiled a Safety Responsibility Letter covering all staff with “General Terms + Functional Departments +
Business Departments” by combining the post functions. 100% of our employees have signed the Letter. Meanwhile,
our contractors are required to sign the “Letter of Commitment on Safety and Environmental Protection”, so as to
make every department and every employee take their respective responsibility, and optimize the production safety
responsibility system of all employees.

In addition, the Company improved systematic procedure management based on its operation experience, established
and perfected safety management systems such as safety accident/incident/hidden danger troubleshooting and
tracking system, special equipment registration system, equipment terminal infrared detection and recording
system, etc., and keep data records to ensure the implementation of corrective measures, thereby standardizing the
implementation of procedures and enhancing the Company’s safety management efficiency and safety operation level.

So far, all production bases of the Company in Shanghai and Wuxi have passed the certification of I1ISO 45001
International Occupational Health and Safety Management System.
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Name of Production Base ISO 45001 Certification Term of Validity
Hua Hong Shanghai Production Base Certified 18 April 2024
Hua Hong Wuxi Production Base Certified 18 April 2024

Construction of Production Safety Culture

In order to carry out the construction of production safety culture and strengthen the staff's awareness of safety culture,
the Company organized a series of special activities such as “Production Safety Month”, “Safety & Health Cup”, “Fire
Protection Month”, and conducted carried out activities such as production safety publicity, education and training, as
well as safety knowledge and skills competition. Various safety publicity and demonstration activities have effectively
enhanced the safety awareness and safety knowledge reserve of employees, and promoted all staff to fulfill their safety

commitments and responsibilities.

Actions for Construction of Production Safety Culture in 2022

Action Name Content and Effect
Strengthening safety e Carry out diversified trainings on various safety themes, such as “new employee
training safety, work resumption safety, production safety standardization, fire fighting skills,

occupational health, emergency management system, public security and prevention
of telecom fraud, and restaurant & traffic safety”, to ensure the 100% patrticipation
rate in safety education and training, the 100% certificate holding rate for all
employees, with approximately 24,423 trainees.

e Organize all staff to participate in the national online contest on knowledge about the
“New Safety Law”, and constantly enhance the staff’s safety awareness and ability.

Enhancing emergency e Each production base has organized and implemented more than 70 comprehensive
response capability and special emergency plan drills and more than 1,000 on-site emergency response
trainings, with a training rate of 100%.

e Complete the expert review and filing of production safety emergency plans,
establish and improve the normative documents such as rapid emergency response
procedures to abnormal conditions for production base, and organize weekly
training, quarterly practice, and annual competition.

e Hold ERT personal skills competition and ERT fire fighting skills competition, and
build an emergency management system communication platform by carrying out
activities.

e Organize and carry out the “Fire Protection Month” fire knowledge display board
publicity, fire fighting skill trainings, evacuation and escape drills for all staff, and
enhance the staff's safety awareness and emergency response ability.

Selecting excellent e Conduct annual evaluation on excellent safety and technical skills, and organize
cases learning and exchange activities.
e Carry out evaluation on typical accidents and hidden dangers, with a total of 24
excellent cases awarded.
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Safety Risk Prevention Facilities and Measures for Employees

@

[
Fire fighting facilities Alarming and monitoring system Emergency measures
e Establishing the complete fire e  Our clean workshops e Establish an emergency
fighting system and automatic are equipped with toxic, rescue team and formulate
alarming system. hazardous and flammable emergency response plans
gas alarming system, liquid for different disasters; and
leakage detector and ultra- regularly organize special
high sensitivity smoke disaster prevention drills and
detector. rectify any problem found in a

timely manner.

Chemical Safety Management

With regard to safety protection of chemicals, the Company has formulated a number of management policies and
operation procedures, including the Chemicals Management Procedure, the Chemical Substance Review Procedure,
the Special Emergency Plan for Chemical Leakage, the Inspection and Registration System for Chemicals Coming In
and Out of the Warehouse, the Management Measures for Chemical Turn-on, etc..

Hazardous Chemicals Used in the Manufacturing of Hua Hong Semiconductor Chips

Type Name

Flammable liquid Isopropanol, photoresist and diesel

Oxidants and organic peroxides Hydrogen peroxide

Toxic chemicals Phosphine and fluorine

Corrosive chemicals Sulfuric acid, hydrochloric acid, hydrofluoric acid, phosphoric acid, mixed acid,

ammonia water and sodium hydroxide
Compressed and liquefied gas Hydrogen, methane, silane, nitrogen, oxygen, argon, helium, ammonia and chlorine

The Company has established a factory chemical review committee to comprehensively evaluate the environmental
protection and safety qualifications and risk prevention and control capabilities of chemical suppliers in advance the
Company adopts the chemical substance management system to manage the use, storage and disposal of chemicals,
control the maximum storage of chemicals, and dynamically monitor their use and consumption. In addition, the
Company makes efforts to eliminate on-site hazard sources and reduce safety risks from the source by giving priority
to the use of new technologies and by replacing toxic and flammable hazardous chemicals with non-toxic chemicals.
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Hua Hong Hazardous Chemicals Management Procedure

Transportation and

Use and Disposal

The purchase and
marketing personnel
of chemicals shall
work with qualification
certificates, and ask
for chemical safety
specifications and
chemical safety labels
when purchasing
hazardous chemicals.

Storage

Vehicles transporting
hazardous chemicals
shall be used for
special purpose to
prevent the chemicals
from "running out,
spilling, dripping or
leaking";

Chemicals shall be
separated, classified
and stored by

their performance,
managed by special
personnel and
regularly inspected.

Hazardous chemicals
shall be used in strict
accordance with

the safe operation
procedures;

Hazardous chemicals
that need to be
disposed of shall be
collected by special
personnel, sent to the
Company's hazardous
waste warehouse,
and then delivered to
the hazardous waste
disposal agency for

centralized disposal.

- J - J - J

Employee Health

Management of Occupational Hazard Factors

In order to provide occupational health protection for employees, the Company identifies occupational hazard factors
of employees and formulates corresponding countermeasures in strict accordance with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases and other laws and regulations. The Company’s
job positions involving occupational hazard factors mainly include ion implantation, diffusion, etching, chemical
mechanical grinding, power gasification and other positions involving equipment operation.

Identification of Occupational Hazard Factors of Employees and Countermeasures

Job Positions with

Occupational Hazards Occupational Hazard Factors Countermeasures

lon implantation, diffusion, etching, Fluorine and its inorganic compounds, ® The equipment in the clean room
chemical mechanical grinding, power hydrofluoric acid, hydrochloric acid, is automatically operated in the
gasification and other positions nitric acid, sulfuric acid, phosphoric closed space, and is equipped
involving equipment operation acid, ammonia water, hydrogen with closed process exhaust

peroxide, arsenic and its compounds, system
phosphorus and its compounds,
isopropanol, etc. e Provide employees with personal

protective articles and emergency
response devices, and regularly
check such articles and devices to
ensure their effectiveness

In addition, the Company engages external organizations to test the occupational hazards in its production
environment every year, so as to ensure that the occupational exposure limits for harmful factors are not exceeded
in the production environment, and the Company informs all employees of the test results. In 2022, the Company has
replaced the toxic methanol used for wastewater treatment in its factories with non-toxic 25% food-grade glucose
solution, thereby continuously reducing the occupational hazard exposure risk of employees.
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Improvement of Employee Health

The Company provides an annual health check-up for all employees, including multiple cancer screenings and other
items, and establishes employee health records to systematically track the changes in employees’ health status. The
Company carries out various activities to promote healthy lifestyle to employees, such as health lectures on the theme
of “How to stay away from the risk of “hypertension, hyperlipemia and hyperglycemia”, “Guidelines for People Infected
with COVID-19 at Home” and “Prevention of facial paralysis in alternate seasons”, to encourage the employees to live

and work in a healthy way.
3.3 Employee Development and Training

Employee Training

The Company has established a sound employee education and training system, and formulated the Operating
Procedure of Internal Training System Review, the Education and Training Procedure and department-level training
procedures, which are constantly adjusted according to the strategic development and employee needs, to meet the
all-round and multi-level training needs of employees in different positions.

The Company has established training facilities (special training rooms and equipment), learning and sharing platforms
(including online training registration management platform, training material and position-specific question bank and
multimedia learning courseware, etc.), and where necessary, uses external resources for ensuring employees learning
and development.

In 2022, the Company continuously carried out “Special Training Camp for Newly-hired Recent College Graduates”
training program, and in addition to the refining and concentration of professional theory and practical training into
three major series of courses, namely “new era”, “new revelation” and “new talents”, it further offers courses regarding
corporate culture and political literacy, and organizes visits to bases of Chinese revolution, which helped its new

employees quickly integrate into the team and meet the challenges of their future work with full enthusiasm.

Employee System

Trainees Training Contents 2022 Performance

Role recognition, self-management,
management of others, and working
Grass-roots managers management

Develop management skills of front- Percentage of employees
line shift and team leaders, cultivate trained: 100%
a front-line management team with
high quality and high business ability,
and lay a solid foundation for the
Front-line managers Company’s management

Career quality, corporate culture,
introduction to special skills and other
Newly-employed university students  courses e Average training hours per
Courses about theory and practical employee: 123.7 hours
training of the semiconductor
Front-line employees manufacturing module
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Career Development

The Company has clear and transparent promotion channels for employees, regularly evaluates employee performance
and provides employees with feedback on individual performance and offers personal career development plans
for the development of employees. According to industrial characteristics, the Company has set three professional
categories, namely, management, technology and functional support and has established corresponding job training.
Employees may continuously develop their careers in a single professional title category according to their own
specialties, potential, and desires. Moreover, they are able to shift from technology to management.

In addition, the Company has formulated the Implementation Measures for Academic Education Subsidy, which
encourages employees to improve their professional and technical knowledge and provides 16 employees with on-
the-job academic education subsidies in 2022, so as to promote work performance and efficiency improvement, and
continuously train high-quality talent that meets the current and future needs of the Company, thus further improving its
comprehensive competitiveness.

As of the end of the reporting period, the overall employee turnover rate of the Company was 12%. Specifically, the
employee turnover rates by gender, age and region are as follows.

Employee Turnover Rate of Hua Hong Semiconductor in 2022

Category Turnover rate (%)
Male employees 12.83

Female employees 9.74

Employees aged below 30 18.34

Employees aged 30 to 50 7.23

Employees aged above 50 0.65

Employees in mainland China 12

Employees from overseas 0

4 Products and Services

4.1 Product R&D and Innovation

Construction of an Innovative Technology R&D System

R&D and innovation are the critical basis for promoting the continuous upgrading of products and ensuring the
sustainable development of the Company. In the process of product R&D and innovation, Hua Hong abides by the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Progress of Science and Technology, the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Science and Technology Progress and the requirements of other laws and regulations, constantly develops
and upgrades new technologies, and leads the development of wafer manufacturing process and chip design by
focusing on its corporate vision of “Continuous Innovation and Empowering the Future for Global Customers”.

In order to stimulate employees’ motivation to invest in innovation and R&D, the Company has established the Value
Engineering (VE) proposal system to support employees’ exploration into their potential and contribution to product
innovation through standardized application process, review and reward procedures. The system involves the reduction
of raw materials and energy consumption, human resources optimization and production capacity improvement, as
well as process and procedure optimization, which can support the improvement and innovative development of all
business modules of the Company. All employees in the management, technology, quality control, manufacturing
engineering and other relevant support departments can participate in the quantitative review, recognition and reward
activities of VE proposals via this system.
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In addition, the Company attaches great importance to scientific research innovation and open cooperation, and has
established the first workstation of academicians and experts and the first science and technology association of
enterprises in the IC industry in Shanghai. Through the introduction of experts, project cooperation, talent training,
academic exchange and other approaches, the Company strives to build an industry-university-research technology
innovation system, so as to promote the transformation of scientific and technological achievements into productive
forces.

Seizing the Clean Energy Opportunity

With the accelerated adjustment of the global energy structure, promoting the use of clean energy has become the
focus of development for more and more enterprises. Hua Hong has actively seized the opportunity of clean energy
and applied the main process platforms in different application fields to facilitate the development of green products in
the downstream value chain.

Hua Hong has accumulated substantial technology and experience in the manufacturing process of upstream
components in the new energy application field, such as new energy power generation, etc., which can effectively
support its energy transformation and development. Currently, the semiconductor components for new energy, which
are already at the international advanced level, will further explore into the technology and reliability of the 8-inch wafer
production platform, and gradually transformed to the 12-inch process platform. Hua Hong focuses on development of
the “8-inch + 12-inch wafer” production platform, vigorously implements the core development strategy of advanced
“Specialty IC + Power Discrete” product mix, and fully supports the high-quality supply capacity of localized
components in the new energy infrastructure and application fields. Hua Hong power discrete devices and non-volatile
memory processes play an important role in supporting the development of products in the new energy application
fields, such as new energy vehicles, energy-saving household appliances, etc.

Products for Supporting Clean Energy Development

Discrete Non-volatile Memory Process

Power discrete is an important device for Non-volatile memory process is widely

new energy power generation and new
energy applications. For example, a large
number of IGBTs, MOSFETs and other
devices are required for PV and wind power
generation equipment, electric vehicles and
electric two-wheelers.

used in chip applications such as MCUs
and ASICs, and these chips are also widely
applied to new energy end-user application,
such as electric tools, electric two-wheelers,
electric vehicles, etc.

\_ J \_ J
4 ) 4 )

The Company has accumulated a large
number of customers in this field, and
has maintained good partnership with
leading enterprises in the field for a long
time to conduct in-depth development and
cooperation together. So far, the revenue
of power discrete devices has taken up a

the local manufacturing of automotive

significant part of the Company’ s revenue.
_J

According to IC Insights, the automotive
market accounts for more than 30% of the
global MCU consumption market. All of Hua
Hong’ s fabs have passed the IATF 16949
certification for automotive industry, making
important contributions to supporting

semiconductors.

J
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In 2022, the Company made significant progress in research and development of technologies applied in the field of
new energy, helping accelerate the transformation progress of the global clean energy.

Development Progress of Technologies Boosting New Energy Transformation in 2022

The seventh generation IGBT technology has been successfully developed and put into mass
production. It has been widely used in mainstream new energy vehicles and PV power generation field.

The new super-junction technology has been developed and has been applied to the electric vehicle
charging pile and on-board charger (OBC) solutions. Compared with the original super-junction
technology, the optimized solution has reduced the process steps by 25%, and lowered the energy
consumption by about 10% on average, further improving the effect of energy conservation and
emission reduction.

In the future, the Company will further promote the development of silicon-based power devices capable of achieving
higher energy efficiency, and initiate the development of compound semiconductor power devices characterized
by high power density and low energy consumption, so as to provide continuously optimized solutions for products
applied to the clean energy sector, such as variable frequency household appliances, new energy vehicles, and to
further improve energy efficiency.

Intellectual Property Protection

The Company advocates independent innovation and respect for intellectual property rights, particularly in the
research and development of application-specific integrated circuits, including intelligent chips and information
security chips. The Company strictly complies with the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Copyright
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China and other laws and
regulations, and formulates the internal management regulations, such as the Management Regulations for Intellectual
Property, to strengthen the protection and management of the Company’s intellectual property rights.

The Company has actively filed applications for patents and investigated responsibility for any potential breaches of
intellectual property rights. At the same time, we promise that we will never infringe upon the intellectual property rights
of any enterprise or individual, and will keep confidential all technological information regarding products of upstream
and downstream partners. To reduce the risk of claims of infringement of third-party intellectual property rights against
our manufacturing of semiconductor devices or end-user products, we conduct reputational and potential risk audit on
customers before accepting product orders, and we have entered into several technology licensing agreements with
major technical companies.

Patent Applications in 2022

Number of
Type of Patents Patents (Iltems)
Total number of patents applied for in the year 654
Total number of patents approved in the year 331

Total number of Chinese and U.S. invention patents obtained 4,139
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4.2 Product Quality and Safety

Quality Management System

The Company strictly complies with the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Product Quality and other quality
laws and regulations, and has formulated the Quality Manual, Code of Practice for Quality Objective Management and
other rules. The Company carries out quality management work pursuant to these law, regulations and rules. So far,
all the production bases of Hua Hong have successfully passed the ISO 9001 Quality Management System and the
IATF 16949 QMS certification for the automotive industry. The Company implements a synthesized quality management
model covering five comprehensive modules of quality system and customer satisfaction, supplier management and
raw material analysis, quality assurance, reliability assurance, and failure analysis.

Name of Production Base Certification Term of Validity

Hua Hong Shanghai ISO 9001 Quality Management System 21 May 2024
Production Base IATF 16949 Quality Management System for Automotive Industry 21 May 2024

Hua Hong Wuxi Production  ISO 9001 Quality Management System 11 November 2025
Base IATF 16949 Quality Management System for Automotive Industry 29 December 2023

In accordance with the policies, the Company carries out quality management. The Company shall comprehensively
implement excellent performance management, and deeply promote the integration of industrialization and
informatization. Actively fulfilling corporate social responsibility, the Company strictly adheres to Zero Defects concept
and ensures the delivery of green and high-quality products in a timely order, to continuously provide competitive
services. Besides, the Company is supposed to fully meet customer requirements and unremittingly improve customer
satisfaction, so as to achieve mutual benefits and a win-win situation.

Whole-Process Quality Assurance Measures

~

Quality Pursue excellent quality by multiple management systems, such as
assurance personnel management, equipment management, supply chain management,
by multiple environment management, system management, process management, and

customer quality control.
systems

/

Real-time With these reliable management systems, we are able to achieve real-time
monitoring and testing over our entire product cycles from product R&D to
production and after-sales feedback; carry out failure analysis on anomalies

monitoring

and that may arise during the production and application processes; dig out the
prevention nature of problems; and work out corresponding corrective and preventive
measures.
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During the daily quality management process, the Company holds various daily management meetings to ensure the
product quality meets expectations according to the requirements of the overall quality system, such as materials
review meetings, change management committee meetings, production meetings and weekly safety meetings. In
the meantime, the Company regularly organizes monthly quality and safety meetings to report relevant work to the
management, so as to ensure timely communication about and resolution to product quality problems. In 2022, the
Company carried out the project quality evaluation activities of “Zero Defect of Characteristic Processes and High-
quality Development of Hua Hong”. As at the end of the year, 186 department-level projects were reviewed and
completed, with the on-time completion rate up to 100%.

Product Safety Assurance

In terms of product safety assurance, the Company has established a hazardous substance management system,
formulated the Hazardous Substances Management Procedure and the three-level management system to effectively
control the hazardous substances in products.

Hazardous Substance Control System

Process Measures

Product R&D The Company incorporates the management of hazardous substances into the product
R&D process to reduce the risk of using hazardous substances from the source.

Raw materials testing Suppliers are required to provide the product test report for hazardous substances, sign
the Letter of Commitment on Not Using Hazardous Substances to ensure the safety of
raw materials.

Regular inspection by A third-party organization is entrusted to carry out testing in accordance with the
a third-party agency Directive on Restriction of the Use of Certain Hazardous Substances in Electrical
and Electronic Equipment Regulations (“RoHS”) and the Regulation concerning the
Registration, Evaluation, Authorization and Restriction of Chemicals ("REACH”) on a

yearly basis to ensure product quality.

Management of Nonconforming Products

For nonconforming products, the Company has formulated the management policy of Nonconforming Product Control
Procedure, and has established an optimal product recall system. Our customers may return to us within the warranty
period any nonconforming products which do not comply with the prescribed functions or fail to meet the management
requirements for hazardous substances. As at 2022, the failure rate of the Company’s products on the end-user side
was less than one in a billion.
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4.3 Customer Service and Protection of Customers’ Interests

Customer Service Management

The Company focuses on customer experience, and based on the philosophy of “providing customers with more
convenient and safer services”, it has established an impeccable customer service system, including the three
aspects of customer communication, customer complaint and customer satisfaction, so as to continuously enhance its
customer service capabilities.

Customer Service System

S A
‘@ @?‘
Lo /B

Customer Communication
e Adopt multiple methods o
of communication with

& =y

O ' =

\ / i il
«’ 2 &

Customer Satisfaction Survey

Carry out satisfaction surveys
on a sampling basis annually

A

Customer Complaint
Establish customer complaint
channels and formulate the

customers, including
customer survey, regular
quarterly/annual business

Customer Complaint Handling
Procedure, handle and feed
back customer complaints in a

and formulate an improvement
plan according to the survey
results.

reviews, technical seminar
and training.

timely manner.

To better satisfy customer service requirements, the Company formulates an annual work plan for customer services
and conducts relevant work according to the plan. In addition, the Company implements product introduction,
negotiation with customers on their special requirements, customer review and other workflows online and offline
synchronously, so as to achieve more sufficient and more efficient communication to meet customer expectations.

The Company attaches great importance to customers’ complaint and feedback, and has formulated the Customer
Complaint Handling Rules to standardize customer complaint handling and the implementation of corrective and
preventative measures. Customers may make a complaint and give feedback to the Company through e-mail, hotline,
letter, fax, and other channels. During the Reporting Period, the Company did not receive any complaints from
customers.
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Customer Complaint Handling Procedure

within 24 hours after the occurrence of a complaint and

\\ give a preliminary reply.

Investigation into Failure Causes

Complaints requiring product failure analysis will
be submitted to relevant departments for handling.
Corrective and preventive measures will be proposed
according to the investigation results and a reply will be
given to customers.

Occurrence of a Complaint
N\ Normally, communicate and confirm with the customer

Prevention and Correction
‘ Supervise the implementation of corrective and
preventive measures by relevant departments, and

.a. verify the correction results by regularly sorting out and
U analyzing relevant information fed back by customers.

The Company conducts customer satisfaction surveys on a regular basis. In 2022, the Company carried out a
customer satisfaction survey in the form of questionnaire to collect customer opinions. The average score of customer
satisfaction in the questionnaire was 8.86 (full score: 10 points). The management of the Company reviews the annual
satisfaction survey results, organizes the difference analysis and implements improvement measures, and feeds
corresponding improvement measures and results back to customers.

Information Security and Privacy Protection

The Company attaches importance to its information security and the protection of customer privacy. It carries out
information security protection work in strict accordance with the Cyber Security Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Cryptography Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Regulation on the Administration of Commercial
Cipher Codes, and other laws, regulations and provisions. Meanwhile, the Company has developed and implemented
information security management rules such as the Information Security System Manual and the Statement
of Applicability (SOA), and conducts management on network security, computer security, encryption control
management, user access control, regular backup, etc. to ensure the legal compliance of data processing security
and customer privacy protection.

The Company establishes the Information Security Committee, which is fully responsible for the information security
protection work of the Company. The Company has established an Information Security Management System (ISMS),
which controls information security risks from information asset management, personnel security, physical control, logic
control, and other aspects to ensure information security and is ISO 27001 certified (valid until February 2025).
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ISMS Structure

As the top manager of ISMS, take overall control on
information management.

President

It is composed of management representatives
and department heads to study and approve the
Company’ s supervision rules and regulations
on information security and to supervise the duty
performance of relevant departments.

Information Security
Committee

With its members from the Information Technology
Department, Quality and Reliability Assurance
Department, Compliance Department, etc. of the
Company, it is responsible for the establishment,
implementation and daily operation of the ISMS.

Information Security
Working Group

During the stable operation process of ISMS, the Company effectively protects customer information and privacy
security by carrying out information security management training and review and by adopting the latest security
protection technology and other measures, which, on the other hand, provides the Company with safer and more
efficient information management services.

Information Security Management Measures

Regularly review the information security management system to identify possible risks and ensure smooth
operation of information security management

Carry out information security training and guidance to enhance employees’ awareness of information
security

Establish information security incident handling procedure to handle security incidents in a timely
manner

Maintain the machine room regularly to guarantee the normal operation of the equipment in the
machine room and ensure information security

Adopt the latest information security protection technology to prevent data leakage

In 2022, the Company carried out a series of trainings in relation to information security protection in various production
and operation bases to strengthen employees’ awareness and ability concerning information security protection, and
improve the Company’s overall information security protection level.
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Information Security Protection Training in 2022

Theme Coverage Participants
ISMS Training 2022Q1 5,741
ISMS Training 2022Q2 6,180
ISMS Training 2022Q3 5,018

Employees of Hua Hong Shanghai & Wuxi

Confidentiality and Information Security Production Bases

Compliance Training 6,400
Quality Month Activity — Information Security
Awareness Training for Senior Executives 108

Responsible Marketing

It is Hua Hong’s responsibility to customers to carry out responsible marketing and ensure the integrity, accuracy and
authenticity of marketing information. The Company strictly abides by the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations, implements the product
label management pursuant to relevant procedures, and runs the compliance awareness throughout the whole process
of business development and contract management, in an effort to eliminate the possibility of improper marketing due
to subjective factors.

No incidents of violations concerning the use of labels and promotional information occurred within the Company
during the Reporting Period.

5 Responsible Business Operation

5.1 Sustainable Supply Chain Management

Creating a Responsible Supply Chain

Creating a responsible supply chain is an important strategy for long-term development of the Company. The Company
has established an excellent supply chain management system, and formulated the Social Responsibility Requirements
for Suppliers and the Supplier Risk Identification, Planning and Control Management Procedure in accordance with
the Code of Conduct of the Responsible Business Alliance (RBA), so as to conduct comprehensive management on
suppliers.

Major Suppliers of Hua Hong

Quantity
Type of Suppliers (Suppliers)
Silicon wafer 21
Chemicals 91
Gas 48

Good supplier cooperation is the foundation for the Company to ensure stable production and operation. The
Company has established a supplier management system covering supplier selection and access, supplier review and
evaluation, support for supplier growth and supplier elimination.
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Supplier Management System

Supplier Management

Actions

Supplier selection and
access

The Company formulated the Social Responsibility Requirements for Suppliers

in accordance with the RBA, and put forward requirements for suppliers in five
aspects: labor, health and safety, environmental protection, business ethics and
management system;

Suppliers with outstanding performance in terms of environment, labor and ethics
will be preferred in supply and procurement;

In addition to requiring all cooperating suppliers to comply with the Social
Responsibility Requirements for Suppliers, the Company also requires its upstream
suppliers to recognize and manage in accordance with the Social Responsibility
Requirements for Suppliers.

Supplier review and
evaluation

The Company has formulated the Supplier Risk Identification, Planning and
Control Management Procedure to carry out comprehensive evaluation and control
on the environmental and social risks of suppliers every year, so as to identify

the environmental and social risks of suppliers, and formulate corresponding
countermeasures;

Suppliers with major violation records are required to carry out a third-party risk
audit in terms of their social responsibilities and provide the certificate of passing
the audit, or they may be disqualified as suppliers;

The Company’s anti-corruption policy covers all suppliers, requiring them to comply
with anti-corruption requirements and confirming the compliance at the time of
annual evaluation.

Support for supplier
growth

The Company carries out regular publicity trainings on the theme of “CSR * and
“RBA Code of Conduct” for suppliers every year, including environment, labor,
ethics, etc;

The supplier training program carried out in 2022 covered suppliers of silicon
wafer, chemicals, gas, target materials and other categories.

Supplier elimination

The Company urges the suppliers with poor performance in terms of environment,
labor and ethics to rectify and confirm that their rectification meets the requirements.
Suppliers who fail to meet the rectification requirements will be disqualified.
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Overview of the Social Responsibility Requirements for Suppliers of Hua Hong Semiconductor

"‘ e Free choice of occupation e Salaries and benefits
e Youth employees * Humane treatment e Free association
Labor e Working hours e Non-discrimination
e (QOccupational safety e Hygiene management e Public health, canteen, and
w=ll87 o Emergency plan o Physically demanding work dormitories
Occupation «  (Occupational injuries and diseases »  Machine-related protection e Communication of health and safety
and Health
o e Environment-related permits and
I__—,@ reports e Solid waste e Management of water resources
e Preventing pollution and saving e Air emissions e Energy consumption and
Environmental resources e Material restrictions greenhouse gas emissions

Protection ® Hazardous substances

e Operation with integrity ’ Intglleotual prope.rty fights * Responsible procurement of
e No illegitimate interests * Fairtrade, advertisement, and minerals
Business o |nformation disclosure competiti(.)n. N e Privacy
Integrity ¢ Confidentiality on identities
®
._T_l e Duties and responsibilities of e Performance indicators with e Employee feedback, participation,
& ; ; management implementation plans and measures and complaints
Management e |egal and customer requirements e  Training * Review and assessment
System Risk assessment and management e  Communication e Corrective measures

The Company is committed to supporting the growth of suppliers and boosting the development of the domestic chip
industry. In 2022, the Company cooperated with Zhonghuan Advanced Semiconductor Materials Co., Ltd. (“Zhonghuan
Advanced Semiconductor”), a silicon wafer supplier, in taking the joint development and growth action to jointly
promote the improvement of quality management and product quality through mutual solidarity and cooperation.
The Company and the quality and technical members of Zhonghua Advanced Semiconductor formed a key team to
conduct pre-management in the daily production process of Zhonghua Advanced Semiconductor, and to facilitate
the establishment of production process management and control systems such as management system, fault
detection and control system, statistical process management system, etc. suitable for the semiconductor industry in
Zhonghuan. In the meantime, the Company carried out special audits to assist Zhonghuan Advanced Semiconductor
in improving its management process. For key quality control points, we helped Zhonghua Advanced Semiconductor
to implement the requirements of the semiconductor industry, carry out independent continuous improvement
activities, and constantly enhance its quality management awareness. Furthermore, a series of actions of Zhonghua
Advanced Semiconductor have also been applied to the management of its upstream suppliers to facilitate the sound
development of the semiconductor industry supply chain.
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Responsible Minerals Management

“Conflict Minerals” are obtained by local armed militias by way of long-time forced labor, child labor, and damaging
the environment and ecology. Such metals are also the main capital source of illegal armed organizations. According
to the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and research reports of certain international
nongovernmental organizations, such minerals are likely to be used for electronic and electrical products, such as
mobile phones and computers, in ICT industries.

Metal mineral resources such as gold (Au), tantalum (Ta), tungsten (W), tin (Sn) and cobalt (Co) will be involved
in the Company’s production and operation process. The Company is aware of the risk of significant negative
impacts from mining, trading, processing and exporting minerals in conflict-affected and high-risk areas. In order to
effectively reduce the Company'’s risk in relation to conflict minerals, the Company has formulated the Conflict Minerals
Management Policy in accordance with the Responsible Minerals Initiative (RMI). In addition to self-management, the
Company also requires all suppliers to promise not to purchase “conflict minerals” in conflict-affected and high-risk
areas, so as to ensure the effective management of responsible minerals.

QQ Hua Hong Conflict Minerals Management Policy

The Company takes global social and environmental responsibility as our goal and carries out green procurement

and has promised to undertake the following responsibilities in its metal supply chain:

1. We undertake to assume social and environmental responsibilities.

2. Suppliers whose raw materials contain gold (Au), tantalum (Ta), tungsten (W), and tin (Sn) are required to
purchase materials according to the Responsible Minerals Policy, while suppliers whose raw materials contain
cobalt (Co) are required to disclose the smelters of cobalt.

3. We undertake to cause our suppliers to provide the declaration that they do not use gold (Au), tantalum (Ta),
tungsten (W), tin (Sn), and cobalt (Co) from “conflict minerals”, and to carry out an investigation into conflict
minerals, and complete the Conflict Minerals Reporting Template (CMRT) and the Extended Minerals Reporting
Template (EMRT) under the Responsible Minerals Initiative (RMI).

All gold and tin used by the Company in its production process are from China; 75% of the tungsten used comes
from China and 25% from Japan; One third of the cobalt used comes from China, one third from Japan and one third
from Europe. During the Reporting Period, none of the gold (Au), tantalum (Ta), tungsten (W) or tin (Sn) used by the
Company was from the regions with armed conflict.

Types and Sources of Minerals Used

Gold (Au) and tin (Sn) Tungsten (W) Cobalt (Co)

y
e &=

m China m China®= Japan m China = Japan= Europe
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The Company has conducted due diligence on the responsible mineral supply chain of suppliers involving minerals
and requires suppliers to disclose information on sources of minerals and smeltery, so as to ensure that our suppliers
comply with the Company’s management policies for conflict minerals. In 2022, a total of 8 suppliers were involved in
the due diligence, covering 100% of suppliers that are involved in “conflict minerals”. In the due diligence audit this
year, no major issues concerning child labor, inhuman treatment, forced labor, armed conflict, ecological damage, etc.
were found; among which, the suppliers who do not use conflict minerals account for 100% as verified by the third-
party organization.

5.2 Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery

The Company is committed to the development of a business ethics culture and has formulated the Undertaking
System on Anti-Corruption and Business Ethics, the Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery Policy, and other internal
management regulations, explicitly specifying that companies having business dealings with the Company (including
all suppliers) shall sign the Undertaking Against Commercial Bribery and that all the relevant internal personnel shall
sign the Undertaking on Business Ethics.

Anti-Corruption and Anti-bribery Policy of Hua Hong Semiconductor

All employees (including part-time employees), senior management, and Board members are required to abide
by relevant laws and regulations practice and behave with integrity, diligence, and self-discipline. Corruption and
bribery in all forms are prohibited, including:

prohibiting commercial bribery and maintaining fair competition order;

prohibiting seeking for illegitimate benefits through taking advantage of influence in position and work; never
violating financial management and operation regulations, or seeking personal gain in the name of the Company;
prohibiting practicing fraud to undermine the legitimate interests and reputation of the Company;

prohibiting any receipt of presents, cash gifts, securities and finances that

may cause a negative influence on work.

The Company carries out audits on anti-corruption and business ethics on a regular basis. In 2022, the Company has
completed audits of internal management on anti-corruption and business ethics, and found no violation. In addition,
the Company is committed to creating a sound business ethics culture by regularly introducing warning articles and
cases in internal publications and providing training activities on anti-corruption and business ethics for all employees.
On 15 September 2022, the Company held the 2022 Business Ethics Education Conference, and carried out a special
training on the theme of “Knowledge on Anti-Corruption Party Conduct and Business Ethics” for all key positions and
related personnel.

The Company sets up smooth whistle-blowing channels, and provides defined whistle-blowing channels, including
E-mail, hotline and mailbox, to encourage employees to make real-name or anonymous complaints and whistle-
blowing. The Company comprehensively handles whistle-blowing calls and letters at any time to achieve early
detection, resolution and control, as well as appropriate treatment.

The Company establishes a standardized whistle-blowing case treatment procedure, and carries out the whistle-
blowing procedure, classified acceptance, investigation and treatment work. In addition, the Company takes measures
to protect whistleblowers, and all information related to whistleblowers will be kept strictly confidential. The Company
protects the employees or external personnel from unfair treatment such as dismissal, demotion, suspension,
intimidation, harassment or any other form of retaliation for whistle-blowing through legal channels.
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Business Ethics Supervision and Whistle-blowing Case Handling Procedures

ARETgS SpEsEl [persemml Complete the investigation and

Immediately record any or establish a special team B S i A e
individual whistleblowing to understand the situation, : L A pect
time limit, draw preliminary conclusions

case received. carry out an investigation,
and report to management.

and obtain evidence.

Hold a special meeting to review the
Give feedback to the « contents of the whistle-blowing case
whistleblower. and investigation results, and

come up with a solution.

During the Reporting Period, no corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud or money-laundering event has occurred to the
Company, nor has any litigation case arising from the above events occurred.

5.3 Risk Management

The Company continuously improves its risk management organization system, and optimizes its internal control
system. Since 2016, the Company has established procedures for risk management through the Internal Audit
Department, which issued the “Rules about Comprehensive Control of Risks” and carried out related projects. It
continuously improves the risk maps, and upgrades relevant policies and processes, so as to effectively enhance its
comprehensive risk management capabilities.

In 2022, the Company comprehensively prevented and supervised its internal and external risks based on the
“three-line model” of risk management, taking into account the principle of comprehensiveness and importance.
The Company carried out an annual comprehensive risk assessment covering Shanghai and Wuxi, interviewed
management with regard to risks through risk questionnaires, identified major risk areas, and formed an annual risk
management report. Each business line collected and reported the respective risk events for the record quarterly or
irregularly. In addition, the Company carried out risk management training, and discussed risk events among various
business lines and at the corporate level.

Key Operational Risks and Countermeasures

Risk Category Risk Factor Countermeasures

Strategy Strategic planning The Company formulated strategic objectives from top to
bottom and appropriately deconstructed and implemented
such objectives in specific business models of corporate
operation, to ensure the accomplishment of strategic

objectives.
External economic and The Company can always maintain a high growth momentum
policy impact through reasonable adjustment of product structure and
gradual substitution with domestic products.
Operation Talent reserve and We set up the talent resume database, carried out a talent
development inventory, continuously explored recruitment channels,

optimized the salary structure, and improved the supporting
welfare policies to comprehensively enhance the Company’s
attraction and employee satisfaction.
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Risk Category

Risk Factor

Countermeasures

Supply chain

The Company enhances its right to speak in the industry
chain through its technological advantages, signs medium

— and long-term strategic agreements with suppliers, sets a
safe inventory level for each production material, regularly
reviews the rationality of the safe inventory level, makes timely
adjustments according to market changes, and continuously
evaluates suppliers’ capacity and product quality to ensure
stability of the supply chain.

Information security

The Company has established its information security
framework and management policy; implements the risk
evaluation procedure for information security every year; and
continuously monitors all kinds of key information through
data protection system (DLP), so as to maintain the optimal
interests of the Company, its shareholders, its customers, its
suppliers and its employees.

Research and development The Company improves the R&D project management

system, conducts comprehensive monitoring on R&D project
initiation, implementation, and post-evaluation, enhances the
ability of project managers, and develops new products with
commercial value continuously in a timely manner.

Exchange fluctuations

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are settled
in the same foreign currency whenever possible to reduce
the need for foreign currency exchange, thus reducing risks
arising from exchange rate fluctuations.

Environment and
Safety

Environment

We design management procedures based on our observation,
assessment, and control of environmental factors and list major
environmental factors.

Safety check

Safety checks focusing on troubleshooting and fault diagnosis
are carried out continuously and regularly.

Occupational health

We have developed the goals, indicators, and program
management forms for our environmental and occupational
health and safety programs, in accordance with the Company’s
established goals, indicators, and program management
procedures for health, safety, and environment (“HSE”).
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5.4 Protection of Investors’ Rights and Interests

As a listed company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Company strictly complies
with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance, the Securities and Futures Ordinance, the
Takeovers Code and the Code on Share Repurchases, and sets up a professional working group to carry out investor
relationship management and to strengthen the communication between the Company and investors. The Company
has also established channels for the Company’s management to receive suggestions from investors, so as to
continuously improve the corporate governance level, and effectively protect the legitimate rights and interests of
investors.

While carrying out investor relationship management, the Company communicates with the capital market through
multiple channels about the Company’s business operation and management status, financial position, product
technology, major issues and other information, based on the principle of “equal treatment of all investors”, the
requirement on “compliance information disclosure” and the standard of “honest and trustworthy operation and
interactive communication”. The Company also proactively discloses information related to the Company concerned by
investors, and fully protects the legitimate rights and interests of investors.

Investor Communication Channel

General
meeting of
shareholders

NDR road Regular
show report

Investor
Communication
Official website Channel
and WeChat
account of the
Company

Direct
hotline of
investors

Online/offline
communication
meeting

Special Email
for investors

In 2022, the Company held one annual general meeting and two special general meetings of shareholders, at which
resolutions were passed by voting. Meanwhile, all shareholders of the Company were invited to participate in the
above meetings, including all small — and medium-sized investors of the Company. Furthermore, the Company held
four performance exchange meetings during the Reporting Period, with a total of 1,303 participants.
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6 Industry and Community

6.1 Industry Development

The Company actively participated in the industry co-development activities to facilitate the high-quality development
of the IC industry and to help Shanghai build an ecological highland for the IC industry. During the Reporting period,
the Company has participated in the drafting of one industry standard and the review of five industry standards, and
actively attended in the industry summit to jointly promote the high-quality development of the industry.

6.2 Community and Charity

In order to enhance the safety awareness of community residents, the Company has provided the “First Aid Course for
Accidents” in the community where the headquarters operates, including First Aid knowledge and cardiopulmonary
resuscitation, for five years.

The Company is enthusiastic in public welfare undertaking, and persists in organizing voluntary blood donation every
year. In addition, the Company has organized employees to regularly visit the elderly in the community nursing home
every year, to chitchat, make wontons, and carry out activities, so as to entertain and care for the elderly. During the
COVID-19, the Company has actively participated in the volunteer services, helped maintain the order on the spot, and
delivered residents’ living materials for quarantined buildings. The Company has received many letters of appreciation
for its contribution to the community’s anti-pandemic work.

Volunteer Service Highlights Performance in 2022

Actively participated in community epidemic nucleic A total of 4,198 employees participated in volunteer
acid testing volunteer service service

Actively participated in the Company’s internal epidemic A total of 89 employees, with 1,098 hours of service in
prevention and control aggregate
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7 Appendix
7.1 Quantitative Performance
Environment
Performance Indicators Unit 2020 2021 2022
Emissions
Total air emissions 10,000 m® 1,773,740 2,319,307 2,391,024
Nitrogen oxide (NOx) emissions Kg 19,688 36,857 32,650
Sulfur dioxide (SO,) emissions Kg 338 2,239 3,546
Total wastewater discharge 10,000 m® 603 704 832
GHG emissions' Ton of CO, equivalent 448,614 713,649 497,938
Of which: Direct GHG emissions Ton of CO, equivalent 18,135 24,803 24,877
Indirect GHG emissions? Ton of CO, equivalent 430,479 697,899 473,060
Ton of CO, equivalent/8-
GHG emissions per unit output inch wafers 0.23 0.20 0.12
Total hazardous waste Ton 9,262 17,363 20,385
Hazardous waste produced per unit
output Kg/8-inch wafers 3.96 4.96 4.88
Total non-hazardous waste® Ton 6,143 8,981 9,864
Non-hazardous waste produced per unit
output Kg/8-inch wafers 2.67 2.57 2.36
Use of Resources
Total electricity consumed MWh 720,840 867,682 954,667
Electricity consumed per unit product kWh/8-inch wafers 313 248 228
Natural gas consumed m? 10,312,006 11,456,569 10,530,287
Natural gas consumed per unit product — m?%/8-inch wafers 4.49 3.27 2.52
Total water consumed* m? 9,907,631 15,707,212 18,010,226
Of which: Water from municipal water
supply m? 7,035,272 8,928,040 10,284,063
Wastewater reused® m? 2,872,359 6,788,287 7,726,163
Water consumed per unit product® mé/8-inch wafers 2.89 2.55 2.46
Recycled/reused water m? 4,042,020 86,119,337 107,163,560
Total packaging materials used for the
shipment of finished products Ton 128 253.5 3138.32
Packaging materials used for the
shipment of per unit finished product  Kg/8-inch wafers 0.06 0.07 0.07
Recycled packaging materials used for
the shipment of finished products Ton 22 48.5 54.0
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Notes:

1

GHG emissions are calculated in accordance with the GB/T 32150 General Guideline for Calculation and Reporting of GHG
Emissions from Industrial Enterprises and the GB/T 32151 Requirements on Calculation and Reporting of GHG Emissions
published by the Standardization Administration of China.

In 2022, the indirect GHG emissions in Shanghai and Wuxi production bases were calculated according to the Guidelines for
Accounting and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions in Shanghai (Trial) (Hu Fa Gai Huan Zi [2012] No. 180) and the Notice
on the 2023-2025 Corporate Greenhouse Gas Emission Reporting Management in Power Generation Industry, respectively,
among which, Shanghai production base uses a default value of electricity emission factor of 4.2tCO,/104kWh, and Wuxi
production base uses the national average grid emission factor of 0.5703tCO,/MWh when calculating.

Non-hazardous waste is sludge produced in wastewater treatment.

Total water consumption = water consumption from municipal water supply + wastewater reuse.

In 2022, the Company revised the amount of wastewater recycled in 2021, and the total amount of water consumption in 2021
was revised accordingly. The data in relation to wastewater recycled and total water consumption for 2021 set out in this report

shall prevail.

In calculation, water consumed per unit product only includes water from the municipal water supply.
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Employment and Labor Practice

Performance Indicators Unit 2020 2021 2022
Employment
Total number of employees Person 5,682 6,084 6,760
Including: Number of male employees Person 4164 4,426 4,932
Number of female employees Person 1,518 1,658 1,828
Number of employees working under a
labor contract with the employer Person 5,682 6,084 6,760

Number of employees working under
a labor contract with a labor dispatch

company Person 113 85 81
Part-time employees Person 0 0 0
Number of employees aged under 30 Person 2,542 2,676 2,983
Number of employees aged between 30
and 50 Person 3,018 3,271 3,624
Number of employees aged above 50 Person 122 137 153
Number of employees from Mainland China Person 5,673 6,075 6,751
Number of foreign employees Person 9 9 9
Health and Safety
Occupational disease incidence % 0 0 0
Number of work-related fatalities Person 0 0 0
Percentage of work-related fatalities % 0 0 0
Lost days due to work injury Day 235 367 83
Employee Training
Average training hours completed per employee Hour 100.1 119.9 122.2
Including: Average training hours completed per non-
management employee Hour 101.4 121.5 123.7
Average training hours completed per
management member Hour 18.3 23.5 26.5
Average training hours completed per
female employee Hour 96.8 123.8 124.3
Average training hours completed per
male employee Hour 101.3 118.5 121.4
Percentage of employees trained % 100 100 100
Including: The percentage of non-management
employees trained % 100 100 100
Percentage of management member
trained % 100 100 100
Percentage of female employees trained % 100 100 100

Percentage of male employees trained % 100 100 100
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Product Responsibility and Customer Service

Performance Indicators Unit 2020 2021 2022
Product Responsibility and Customer Service
Product return rate % 0.07 0.05 0.11
Percentage of products sold subject to recalls for

safety and health reasons % 0 0 0

Customer Service
Number of complaints received in relation to products

and services Case 8 0 0
Percentage of customer complaints resolved % 100 / /

Supply Chain Management

Performance Indicators Unit 2020 2021 2022
Supply Chain Management
Total number of suppliers Supplier 535 545 550
Total number of local suppliers Supplier 399 410 413
Total number of foreign suppliers Supplier 133 136 138
Number of suppliers assessed’ Supplier 110 115 112
Number of suppliers subject to rectification Supplier 0 0 0
Percentage of raw and auxiliary material suppliers

signing the Environmental Protection Undertaking Y% 100 100 100
Percentage of raw materials purchased from local

suppliers 2 % 28 29 31

Notes:

1 The number of suppliers which were assessed by the Company in terms of labor, health and safety, environment, and business
ethics.

2 Raw materials purchased include silicon slices, quartz, target materials, gases, chemicals, and other raw materials for
production.
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Anti-corruption

Performance Indicators Unit 2020 2021 2022
Anti-corruption
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt

practices brought against the issuer or its

employees during the reporting period Case 0 0 0

Community Investment

Performance Indicators Unit 2020 2021 2022
Community Investment
Number of employees participating in volunteer

services Person 449 1,324 4,189
Total hours of volunteer activities Hour 450 1,986 6,283

a) List of Regulations and Relevant Policies Observed by the Company

Fields

Names of Laws and Regulations

Environmental Responsibility

Environmental
Protection

Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, Urban and Rural Planning Law of the
People’'s Republic of China, Marine Environment Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China, etc.

Product Responsibility

Product and

Cyber Security Law of the People’ s Republic of China, Cryptography Law of the People’ s

Service Republic of China, Accounting Law of the People’ s Republic of China, Regulation on the
Administration of Commercial Cipher Codes, Company Law of the People’ s Republic of China,
Constitution of the People’ s Republic of China, Law of the People’ s Republic of China on
Product Quality, Customs Law of the People’ s Republic of China, Metrology Law of the People’ s
Republic of China, Foreign Trade Law of the People’ s Republic of China, Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the People’ s Republic of China, Regulation concerning the Registration, Evaluation,
Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals ( “REACH" ), Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equipment (WEEE), Restriction of Hazardous Substances ( “RoHS” ), etc.
Intellectual Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Property Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China, etc.
Protection
Responsibility for Employees
Employee Law of the People’s Republic of China on Employment Contracts, Law of the People’s Republic of
Employment China on Protection of Women'’s Rights and Interests, Employment Promotion Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China, Civil Code of the
People’s Republic of China, Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, Criminal Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Measures for the Administration of Health Insurance, Measures for
Application for and Payment of Unemployment Insurance Money, etc.
Occupational Law of the People’ s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases,
Health and Production Safety Law of the People’ s Republic of China, Regulation on Work-Related Injury
Safety Insurances, etc.

During the Reporting Period, no violation against the above-mentioned laws, regulations and relevant provisions has
occurred to the Company, nor has any litigation case arising from the above events occurred.
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b) Benchmarking Index

Part B: Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

Mandatory Disclosure ltems Section in the Report

Governance Structure ESG Management System
Reporting Principles Preparation of the Report
Reporting Boundary Preparation of the Report

Part C: “Comply or explain” Provisions

Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Disclosure Section

Subject Area A. Environmental
Aspect A1. Emissions

General Disclosure A1 Emissions Management
KPI A1.1 Key Quantitative Performance Statement
KPI A1.2 Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation
KPI A1.3 Quantitative Performance
KPI A1.4 Quantitative Performance
KPI A1.5 ESG Management Strategy
KPI A1.6 Emissions Management
Aspect A2. Use of Resources
General Disclosure A2 Energy Management
Water Resources Management
KPI A2.1 Energy Management
KPI A2.2 Water Resources Management
KPI A2.3 Energy Management
KPI A2.4 Water Resources Management
KPI A2.5 Quantitative Performance
Aspect A3. Environment and Natural Resources
General Disclosure A3 Energy Management
Water Resources Management
KPI A3.1 Energy Management

Water Resources Management

Aspect A4. Coping with Climate Change
General Disclosure A4 Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation
KPI A4.1 Quantitative Performance
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Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

Disclosure Section

Subject Area B. Social Employment and Labour Practices

Aspect B1. Employment
General Disclosure B1
KPI B1.1

KPI B1.2

Employee Interests and Benefits
Quantitative Performance
Quantitative Performance

Aspect B2. Health and Safety
General Disclosure B2

KPI B2.1

KPI B2.2

KPI B2.3

Employee Health and Safety
Quantitative Performance
Quantitative Performance
Quantitative Performance

Aspect B3. Development and Training
General Disclosure B3

KPI B3.1

KPI B3.2

Employee Development and Training
Quantitative Performance
Quantitative Performance

Aspect B4. Labor Standards
General Disclosure B4

KPI B4.1

KPI B4.2

Employee Interests and Benefits
Employee Interests and Benefits
No Violation

Subject Area B. Social Operating Practices
Aspect B5. Supply Chain Management
General Disclosure B5

KPI B5.1

KPI B5.2

Sustainable Supply Chain Management
Quantitative Performance
Supply Chain Management

Aspect B6. Product Responsibility
General Disclosure B6

KPI B6.1

KPI B6.2

KPI B6.3

KPI B6.4

KPI B6.5

Customer Service and Protection of Customers’ Interests

Quantitative Performance

Quantitative Performance

Customer Service Management

Customer Service Management
Information Security and Privacy Protection

Aspect B7. Anti-corruption
General Disclosure B7

KPI B7.1

KPI B7.2

Anti-corruption
Quantitative Performance
Anti-corruption

Aspect B8. Community Investment
General Disclosure B8

KPI B8.1

KPI B8.2

Voluntary Service and Public Charity
Voluntary Service and Public Charity
Quantitative Performance
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c) Glossary of Proper Terms and Abbreviations

Proper Terms and Abbreviations

Definition

Tapeout

WIP (Working In Progress)

WAT (Wafer Acceptance Test)

CDA (Compressed Dry Air)

MAU (Make-up Air Unit)

BCD (Bipolar-CMOS-DMOS)

ERT (Emergency Response Team)

IGBT (Insulated Gate Bipolar
Transistor)

MOSEFT (Metal-Oxide-Semiconductor
Field-Effect Transistor)

MCU (Microcontroller Unit)

ASIC (Application Specific Integrated
Circuit)

OBC (On Board Charger)

PMIC (Power Management IC)

BMS (Battery Management System)

With the original meaning of “off the line”, it refers to the final step of
integrated circuit (IC) or printed circuit board (PCB) design, namely,
delivery for manufacturing.

Also known as workshop production management, it refers to the work-
in-process area of the work center, which provides the storage space of
raw materials, finished products and semi-finished products for the work
center.

It refers to the test of special test key, which monitors whether each
process is normal and stable through electrical parameters.

It refers to Compressed Dry Air.

It refers to a fresh air unit, a kind of air conditioning equipment that
provides fresh air.

It is a monolithic integrated process technology, which can produce
Bipolar, CMOS and DMOS devices on the same chip.

It refers to the emergency response team, or the response team in
emergency.

It refers to Insulated Gate Bipolar Transistor, which is a composite fully-
controlled voltage-driven power semiconductor device composed of
BJT (Bipolar Junction Transistor) and MOS (Insulated Gate Field Effect
Transistor).

It refers to Metal-Oxide-Semiconductor Field-Effect Transistor, known as
MOSFET.

It is a microcontroller unit, also known as single-chip microcomputer or
single-chip computer. It reduces the frequency and specification of the
central processing unit appropriately, and integrates peripheral interfaces
such as memory, counter, USB, A/D converter, UART, PLC, DMA, and
even LCD drive circuit on a single chip to form a chip-level computer for
different combination control for different applications.

It refers to the Application Specific Integrated Circuit, which is an
integrated circuit designed and manufactured in response to the
requirements of specific users and specific electronic systems.

It refers to the on-board charger fixed on the electric vehicle.

Also know as Power Management IC, it is an application specific
integrated circuit, with its function to manage the power supply of the
master system.

It refers to the battery management system, mainly used to carry out
intelligent management and maintenance of each battery cell, prevent
overcharge and over discharge of the battery, extend the service life and
monitor the status of the battery.




114 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED #1828 5R A 7] « 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE3E

2022 ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANGE REPORT

d) Preparation of the Report

In the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited 2022 (the “Report”), key
issues and opportunities of concern to stakeholders are identified through materiality analysis, and the Company’s
actions and achievements in economic, social and environmental aspects are disclosed to various stakeholders.

Scope of the Report
Organizational Scope: The Report covers Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited and its subsidiaries, and is consistent with
the scope of the annual consolidated financial statements of the Company.

Reporting Period: From 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022

Basis of the Report
e  Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (effective from January 2022) published by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Source

There are no material changes in the methods of obtaining and calculating the information in the Report, compared
with annual reports for previous years. Data and cases in the Report originate from original records and financial
reports of the Company generated in actual operations. In case of any inconsistency, data in the financial reports shall
prevail. Unless otherwise specified, all the monetary amounts in the Report are denominated in RMB.

Reporting Principles

° Materiality principle. The Company identifies the substantive issues in relation to business operation concerned
by investors and other stakeholders as the focus of this Report. The reporting on substantive issues in this Report
also focuses on the industry characteristics and regional characteristics involved in the Company’s operation. In
the meantime, this Report highlights the ESG matters that may have significant influence on investors and other
stakeholders.

e Quantitative and consistency principle. This Report discloses key quantitative performance indicators and
historical data as much as possible. The statistical and disclosure methods of the same indicator in this Report
are consistent in different reporting periods; Any change, where possible, in the statistical and disclosure methods
shall be fully explained in the notes to the Report, so that the stakeholders can conduct meaningful analysis and
evaluate the quantitative principle for the development trend of the Company’s ESG performance level. The Report
has disclosed the basis of calculating the quantitative ESG KPIs and emissions of the Company. For details, see
Appendix Quantitative Performance to the Report.

e  Balance principle. The Report reflects the objective facts and discloses both positive and negative information
related to the Company impartially. The Company has searched the objects within the scope of this Report
through Shanghai Qingyue Credit Database (data.epmap.org), and did not find any negative events that should
be disclosed but not disclosed during the Reporting Period.
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FEx % FE % FET %

H 1,811,269 73.2% 1,205,149 73.9% 606,120 50.3%
bEE 297,683 12.0% 159,281 9.8% 138,402 86.9%
o E b I8 1 210,610 8.5% 169,227 10.4% 41,383 24.5%
BUOM & 114,728 4.6% 70,627 4.3% 44.101 62.4%
AXRE 41,198 1.7% 26,470 1.6% 14.728 55.6%
&5 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%

. TEC I EEBREAREWIERERATS, ERAELIERS6.9%,
REMERE 5 EZWRA

—E-- —E_C —F-—F ZZT-—F [EILL &L RILL &L

FEx % TE % FET %

RAIES K IETFEERZ(eNVM) 767,568 31.0% 459,104 28.2% 308,464 67.2%
BN IED K IETFREZR(SNVM) 208,171 8.4% 88,796 5.4% 119,375 134.4%
SaRVA-ICs 774,638 31.3% 557,893 34.2% 216,745 38.9%
FRER B ETSE 274,384 11.1% 272,053 16.7% 2,331 0.9%
B (Analog) B E R E IR (PM) 448,648 18.1% 250,466 15.4% 198,182 79.1%
Hih 2,079 0.1% 2,442 0.1% (363) (14.9%)
&5t 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%

. —ZEF, RARESAEFRERMRFEE, EAMCUERBEXRBRSEBNEER R,

. T CF, pURMERALLIER38.9%, NRARE - REBRRE,
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EEEHE

B AT o 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F[Eike

BRIBHHEDERERA

—E--fF Z—EB-C o —F T —F Eilsd:-dld RLE L

FEx % FET % FET %

554K K 654K 355,161 14.3% 157,854 9.7% 197,307 125.0%
904K K 954K 505,233 20.4% 280,235 17.2% 224,998 80.3%
0. 11K 2 0.13%0K 426,387 17.2% 302,920 18.6% 123,467 40.8%
0. 156K ] 0. 187K 206,733 8.4% 164,260 10.1% 42,473 25.9%
0.25fK 15,027 0.6% 22,926 1.4% (7,899) (34.5)%
>0.35%0K 966,947 39.1% 702,559 43.0% 264,388 37.6%
At 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%

. R BS54 K K65 K TR B 2 W =R R, RLIGRESD125.0%,
RKETIEE D EEWA

—E=-= —E—= B R R Glsg=dld Glsd=Zle

FER % FET % FET %

HEET 1,599,116 64.6% 1,039,325 63.7% 559,791 53.9%
THEMSEEF 550,342 22.2% 316,194 19.4% 234,148 74.1%
e 248,033 10.0% 218,946 13.4% 29,087 13.3%
E 77,997 3.2% 56,289 3.5% 21,708 38.6%
At 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%

. —E-—

RAMEERBARELFETIFH2REFHOERER, BFHRIEMAEETMENT41%=5KE,
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EEEHE

ERRERNAR
REH( THREESEA) —=E—= —E- 4 R 8L
HE T — 3R 65 65 -
Esc | 60 60 -
A =R 53 53 -
8~ MmE AEREART 178 178 -
EAT R (125~ RIEIERE ) 65 60 5
EsfAE (E8iTHE) 107.4% 107.5% (0.1)%
. T FEAsETREEERFMAZE107.4%,
HERE
ThaE —g-= —Eo—# A b
JiE&E (Frasm~r&E) 4,087 3,328 22.8%
. - FERRNERERLL EF22.8%,
i oo 8%

EYEREBPHIREERMOME. AFNEL, TEBEARARNESIRAUEEHRHE. BYAEFIREEH
22, DA (Discrete). E#E(Analog)MEREE. MZEHE(Logic) B S ERE/LFT, HEATPREMNETES
KB TERTMRE, —T-—F, EMFERBERAI8ET+120 | EEFAER, KE[FERIC+Power
Discrete | TBMAAF12ETEEFANBERMEBESENEE,

BMAREZREFRHB[EFORM T ERARELYER T - —FI2LUHRZ —, T2BEBERTH MOES
BMABEHER, BRI HE, AFATAMBERNIOMNRKRAXNERMAERBEE FERBREERT TRH
BN, O KT RIENEREE, RARESZRUEFRSIFARFHIRBERS KT, EMESISEIE, 128 THRA
ARFEMCUEAEE, MERNNA, BRT - _FRAFRAMEHNIERRERHEEE. HEREUMER, 27
BMARRGEIEECLE, BAREMH DM, TERENOIHUR QBB E MO KENERBERERA
ARFIZFERFERSOTSRAE, BZREBBEMCU. Type-CEAOEGITA . BIZESH. SERERT
F. sASMAIEEFEE. AR, AHETABEENSHAREMCURARNFIETFEHESRERT, #
—HSRATZIZEFANTELERRTAERTS, AXPRUEERCTEEERBNENESER,
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EEEHS

RO F, FURREELRTEERSREANEDESZEENFELE, RE. BALEMTEAR QRN XRES
HrhLESRES, DABSE—EARENRRAREARDATANERSUSHTIEFAFELR, HThB5MEHRT &
BE(IGBTRMTAXRRBEEE, BEE/\FRESER, 128 TIGBTEEIHSHER U BB D LIBRMFK
B, AIMTRERTEERBRRNEE, BERER. fAEE. MNRIFZETHENBEZT, AESHETPESFIN
KRB EFRAHRT TREHNEF o REAE1258 T AMEXNEB Super JunctionB R BT BAILY+EES
MIEE(MOSFET), IBFSER TERERY:, 2FHEEER "N AIHLIER, EFEH — R EE(Deep-Trench)
RMBRTEEMNEELRNRINEF O, REEBETLER. AEHE. ML REHATEROBC)BIEZEM, B
BOXBMHIEFETHE, ARMKEE/NGRE. EREBREHEIMFERE, MAIEEFMEHERE, TERREZmT
LRk, REPHRESEEMNEMERTRE,

ATIBCD(Bipolar-CMOS-DMOS) TE#F A E T - —FHABRADES, LLERBESEUREHLBE, THR
EREREE. SEREEEER. ER1258TREFOMAKBCOTETARE LR, RINARETER. BF S
B NET IS AN, ERETRETHE S EME, 850 18MKRIA L (EBFBCOTBF A RSB ELHE
LR, TERTETEIES, RIKTIRERALEE. SEMBEESAL, A7BH%A600-700kBCOTET
&, ERERAENRTERAMERBHOAEE, TERTEETTHRERE, WERARTHEL, MESE
TFRBEEUREKRADAEBORARNEANLBAETE, AFCHESBEERNBCOTE, BRERESESE
Bit. B ERTRER S K.

LA EERMFazIN, FULERDTEHARMINERCRMEL. BEEEERE. AIFHEF. TEETEFEA
HYEREGAERMEZRTEHRES, RRFENRTHEA. FEAGREFIEYaNNE, YE_T-__FINiE
LHREH, EFNHHE, AREFHRFBES4E, R ESHEERAREINBEBL 1001, RAAEFELNLAETFIR
HEENFETEYAEE. BZMNIPXE,

“TO_FRABERABN—F, MYZERE, ARKRATR T 2HEERNERIR, SalEIR I RMEE
EHERMITE FEIC+Power Discrete | TEMHARE, £EAEEMHEBRARE, ARINDARE TRIENE
EIRR. REARN, RRMEREAERAR, NELEMTXEEF SRR RLRERE, QR TEMERGREAIEH
B R, RIE, BERRARERTERSENTHRERS, BFt. GRLE—FTEREINARTEERLTE
B, ERFERTHHFROEERRHAGREE, —T-=F, RAHE-TEREH HESL, WERKREHEH
HIEREZRATE, AMBRHENEENTEMEAS HERH,



2022 F[Z#E ANNUAL REPORT 2022 « #7482 HR /AR HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 147

EEEHH

RE

RE-ZZT-=F, 2REEEHNERFZTREREZ, ERBEEI S -_=F2HBERNEELB(GDP)IEREE
TBEE1.7%, PEGDPERIEERE5%, 2HEERERE, EREEBEERK T B AF EREXNTEMEE
R RIPKEBL, FEFEERARBING T, AFNEENALNEANIRET, BRGERBFETIBNEE/TE. HER
LEE, MRACRFHTEER, BEEMSREXESNFERRERE, —S-=F, RrNRETEEFEHE—FIE
BEEBRF N, ENMEE. AEMNFEIBATFRPRPFENBEAIENERGEE, KATFTFERAREERFEE
MEESIZE, EfgH, ARTMNRIEYERBMIBNRITER, ARKEEG 8T +128 T |8, RIFRFSHET
FaBEbR12ET—HFEEE, WEANMSED _HNEERESR, ERERMEAFE, Ar2HRERHEEES
IATF16940E B2 X R, — T - =FHERHHTEESFERMS, IERALREMGHEE Y L EETRAESKIE
BHMHEE, ARBFERABGIERINED, HIERARXNTFENESUR[HFIRTS, REESHA, BN
NERBFBERE,
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EEEHE

EEENwmR DT
Mg RE
—s=-= —E-—4F &9)
FEx FET

SHE A 2,475,488 1,630,754 51.8%
SHERAR (1,631,832) (1,179,156) 38.4%
E 843,656 451,598 86.8%
HAa WA R E 70,986 60,758 16.8%
BEMEN N FER S 78 183 (57.4)%
HE R D IHE R (12,464) (10,673) 16.8%
ERER (266,666) (198,920) 34.1%
EthER (111,360) (165) 67,390.9%
VB ER (40,331) (13,226) 204.9%
DEEEE R AR 12,171 6,765 79.9%
BADER 496,070 296,320 67.4%
Frigiif =< (89,499) (65,349) 37.0%
FE R R 406,571 230,971 76.0%
THALHES.

HAREEA 449,912 261,476 72.1%

FEIE IR 2 (43,341) (30,505) 42.1%
SHEWA

HEWARIELHS, #24.7558%T, W EFEERS1.8%, JIHNTEREBEIEINEFEHEER LRMH.

HEMAE
HEKAR16.318BFET, W_T_-—FIEKR38.4%, TEHNTERERITEEREMAE,
EX

EMRB.A37TRET, B_F - —FIER86.8%, TE2ANFHIHEER LRMEREAEL, FOWRTEZRE N
HiHo

Hag A R k3
HEW AR KR A7 1008 XL, R-ZT - —FHIN16.8%, = ZmHABUREBNFIFIE U AL INFTE

HERDHEH
HENDIHEERB1,2508% 7T, BT - —FHEMN16.8%, TEHNATLEREMFAE,

EEER
ERBEMAR2667EFET, W_T - —FHEMN34.1%, T2HNAEFBTHE TEIARATLERBEINMAE.

HtER
HBRAI1 408K, —T-—F /208X, TEMNINERE BT L EIMNERE X UK.
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=

SEHE

MEER

Bi5E A A4,0308FET, BT —FIEN204.9%, EZHRIRITEFIGMATE

PG E DB

DEH A A EEF B1,2208%F T, BT - —FIHNT79.9%, JHERE AN E)E IR E G ATE .

BB

ST £8,9508% T, BT Z—FIEIM37.0%, T B MNP FERT MG

FREF

FERRZMEAFET, FREHNAE-—FM2.310EETLEE4.066BETT, FHNEER16.4%, M_ZT_—F5
14.2%

B AR R

—E-—fF —E-—4F eof)
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—8H
FER FET

FRBEE
M. BERREE 3,367,716 3,116,501 8.1%
WEME 169,363 184,883 (8.4)%
FREEE 78,425 75,331 41%
REEE A RIMRE 130,721 122,040 71%
EERAHEG AR MEE RN ER TR 178,632 257,788 (30.7)%
HM3EmeEE 54,794 54,364 0.8%
FRBEERE 3,979,651 3,810,907 4.4%
REEE
FE 578,060 432,917 33.5%
B ZIEWGRIA R EWEE 291,856 181,042 61.2%
JE s B B 75 R IE 13,006 6,910 88.2%
HibmehEE 182,996 157,935 15.9%
ER A KOE BiF R 1,042 2,248 (53.6)%
ReMREEED 2,008,765 1,610,140 24.8%
REEELARE 3,075,725 2,391,192 28.6%
REAE
B SR 236,999 194,385 21.9%
ETESRITEN 426,756 195,024 118.8%
FEST RS 77 5E 6,096 7,501 (18.7)%
BT R 37,714 66,837 (43.6)%
HimBaE 674,851 616,654 9.4%
REBAERAE 1,382,416 1,080,401 28.0%
REEEFHE 1,693,309 1,310,791 29.2%
FRBEE
FTERITIER 1,481,580 1,395,279 6.2%
HEAE 14,644 16,137 (9.3)%
BIETIEAE 41,268 25,735 60.4%
ERBEBERETE 1,537,492 1,437,151 7.0%
EEFH 4,135,468 3,684,547 12.2%
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EEEHS

BB -—F+-A=1+-REZR-__F+-A=1t—HEALBEHEB10%NEENMEE

EERAFPESARMEERSNESZTA

BEEREAFEFTAEMEERENES T AHB2578EBE LR E1.7861EF L, TEHRATFETEMEE#ERZT

Ho

=&
FEMRA4329EBETLEES781EF L, ETEHNEFPHIIEMNATE,

ESRUFER ERRE
B S RYKIA N EKRRIRHR1.810(8ETEE2.9198%KT, F2HNHE WAL IR,

FE Uk BR B 75 FRIE
FENS FB S 7 FAIBF6908 £ TIE £ 11,3008 K T, £ E MmN E TR 7 B EIGRIEIE INFT .

HtbRBEE
HAhmeEAEM1.579BFETILE1.83018% L, TEHNERTWEEMME.

EREREMER
ERA M E BITF R 2208 R TURE 1008 E T, T 2HNEER TR PTG

RERREEEY
ReRBE2EFEYWH16.101EETEE20.088(EE T, FEHN TXRERESTAULZ RE,

ES RN
BHENE IEEE1 944{EXTTIRE2.370(85KTT, ERANMAHEREE AT R,

&S BB 5 RO
FERARE 5 SRR 7508 TR E610BXTT, T2MNE TRE N B 5 RN TR .

BT BY
BT B H6,6808XTTRES, 7708XT, TEHNKRBIBTHEIE R P

B
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EEEHH

FFERITHER
FHERITIERAREER 15,9038 X LB E19.0838% 7T, JYAMN AR TIETUE AT E,

FEEHBRE
EERIAREM2, 5708 XTI E4,1308 XL, TEHRE[DIKEE Z RINRETH S L AT

—E-= —E-—4F o)
FEx F=7T

KEEBFBIRESREFE 750,865 518,471 44.8%
REZBMAReREFE (930,156) (863,059) 7.8%
BEEEFSREeRE T 672,177 1,014,640 (33.8)%
ReRRSESEYIEMFE 492,886 670,052 (26.4)%
FHReRBSEED 1,610,140 922,786 74.5%
INEERZETE, 55 (94,261) 17,302 (644.8)%
FRASRRAEEEY 2,008,765 1,610,140 24.8%

REZDRERENEBFR
RETHMBREREFERTS09EXT, B_F——FIEMN44.8%, T2AHNEEWRAEN, HMOWEME. RER
Hro Mg,

RETBDFATEREFHE

RETHAARSMREFERI02EET, TEHR()EARKRE2EET, (NN —KMEQFIRETOBETT, ®
W R () BUF#BN3,8408 % 7T, (ii)F B A2,8508 %7, (ii)HE#RTAS70&%ET, M(iv)HERTEE10SETH
HiHo

BMETHRTEREAREFE
BEEBMERSREFEA6.7228% T, BIEN)RITERASNIES.146183K 7T, (i)IEERERTE3.920/8%E T,
(INEFHEFEMS1,1108 %L, R(iv)EITRMD TS HRIE6208E XL, H(I)EZRITER19,9708%E 7T, (i)FENT
47308 ETT, (INVXNEENRHARESIMN3208%T, (VXA ETEANERXRT, MV)INEREFRSOEET
Fr %88

ReERBSSEYEINFE
ELIEZENZAFET, B kR EEBYHEE - —F+-_A=+—HH16101BETEEHE T - —F
+=A=+—H#H20.088(EF T,
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EEERE
=] (==

Bt 75 L B

FRER
BfEETSNEESOER, TRRARKEFBHMNEABRITEFEH. RANBRRERBEE IS EEHES
B EE o

REZFZ_F+-A=+—H, WAXEMSRD100E%, MABEMESETTE, FRBADEN R D HIE N
1,4508 % 7T, JHEZHPOF B R RITEEFEF SIGINSOR P

HhEE L R

RPEELSEEERK, Z2S5RABRTEELERMANTENMEENTEFRATIAETMIFLAZFRATNINESE A
REFETHESE, RNFAR, RPNEEETL27% I AETIHEN TARNIEEE I EEE, HILRF, HE
AR T71% T3 AT R RIHINRE E B EHE,

geAh, HAImERK AR SRITERMINERE, ZEFKBRMAETEAMBEENTRARFA R-F__F+-_A=1
—R, FREER17.758EX TN BRITEFRARITTAHE, MIEURZFRANNEEE AREHE,

RZZE-_—F+-_A=1+—H, WELHAREABEXZES%, MATBEMESEEHTE, BANFE RTINS
DI IN416,0508 E TT,

ERER
BMERERAREERENFE =T REB TR S5, RERMNBER, MAERREREARZNEFPHARBERR
o MO, HRBEHREUFIREMHETEE, REFFERRARETEK,

i

\

BANEMEETHREAGEARRNERR: SFEMHRARANRSMREFEY. BHRUFBELREBERER. stA
BNHE, RS FEREMEENSREE. BIREE T RBUALERENREREFAOEEE, RMALBEBIFE
EXERRERNEREE,

RBEEER
BMNBRASERERRERRERRDHESHER, MEREFAMNREHBREIZSAEBERS EHNREAER
B, NEHEHEERRRPESTE,

EXEE
BAEAEENEZEEARERELLRE N MERRIFNERLR, AXBHRMANEELERBRREBRAL,

BARBEICANES EIELAREARE, Rit, BALSABRRN FRROKE . ARREEEARNKEITHR
BARZEAIMBEINNERRLRR, FA, BEEANBR. BRRIEFHRETAEZE,
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EEEHE

EEAELR

AEAELROFERRI B RRM 238,

E

ARERE-T-—F - A=+ BULFENEERNEZBNEBRRRN RS H220F 282 AN BE.
RE B2

BTEHHHEMSHERL. RAAAERERTITENTSHAMZOHT I REHZENTIGRE, ARARAR
2. BE. BRRBENRE, NRITAHELE. REERNRA, EFeTERMNEE_T - —F+-HA=1
—HALEFEZEAERE(ZT=—F. &), ARARKBEHNRSRBELRELRY, SBRRRIEAN=E,

iz SR

ARRPREE-_Z—RFERE, AAKREERNE. REREBEREABEARETRANBERT, RARBARRRFE
REFEPIERT, SHEREKERE . fA8EE=FMERRENFOEETNERZ=FFHR D EFFEN30%; =
RER D S RN AR B R R L,

BRRSERNE TR, MEBTEEMEERRRNEAFESRORE. NEFTSZFHRNEE, REFEAR
SRERTESTETRPEAEBNREEME,

A7 Ik

BE-Z-—F+-A=+—0, AARALEAHEIRHEETESIETRE,

RITERK

AEERE-FT-—F+- A=+ ANRITEROFERRSHRRM 26,

R-ZB-=F+=-A=+—H, AEEETROGRAAREEEERA. SHE—SHE, B2NNBHRRME6,
MBRE
AEERBERENRFENEAMEAREEAREBHERNB8E, AHELTHEREBRI BHRRZ — 8

7o

ME. BERRHE

AEFEETYE. MEMNRENREMENEZE T - —"F+-_A=1T—"HUHFENIENEMEHFBEHR M B RE
MizE13 %14,

BEAN, WEMERFBHEINMT .

EEEEmEE
A= BrER bizp:td NEBMER (FHK)
R TER#% BRA-ER—F=/AN\HE 100% 91,563.11
SR EY T E R A
FTISREER
SPFAR L8 1857

OMEHE T ) —FB (D
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EEEHS

BEMREXER
ARER T —F+ A=+ BRBEBEEEEANEESR,
BARERETE

ARRBE_T-_—F+ A=+ HLFENERAEHFREARNPBHRERMEI0. AT OF=A=ZALRHMNQ
ARG ( 5622 ) R11E371k, ELE8BHBREHHRMEERNERBIARAS, HBEEEEERDHEHN

_%B /7-3\0
MR E ([ BiRiERT 2 ) BRSNS —RAFNA —BEITHARRARRSAIASHE, BRIETSINHENT.

i S UE)IS:0R BREFENEMERS. RE2EE(ERXR TN ) REHEHE
B, UEREBREEFARTRD MGENmEARAD R LS RE MK
EBRRZEE, EHERALRATNEE,

2. B EI2EE ([ 28F |) BE)AKEEAKB A RMNEREHNT
FOFRITESR, HQUAKEEAKERRNEERENAIHERR
FEEFZENRRAERBULIEEERRMAB Z AL (R FHEAE
sHEIDIANERRSEIRARME ), ETREBEEFELIFRTES,

BE2HEENKRDECHE: A ER12E A B AP E MAR G R TR 2 EERE ([ B
Bt |, BREITRE. SEEARITENERRE ) BTEmMR2EE
MR RBEEAR DR ER D BEITRAMNI%, AINERZ2EE
E-SROBRE, SRRNRERAS LiE, ATAEEA1208A SRR
FEA2EER TEE1%EARBOBERE EXHEH(EERLE
PRHERTEl ), EARFAARTS%IAEMAERRERNOAE, RERR
REBERAEG L, TSEE THRE,

BN TITEATAR B REHE (108 ). 26 ([RIFBRER TRHMASBHRE )o

B R T AN R S T R AT ) R e 1.00 BT ARBHEE T ABZER L AL 28B A, (ERELE
AT N RS E R B R S (T B R HAR BRI {E,

RZZZZF—F—AAHELNERESE . 93,944,356

BRESTEI R THIR BRE B AR ARM B MEFE()F. AEER-_F -
NA—BEm. BAR, BRESETNHTIERLERELMER
B

RAIE A, BT SIE T A EITHRM 880/523,438,8718, HEHITRNBENA1.79%,
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EEEHH

BREBRETSRENERE

R-Z—RHFEALAWNAB, AQARBEBRESAETEARES0,250,0000 80 ([ —Z—AFHEBIE |), UREBE
4 #£30,250,000 AR AV EREE, —T—AFERENFBOT.

FiTis B A A1 T 501 - 6.912/8 7T

i R EE . 30,250,000 ({EAR AR HE—_E-_—F+=-A=+—HIE TR
#92.31% )o

BRI Y A SRR BT RFENANBRE-_E-__FAA=ZA(+7)E )L BEY
E/mA )

BERS A SR B AR . BREN=ZSZ—EDIR-_Z—+tFNANB. —T—/\FNAMAB

MZE-NFNLANBRRE.

FRITEECNZETEIATESEREBO%: (\NREBHPMIMEARERMRERETES7ETL, (HNEER
H SR AER S B e RERMBTFHEREMHESI12BT; R(i)NERR L B — KB RRER
Fr R & AU ™ (86.80078 7T o

R=ZF—-N\F+ZA=+WMB, ARAREBEBAET B[RS T B AR H34,500,00000 EARE ([ —F— \FERE ),
PATRRE A $£34,500,000 AR A1 E B, —F— \FREEROFBENT .

(e]=ElE —E-N\Ft+ZA-+WA

PR H BB TT (B 15.056/8 7T

lSigsdieti-fi¢: 220k Q=P 34,500,0007 (EARRBE_T-__F+=-A=+—HILEBETRNH
#2.64% )

FEAR IR B R ERR BT \F+-_A-+WHAEE-_T-_FAF+-_A=-+=ZB(E(®®)

F)LE(BEEERA)

IERR R R AR . MARNFERE ( REF ) LARNEEMS, —ZF— \FHERE
MOz —EBHIR=_E_FF+_A=+WH. Z2=—F+=-A=
+HH., — E-_F+ A+t AN_E_=F+_A-1+WAEE
B, mAATHMEERMS, —E— \EEREN=SZ—ESBIN=
Z-FF+_A-+WH. T F+_A-+WNWAR-_ZT__F+
—ACtHAEE

BRITEE15.056 B TAN TEENRSE: (\RRE BB ARBRATBRESHRUTE14.4408 7T, ()R EE
BREASITAEL¥EBIEHRERMRFYERKITE15.056/87T; (IVREERHD BB —KBXMEERE
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2022F ERIR. HERER

‘ EHRRESLZE2EEBANE, BRFENRR, BRESRZE2EEITEIRGE

BRE

ok

. EMBREETTER, BREERBETLER, RE(

‘ REURHNE S L2, Pt8ustsE

2022%F, RAERAEELEWFART RIEEL2RERBIFIN, BLETEELXE2REZHARELEL2IRER
N, BARBERESLE2REKF,

2022 F 5 EZ 2 REET

B ERE BzEE SHEAH
B Z2EEE ZET2022Q1 5,741
ERLZ 2B RIE2022Q2 6,180
EELZ 2B X512022Q3 I HEEHEEREMB T 5,018
RE. 2BLZEE ﬁ&im 6,400
L2 AEEEREEELEEHE 108
BEEFEH

MERAEMTEH, RELHESTE. ERNABRFUHEFPEENE R, AREBET(PEARKNEFRE)
(REARKNMBESLX) TERER, CEEMFHEEE N ERBARRTRRNT, IHAREREFEXBHRE
AEREENEZRETR, BIMBRTIBRIERTE LH A M,

WEHRN, RAERREAREBEETEARAREEMELTERNEN,
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5 HBEFEYE

51 HARFEMHEEEE

FIEE FHER
HEEAHERREARREERNEZENK, RAFCEY T TENHERETIEER, SNETHERB(RBA)ZITET
BIEERE, sIE T (HEFLEEEE R HEFRREDNREIZHERRES ) SHEHEERETEZMERE,

I TEHER
HrEmER HE(R)
i 21
LR 91
gy 48

RFHEEFRIERRARELEELREETNEN, ARREY TREHBAERREA . HEFEREFN G, T
HEBK R AR ERBASROOHEHEER R,

HEBEERA

HEBEERE

EIEITE

HIEmEFEEA

. ERAETEEBERTRAENRBAFIE(HEFRHLERTER), HHEBRLES

T. REARE REFRE BEERUNEEBRAATHENESR,

BRERR. ST, BRITERRELOHER, AHRENRBETESELRA;

. BTEXMBEAENHERET(RERLSEMEER) M, ARBERE LN
HEBBRALEB(HEHLERERR) ETEH,

. HIE (HEERE BB REENEERER), SFHHERNRE. HERBRETER
MRHEEREE, #RIHEHRE A SRR, WA EHREHE,
. HNBEREMCEOMHER, BRERRFS = AHeRIRRESR, WRHEZS

pad =] A‘Eﬁgg\l N s N s <
FRERERRFE BB, %EICEE AR AR,

. AARERBEEEFALES, SRERETARBRES, LEFETES, Y

B A RIBRETER,

. GENARETHNECEHeE[ | RBATALA | SHEESER, AR
SRR E S, BT, EEESE,

. O EREMEEE SIS EEE TR (LRR. R, SRR .
R . HEES. BT, RS EERTENGER, ATEREEN, TERBNENE

Ko HNTEEM BB ERNOHER, SEUREMHEHER,




2022 F[Z#E ANNUAL REPORT 2022 « #7482 HR /AR HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 205

2022F EIRIR. HEREBHE

(ZFUFERUEFHEELER) BB

"‘ . GmmERy . THEEEF
. BEBT . ABHEE o B
BT e T{EERY .« JiE
W] - mEz2 . EHEEE T
! . EEE . EABREOHTI L e SRR
B EeigE ° BEEE8KRE o HER[IE e ’
=\, - msranEs . EmREY R—
h@ o FEPSRAMETLE IR o ZERIFM R Zﬁé/}z;%m'ﬁﬁﬂgﬁfiﬁ&
. EEWE o FPRIRHI PRI AR S
BERE
N o KBERE . ERBRYBREE RO
o EREEFIN . DERS, BENBEF &
mupmm * EEHE * FIRE o Bk
[ ]
S . ERREEER o FAEEHBTEBOMARIEE « BTRE. SEMEH
S S8 ¢ O ERNEFEX . B o TZEIT
sy RABNEREE . B . BRI

RAMPREFREEKR, HERSRITERER, 2022F, AREERHERPRELFERBMEBERAR ( &E
[HRREE ) BERRTARBRERETS, BEETRILEGRGE, ARRELZETENE. EMEERMT. A7
HARBELEAERMAEERKEEL, RATRBLAFLEEBRETHERE, T REZERFERTENE
BRLG. HERAZEHRG. R BREEEARTLEBRERERASN. AR, ATRRFEEZHPETZEERE,
HURMREEEEN, EPPRAELCKRFLERTREERNT, DEATFARFENZEY, THREAEETERZ
BN, FRELNFITETEREE EFHEANERE, REFSBITXHBRAHRMER,

BETHEEEHE

[BREE | RRAEMRERARINBNBESLTIET. BIBRRARNSTAIEG, bREVIDERNEKESNTIE
BEHR. RE(ZE - AHRERGSRNERBEEREL) M0 BRIFBFEAMOTTRSE, HWRBRERARE
WIEE. BEMEMICTIEXREARTH, ERFETERERT

NEEEEELBIETEF LI ER(AU). $B(Ta). IHW). #(Sn). #H(Co)FLBBEERNER. AARBIEXE
RYENRGRREREFRERK. X7, BEEELOFEAEENEAARZENRAR. SAEMREARZER, 2
AMERIEA B EEYETEI(RMNGIE(BRBEEERR ). RAREFEIEIN, AROERMAREHLAARTRER
BAREZENSERREN BREE |, BREARZTEEEREE,
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Qﬁ U FRREEERE

HERMEREATHERARMNER, ERECKRE, AHESBRRRT AR TEE:

1. AEREE S ERER T,

2. FRERRVHPEZEER(AU). B(Ta). HW). HENWHEEREBREEEEBEMBRRER, 2REWH 2 (Co)mHt
JFE P B 58 £ 0 SRR TR R

3. A EREEHEMHRE(AU). $E(Ta). IHW). H(Sn). (Co)EBNMEM FRBE | B, BTEHREENS
&, KB EEEYETEI(RMI) AR S & RIEE RS (CMRT) FEREY S (EMRT).

RAEEEBRETEANSMNB 2 RETE, EANIKT5%REPE, 26%KEAXR,; FANE=22—REFTH, =
DZ—REBR, Zpz—REBM. REMA, REMEMANE(Au). 8B(Ta). HW). H(Sn)BTRE REEFR
&,

BEFHEHNKRKE
Py % 4
v v ‘V-’

" = FE = B =R w B = BUM

ARUPRBENHEEHRA T CRECERARITEY, ERHEHRBREIRNARRBIEE, BREERS
WP AR ERBEERHE, 202264 EERAMBE LS ROF R, BH100% [ HREE | LA, EAFEHRN
BEEGP, BRABRSRET. FARGE. RO%D. REFR. TEWESEAME, B, EE=FRENT
{5 P SR 10 (R EL 175 100%
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5.2 RESHEKHERK

RABIRARBREXCER, HET(RBERRENFAGHIE X RESERBHEER) SAMERHE, AER
KERBERL[PNAEELEEMBEHERRZ (RAXBEHEAEE ), ARABAEHEBAERTERE (AKX
EEEE Do

EIERRESRRBEBEBER
ARBFFERT(BRERBET ). SMERAR. EENEOTETERER, BEER, HBEER, FIEATAKN
B HEMRTR, B
HILREBEITR, BEQTFHRFREF,
BN ARG T LA E DRI LEE M,
BTERMBERNMERRE, MRABEL. MERARMN, TFEER, TREQRAEEEMRITEHE,
TEZARFETENER. B2 AEEFNUBS,

o

NEEHFRRBREFEEERBIETIF, 20226, RATKEARERASNRBEREAHZBERLRIEE, K
BREAERMENRR I, ARBNLERZNAXERUESTE, EYUABERNEPELABERTXENRM, €
HRREMMAAEEINRBEREBXBRIFIED, 2022698150, RAAF02L2FRENEHESE, RAEH
REMAREBABRRR BRRBEFBREEEMNEE | TENFEE,

RFRBTIRUSENEREE, RUBE. BF. SADENMNEREE, S8 ITRAEANELNH EITRR
RRE, 2HUMBEERE. RERE, HHSER. PR THH, ZEESE,
ARRUHABNBRERIET, FERRARAHETE. BENERD I, AR, LFRIEREREAETIRE,
BREBANESEBREERY, BRETIIHNBABTEAEAARTETREMZIRIE. BR. SH. 25, B
B 5T AT B AR A BET Bo

BMREREENREREERRF

oo ZHEE AT LS EREBBR AR BER
S e SP wmp EMEBEEL = BT BHOSER,
o R, AEmE, SHEREES.

\4

BREESH, BEEN
RERER A €& NITRATER, BHE
75

WEHA, REARBERS. BE. DR, FEFELRENSEMN, BARA LRBASIENFARTEE L,
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5.3 RBEKERE

AETH TEZ=RREENEBRER, BEUR2ARRNMEHER, B2016F £, RalRENILELTEREIRIKR,
AR EHEREEHNE) TREZAERAKREREERE, HETZRBIE, MEHERERE, ERAZERRE
FBEE o

2022%F, REERRERE] ZGEL | NWER L, RE2AMNEEENRA, 2EPELEBELRANER, B L8

5 BEBRGEFTEITEMREERARREAEE ERER,; HH, 2FABFRRREREI, BRSEBIRR
SN RN =0

RATEELRBREEL

AR ER AREE S
L1 BB ARE LT THERE R, WETEENDR, FRNCKE
EORBEHRAT, BRI E RO
IHEARBEYE  BBAENESLEBERESORELNR, RRATBRRES
BEHERDN.
W AT BBRER RY AT BELEE. IEALES. THRARRBRE. B
FEE, EREENEE, 2ERALRORE HNE TR
B
e 58 BB S RITESRA ELRNEEE, RENEET R

Btk HYUSEEVHRELZ2ERE, THEHNLE2EFE
MAENE, RESEMSEETHE, FEMLHERHERED
MREREE, MEZITCHERE, BREERNRT,

BERZE BIYEELEERNEERETH, BFEATRESLEARNG
Er, RBBEIERRERSOLP)HSEMRBESETRHER
Z, BRAR. BR. P, HEAKARBR THKEMRFN
*REo

itk TEMEEBEERR, HHRNLIA. AT, RIHEEIUE
7, RITHB AR, BE. RENHAEAREEENHE
ffo

e KR B BRINENR ZEREERRBINERE, BMOHBINENTE,
R BE R B R o

RERZZ RIR NARFRIRERZR . FHEMZGIRERIEF, JIHERR

BREEBE,

ZERE HETEHRRABSHENREREZH RN E2RE,

B RAREZEREREEEEBRBREENIREERERF, HIE

BRERXEFELEZER. BEMIREER.
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2022F ERIR. HERER

54 REEERZRE

ANAMERBABRAMER LT AR, BEEST (LHRRN A RHEE 25 AT GG )RR TR A (i B8 =5
A FER, YRIFXRTRPMEETREEREEETIF, MBAREREEZMNER, BYAREEERIKRE
EEZNRE, THIRARBDRIEKYF, BRREREE R EEL.

FETREEBEREENTIESD, 2R FEHFMERESE IRRA, NI AREEHRE | KER, UIHETE.
EEEE | AER, ZREEEATSEBARNKLEEE NN, MBHR. ERit. EAFERERES, LHETHHWE
BREERLONEQRMEREEE, TOREREEALER

REEBBRE

NDRE&)E

BHARER

BmLERT

TN L2
SR E

2022 [E, RAIABAIABREAFRAGURABRRFINAS, SRUBRERANFEABRBIZER, AN, UL
HBHERARMARESHE, HhEEARMERNMEEE, N, MEBFARRFAR T4REEIREE, 2EBAAK
ZH1,303 A0
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6 ITHREHE

6.1 TERRE
NEEGSETEREETY, DHIEKEREXSLEELR, DI LIEREREREXELESD. MEHAN, HBE
TIBTEZERE RSB RITETETE, TREG2INTEES, BEFHSTENSESYE,

»

\
/

6.2 HEHRAG
RTENTBEERZEZEH, AREERFEAMELMANLRAR (BINSHRE), BIESREBROMESRM
EAZ,

AABOLBEE, BERSFEMARESBM T, 1H, ARETHEABETTSREMITRELZRERAEFA, &
FFERE. SR, REY, KEAMNXERENE L. RIEHZEHHE, ARBER2ELRIIREETE, HihkE
Bk, REEBTEXERAEME. ARZRKEBHENRGE, SEEHNR A ARELRIETFIEHD
BRfo

20225 EEERBZHEN

HRRE G2 E R ISR ERE RS R5t4,198 A2 EEFRIRTS
SRERBR2EQTANIRIEHEIE HBOA, REHEBRK1,008/
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2022F ERE. HERERRE
7 FiER
71 B{LEXK
R
BERIEE By 20204 20214 20224
BERR YD
EERBE B E B K 1,773,740 2,319,307 2,391,024
RA/WIINOX)BELE T 19,688 36,857 32,650
ZRIEBR(SO, ) B E T 338 2,239 3,546
FEKPERR B E B3 K 603 704 832
AERBHENE WECO,E & 448,614 713,649 497,938
HA, E&&;ﬁﬁ%kﬁﬁz% WECO,Z & 18,135 24,803 24,877
MEREREBHNE WECO,E 8 430,479 697,899 473,060
BUESREREHNE WACO,Z & 85T f[E 0.23 0.20 0.12
BEEEYRE A 9,262 17,363 20,385
BUESEEEREEVELS T3,/ 85 @E 3.96 4.96 4.88
mEREYRS® A 6,143 8,981 9,864
BNESEEEEVELS T2,/ 85T &E 2.67 257 2.36
EREHR
s JKELBE 720,840 867,682 954,667
BUERAEE TEE 8% RE 313 248 228
RARAE TR 10,312,006 11,456,569 10,530,287
B EMAARRAE MK 8H T ERIE 4.49 3.27 252
Fkaas K 9,907,631 15,707,212 18,010,226
Hrh, RRRMEEKEKE STk 7,035,272 8,928,040 10,284,063
YN EE K 2,872,359 6,788,287 7,726,163
BN ERAKES MK 8E T (B 2.89 2.55 2.46
&3/ BFAKE K 4,042,020 86,119,337 107,163,560
b ERTABREMENEE i 128 253.5 313.32
Bt ERTAREMRHMEE Fre /85T &E 0.06 0.07 0.07
B an B PR 8RR e eI = 7 22 485 54.0
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it

AEREHRAERAST ISR E R B EEEREET (GB/T 32150 LEMERATRBHNZEMREBE ) & (GB/T
215 TRERBEHNZEEREE K ),

20224, MEAEREENELS. EHEEEMSIKREBE(LIMEAETREEMZERERESER(H1T ) EHMRE
[2012]1805% )) K { B #AF2023 - 2025 F HBITE X AT A B NREETEEATENBM)FE, HF, LEEEEM
RAENHMEATREEL.2tCO,/104kWh, 554 FE B R A 2 B T E@EE A F0.5703tCO,/MWhETTETE,
BEEZEYABKEEELNSES,

F/KBAE=TTRHE KO AKE+EKEAHAKE,

20224, REE2021FEKMMAEEITELE, 2021FAKAEMAREITEE, 2021FEKEAMAKAENARERIER
2;%0

BEMAKENSA IEEEETRIK,
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BERIEE B 20204 20214 20224
ETERE
BT 4% A 5,682 6,084 6,760
Hep, SMETH A 4,164 4,426 4,932
ZHEETH A 1,518 1,658 1,828
BEhaRIHIE T A 5,682 6,084 6,760
BISIRIED B TE A 113 85 81
FEMET A 0 0 0
INA305% B T A 2,542 2,676 2,983
30-505% 8 T & A 3,018 3,271 3,624
A505% B T# A 122 137 153
ABEETE A 5,673 6,075 6,751
BINE T B A 9 9 9
REEZZE
BIMFRIERE % 0 0 0
E AT A AL A 0 0 0
AR T HA L) % 0 0 0
A T{EBRTIERE X 235 367 83
ST
2B E T ASEZEIIRR AN 100.1 119.9 122.2
Hr. TWETALHFIIRNER AN 101.4 121.5 123.7
EBEEETIAGEIRE AN 18.3 23.5 26.5
ZME T AGEIINE = 96.8 123.8 124.3
FHEE T ALFIRE /N 101.3 118.5 121.4
ERETIXIEER % 100 100 100
Hrh, TEREIXIESX % 100 100 100
FEEBEIXIIBEER % 100 100 100
ZMEIXRIIEEE % 100 100 100
FHBIZIIEEX % 100 100 100
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Ean B THEFPRE
BERIEER B 20204 20214 20224
EREXTREFRE
EmBREEX % 0.07 0.05 0.11
B & A % 2 B2 B R RE B A L 15 % 0 0 0
EF R
BERENELRRBRFEE % 8 0 0
KPR TFE R % 100 / /
RERE I
BERIEE B 20204 20214 20224
HEERER
HAER B 2L Ex 535 545 550
RN HIERE A Ex 399 410 413
MR 1A 2K EX 133 136 138
Bt rEmEg ER 110 115 112
EREBUHHEREE ER 0 0 0
RERMHER ] RIS )BT % 100 100 100
RMBHREE AR LBl % 28 29 31

1 BARSEERTST. @ELE. RE. BEITENFEOHRERHE,
2 BEHMEHRBRE. R, AR, £, [RE. LERFEERERME.
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RE)T
BEREE By 20205 202145 2022%
RES
RERBAAHBTAREEEBRETEBENESHA M 0 0 0
RIFHEE
HBERE
BERIEE By 20205 20214 20224
HERE
BT 2HEERREHIAZ A 449 1,324 4,189
TREEEHEFEE /|NBE 450 1,986 6,283
a) ATEFHERRAEBRBERIE
EERE REERAE
BIREM
RIFERE (FEARKFNBIRBEFREENFEARLMBEARTSEIEEN FEARLMBIRBREE N PEARL
MBS FRBEREENREARLNBRGHOERE)E
EREE
EmERE (PEARKNMBBEL2 AN TPEARENBEZRHANPEARENES AN EAZHERIEH X P
FEARRMERARPEAPREARKMEBEIAPEARENBERESEANNREARKMBEGEEN R E
ARKEMBGTEENFEARKNMBEINE G ENFREARKMBRTEEHFE) B 2REM. 5F
&, FFATAIPRHI ( fSFE [ REACH |) &5I5A# . Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE). BRR
HESFERRBERERELEBERDHIES (EHE RoHS |) &
MgEE (RFEARLNBEZEMNENPEARKNBZEREXREARKNBEEE) S
R
BTIEF
BTRE (TEARLMBELBHERENPEAREIMBER HESREENPEARIMEREREENPEARK
MELEREENFEARKIMBREZR X FEARIMBLBE N FEAREIMBAE X BRERBREE
PEENKERB S RBERIEE) E
BERE (PEAREMBEBRERAGENFEAREMBEL2EEE X THRRIEH ) E
HZe

WEHAN, RARARBEE PR ARER AR EAENETER SN, BRA LR FHSEMNRARFEE,
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b) HIZZRS
BIf5 . BEIEERE
MR EE WEEH
EVRLERE ESGE IR %
FE R R Al WMEREA
| s R B
CEam. [ FETRMERE KX

BE. —REEREEEREE HEEH
FEFHEARE
BEA1BERY
—RRIEERA e R
KPI A1.1 R s L EER
KPI A1.2 SRS 4% BLIE
KPI A1.3 2LEW
KPI A1.4 s1HER
KPI A1.5 ESGE B %I
KPI A1.6 s
EBEA2.5RER
— R IEFTEAL FERE R

KEIRER
KPI A2.1 REIRE IR
KPI A2.2 KERERE
KPI A2.3 BERE IR
KPI A2.4 KERER
KPI A2.5 E1LEM
EBEHEA3ERERXARER
—RE I FEAS RERE TR

KEREIR
KPI A3.1 REIRE IR

KEIRER
BEAL.EHRIEE L
—REHETEAL TR b 42 B3
KPI A4.1 E1LEM
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REEREREREE BHEES
TEHEBHERBREIER
[EEB1.1EE
— MR FEB B Tz RAEN
KPI B1.1 21N
KPI B1.2 =yl o
EEB2.RERHEZE
—MRIREEB2 BIfEEHEETSE
KPI B2.1 =yl o
KPI B2.2 21bER
KPI B2.3 =ER
EHEB3. 2% & ki3
— MR IEFEBS B TEREEE
KPI B3.1 =LER
KPI B3.2 2bER
[BTBA4.% T %8|
— MR =B B Tz EER
KPI B4.1 B Tz BT
KPI B4.2 EERIER
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2022F ERE. HARER
. REERBRENEE HEED

TESER. 4L IEEN
[EHEBS5.{EREE
—MIREEBS AIRFEM R E R
KPI B5.1 21LER
KPI B5.2 A B EEE R
EEB6.ERET
— MR I%FEB6 TP R EERRE
KPI B6.1 =yl o
KPI B6.2 21bER
KPI B6.3 P RGE R
KPI B6.4 P R%ER
KPI B6.5 iR L 2 EELRE
EBEB7.RES
— M FEB7 RE5
KPI B7.1 21LER
KPI B7.2 RE
[EHEBS.itERE
—MRi%FEBS ERRBEARES
KPI B8.1 N & EBERRS
KPI B8.2 21LER
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WIP (Working In
Progress)

WAT (Wafer Acceptance
Test)

CDA (Compressed
Dry Air)

MAU (Make-up Air Unit)

BCD (Bipolar-CMOS-
DMOS)

ERT (Emergency
Response Team)

IGBT (Insulated
Gate Bipolar Transistor)

MOSEFT (Metal-Oxide-
Semiconductor
Field-Effect Transistor)

MCU (Microcontroller
Unit)
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c) EERARGEHRARER
Ev-E el B
tapeout FER] T4& |, IEMREXER(C)sSHIMEEIR(PCB)RTHRE S, BlARHE,

XBERAERRE, BTEROERRE,
B Ao

RITERLEHREMH. TRER. FREOF

HEHREHEFWRAHE T (test key)HRIH, BEE2BRERESTERETEEMERE,

BB RER.

EHEMEAE, SREFTHEEZRN —EERASRE,

—EEREXNTER, EMER—H _E&EBipolar. CMOSHIDMOSES o

ERsRE M, SESERER/ ),
BRI RIE, RHBIT( BRE=IRE ) MIMOS ( BEMEIGHEE ) HKNEA R

ERE RS T R G,

%E(metal) A1t ¥(oxide)-¥ E §2(semiconductor) )5 W E R B2 E, MBS AL SR RE

o

mR E

HUEHEIT, XIBEA AT ER B, BIERRERSMMBRERRMEZER, I
H—JWT—\ sHEEE. USB. ADE# . UART. PLC. DMAZ A2 0, EELCDERFE E*%B
BAEEE A L, ERERROTE#R, ATRMNERSAMTRBEZH,
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EEEREHE B
ASIC (Application EREKRER, RERFEAFPENBEEFRENNTEMR . RENEKER,

Specific Integrated
Circuit)

OBC (On Board Charger) BNE# T, EEELZHETEHTE LHFTEK,

PMIC (Power NHEREEIC, 2 BEEMENENER, HIGERATAGFEREREILIE,

Management IC)

BMS (Battery FELEHERAR, T2RATERICEEMEESEEET, HLEEBHRBREMBIR

Management System) &, EREBMMNFEHASW, HEBMAKEE,

d)

5 4 B A

(FMFEEARAF022FFRT. HENEAREN UTHBEAI AHE |), KBEEUSWN, FRHMEHEET
BB MNEE, WERBARSE, MINEEEIREQARELE. e MERRETT HRRATTE RIS

& HE
MBHE. ARENEFMNFERERARRETAR, BEMARFERSAHY BT RREBE o

B E. 202241 51H —2022412A31H

& HE
. EEBMARIMERAB(RE. HERERRERESI N 2022F 1 AREMIR )
128X

AREEHNERMAEDERNEFERSALZAEANE . BETHENRIIRE XA BERETHRIGCELH
BlE, MET—RZE, AMBREBBLE, AREFAILEESEAARBERTEER, HRIFHBOHERN.

(EFRIR A

ZUHRA, ARBMNHREESNEABE I AINELEHBANELGURER, FRAREERER . AREF
HEEMZENERRSEINRESE S ENTERBALMERR SR, R, AREHRE. 2@NRFA
BHEARESREANEMEBTELESEXENSTHETEHER.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AR

Ernst & Young LXK BT RN ETEFT TelE:%. +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place EBHERREEEO79% FaxfEE . +852 2868 4432
979 King's Road N — 271 ey.com

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

To the members of Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hua
Hong Semiconductor Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 229 to 347, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Fair value of an unlisted equity investment

The Group’s equity investments
designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income as
at 31 December 2022 included
an unlisted equity investment
amounting to US$176 million.
The Group measures the
unlisted equity investment at
fair value at the end of each
reporting period and engages
an external expert to assess
its fair value. During the vyear,
this matter was significant to
our audit because the carrying
amount of the unlisted equity
investment was material to
the consolidated financial
statements and the valuation
process was complex and
involved significant judgements.

The Group’s disclosures about
the valuation of the unlisted
equity investment are included
in notes 3, 18 and 37 to the
financial statements, which
explain the key assumptions
that management used in the
valuation.

Our audit procedures included,
amongst others, assessing the
competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent
external valuer engaged
by the Group and involving
our internal specialists to
assist us in evaluating the
methodology of the valuation
and the key assumptions used
in the valuation such as the
determination of comparable
public companies (peers),
selection of the price multiple
and estimation of the discount
for illiquidity.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Fair value of an investment property

The Group recognised an
investment property amounting
to US$169 million as at 31
December 2022. The Group
measures its investment
property at fair value at the
end of each reporting period
and engages external experts
to assess its fair value.
During the year, this matter
was significant to our audit
because the carrying amount
of the investment property was
material to the consolidated
financial statements and the
valuation process was complex
and involved significant
judgements.

The Group’s disclosures
about the valuation of the
investment property are
included in notes 3 and 14 to
the financial statements, which
explain the key assumptions
that management used in the
valuation.

Our audit procedures included,
amongst others, assessing the
competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent
external valuer engaged by the
Group, comparing property-
related data used for the
valuation with the underlying
documentation and involving our
internal specialists to assist us
in evaluating the methodology
of the valuation and the key
assumptions used in the
valuation such as the estimated
rental value, term vyield,
reversionary yield and long-term
vacancy rate.
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’'s
report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

e  (Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Shun Lung Wai.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December 2022 % A *= \_4 %
BE—To—st+-A=t+—AtgE wIN [ Eﬁ:ﬂ.

2022 2021
—EC-CHF —E-—F
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Bz FERx FET
Revenue SHEIA 5 2,475,488 1,630,754
Cost of sales SHEMKA (1,631,832) (1,179,156)
Gross profit EF 843,656 451,598
Other income and gains E AU A R 5 70,986 60,758
Fair value gain on an investment property % & ¥ A FER 78 183
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEER (12,464) (10,673)
Administrative expenses EEEMR (266,666) (198,920)
Other expenses Hib &M 5 (111,360) (165)
Finance costs 5 ER 7 (40,331) (13,226)
Share of profits of associates BaXl=l N v 12,171 6,765
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BANEF 6 496,070 296,320
Income tax expense FriS B> 10 (89,499) (65,349)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREF 406,571 230,971
Attributable to: THIALEL -
Owners of the parent ISYNEILY-PN 449,912 261,476
Non-controlling interests JEPEAR RS (43,341) (30,505)
406,571 230,971
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE &4 A& ERESEAE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EERER.
OF THE PARENT: 12
Basic AR
— For profit for the year — FRmF US$0.345 US$0.201
0.345% 7T 0.2013%7T
Diluted By
— For profit for the year — F R US$0.342 US$0.198

0.342% T 0.198% 7T
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GONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF GOMPREHENSIVE INGOME

SEEHERER

Year ended 31 December 2022

HE-Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE
2022 2021
—SE-F —ET—4F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx F=
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 406,571 230,971
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hit 2 HE ks
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that may be RHEZHRA eEND S
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BREMEMEE (BB )
periods: &
Exchange differences on translation of foreign REGINETSEE EHHNE
operations et | (309,458) 80,630
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income that may be PREEEE A EFHHES
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BRENEMEE(EE )
periods W E5E (309,458) 80,630
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that will not be ~ REZ A EHHES
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BRENEMEE (BB )
periods: 2%
Equity investments designated at fair value EEERATHEST ARMEE
through other comprehensive income: W BB A .
Changes in fair value N EEE) (53,707) 15,564
Income tax effect Fristis & 8,348 (2,335)
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income that will REZBRETEENLES
not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BREOEMEE(EE )
periods W ERIF5E (45,359) 13,229
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FRHEMEE(EE )
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX sk, MBRFIE (354,817) 93,859
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR FREEKGEEE 51,754 324,830
Attributable to: THALEL
Owners of the parent ISYNEILTZ=PN 153,027 336,438
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R 2 (101,273) (11,608)
51,754 324,830
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANGCIAL POSITION

31 December 2022

B+t A=1—H

nvJ\

B BRI R

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
—s=-= —E—F
+=ZA=+—-H +=-—A=+—H
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Bz FErx FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME. WENEE 13 3,367,716 3,116,501
Investment property KEWE 14 169,363 184,883
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 78,425 75,331
Intangible assets B EE 16 32,986 35,312
Investments in associates REZ N BRI E 17 130,721 122,040
Equity investments designated EEERATHESTARMEE
at fair value through other W IR &
comprehensive income 18 178,632 257,788
Long-term prepayments to third parties JENE =7 2 REATA FRIA 7,742 15,673
Deferred tax assets IR E = 28 14,066 3,479
Total non-current assets JEMBEEMRTE 3,979,651 3,810,907
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Properties under development FEER M 19 134,723 114,492
Inventories w5 20 578,060 432,917
Trade and notes receivables B 5 EWGRIA R EWEE 21 291,856 181,042
Prepayments, other receivables TERTRIE. B EYRIE
and other assets Hih&EE 22 48,273 43,443
Due from related parties JFE LY BE B 5 B 0E 35(c) 13,006 6,910
Pledged deposits [REEETIVER /N 23 1,042 2,248
Cash and cash equivalents RWENIEESEEY 23 2,008,765 1,610,140
Total current assets mBNEELRE 3,075,725 2,391,192
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREAE
Trade payables B S IEFIR 24 236,999 194,385
Other payables and accruals HAb g RIBERE G E R 25 593,971 560,435
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTESRITER 26 426,756 195,024
Lease liabilities HERE 27 4,704 1,676
Government grants e =) 29 37,714 66,837
Due to related parties e B 5 5R0B 35(c) 6,096 7,501
Income tax payable FETFRSRL 76,176 54,543
Total current liabilities mENBEERE 1,382,416 1,080,401
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEZEH 1,693,309 1,310,791
TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES EERERRBAR 5,672,960 5,121,698

continued %&/...
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SEPHRRER O

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
—EC-CHF T —F
t=A=t+-8 t-A=t-=
Notes US$’000 US$'000
it FEx FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAR
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRERITER 26 1,481,580 1,395,279
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 14,644 16,137
Deferred tax liabilities EIETIEAE 28 41,268 25,735
Total non-current liabilities IEmBAERTE 1,537,492 1,437,151
Net assets BEEFHE 4,135,468 3,684,547
EQUITY e
Share capital &N 30 1,994,462 1,986,152
Reserves i 32 1,036,008 884,207
Total equity attributable to BARHEB AELERLATE
owners of the parent 3,030,470 2,870,359
Non-controlling interests JEIEALRE RS 40 1,104,998 814,188
Total equity EREE 4,135,468 3,684,547

Suxin Zhang
RED
Director

EZE

Jun Ye
13
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGESJN EQUlTY
g s RO B SR R B IR

Attributable to owners of the parent

O EIN
Fair value
reserve of
Other financial
capital assets at
reserve fair value (Accumulated
Share and  through other Statutory  Exchange losses)/ Non-
Share Merger option contributed comprehensive Revaluation  reserve  fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve  surplus income  surplus# funds reserve profits Total interests equity
ROTEHA
AftEx  Ef2ENE
R HeREEL EERE  NERE (BHEE)/

BE  AfEE BRERE HRR&R  OAVEGR EHEM B¢ B EREA Gt HERER  BEEE
Notes  US§'000  USS000  USS'000  USS000 USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000
kg TR TR TEn TER TEr A TER TEn TR FEn TR FER

(note 30) (note 31) (note 32) (note 40)
(330 (&3t [ iEs) [ H3t40)
At 1 January 2022 RZE--F-A-A 1,986,152 645,494 14,5724 35,685* 25,055* 99.257*  140426* 221,381 (297663)* 2,870,359 814,188 3,684,547
Profloss) for the year Fghl /| BR) - - - - - - - - Mgt ddogte  (4331)  d0gsTH
Other comprehensive EREp2ENE:
income for the year:
Change In fair value of equity  #FRATE AR
nvestmens designated PENGRHRERE
atfairvalue through oher — HATEES, 1%
comprehensive income, HE
net of tax - - - - (45,359) - - - - (45,359) - (45,359)
Exchange differences related  ARSENEHENE
{o foreign operations £ - - - - - - - (515%) - (515%)  (5793)  (309458)

Total comprehensive income ~ FRZENZLE

for the year - - - - (45,359) - - (251,526) 449912 153,027 (101,273) 51,754
Transfer of far value reserve  HHERATEFAE

upon the disposal of fr2mh RN RER

equity investments at BHEANTRRE

fair value through other

comprehensive income - - - - (1,943) - - - 1,943 - - -
Issue of shares B1kin 30 8,310 - (2,369) - - - - - - 594 - 5941
Equity-seffled share option [ EREEAERE

arrangements Rk 31 - - 1,143 - - - - - - 1,143 83 1,226
Capital contribution from FHARERLE

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - 392,000 392,000
Transfer from retained profs ~ E&E—HTAF

generated by a subsidiary  EHHETER - - - - - - 50,699 - (50,699) - - -
At 31 December 2022 RZE--F

TZA=+-A 1994462 645494 13,346* 35,685* (22,247 99257 191,125* (30,145 103493* 3,030,470 1,104,998 4,135,468

continued #&/...
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
BREBEBHR TN

Attributable to owners of the parent
BRAREEAER

Fair value

Other reserve of
capital ~ financial assets
reserve atfair value

Share and  through other Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share Merger option  contributed  comprehensive  Revaluation reserve  fluctuation  Accumulated controling Total
capital reserve reserve surplus income  surplus# funds reserve losses Totdl  interests equity
BRATEA
EpEx  AprENE
BER  meREEL EEkE  MNERD
BE alEE BRERE  H3ER ATERE  EhRH -5 R B FERER  ERER
Notes  US$000 US§000  USS000  US$000 US§1000 US§1000 US§000  US$000 US§000  US§000  US$000 US§000
W xR TEL TEL TEI T TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
(note 30) (note 31) (note 32) (note 40)
[Hiz30) (Fxst) stz ) (Hi40)
At 1 January 2021 RZF=-%-A-R 1,979,033 645,494 16,212 35,685 11,826 99,257 105,631 159,648 (524,344) 2528442 825679 3354121
Profitloss) for the year EfgTl /| BR) - - - - - - - - %1476 261476 (30505 230971
Other comprehensive EREp2ENE:
income for the year:
Change in fair value of equity  EFIRATE AR
nvestmens designated FENGRNRERE
atfairvalue through oher — HATEES, 1%
comprehensive income, i)
net of tax - - - - 13,229 - - - - 13229 - 13229
Exchange differences related  BREEGIEHEINE
to foreign operations B - - - - - - - 61733 - 61733 18,897 80,630
Total comprehensive EREENREE
income for the year - - - - 13229 - - 61,733 261,476 336,438 (11,608) 324,830
Issue of shares Bkh 30 7,119 - (1819) - - - - - - 5,300 - 5,300
Equity-setled share option Lz ehEefiiE
arrangements g3 31 - - 179 - - - - - - 179 17 2%
Transfer from retained profits ~ BRE—FHFAT
generated by a subsidiary  ELHERAR - - - - - - 34,795 - (34,79) - - -
At 31 December 2021 i
TZA=+-A 1,986,152 645494 14,572 35,680 25,050" 99267 140426 221381 " (297,663 2,870,359 814,188 3,684,547
#  Revaluation surplus arose from a change in use from an owner- #  EEERFRRIERTFEIRS —HEHYE
occupied property to an investment property carried at fair value. W2 EHRBIREYFE o
*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of Y RERBERSF BEEY fn’zz# - Leal:0) o
US$1,036,008,000 (2021: US$884,207,000) in the consolidated A 1,036, 008 000%73/ —E 4,

statement of financial position. 884,207,000% T )o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
meReRER

Year ended 31 December 2022

HE-Z-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE
2022 2021
—s=-= —E-—F
Notes Us$’000 US$'000
Mfat FEn FET
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHAERERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax Gaz0piavl 496,070 296,320
Adjustments for: AT SIREH .
Finance costs WEER 7 40,331 13,226
Share of profit of associates DIEERE R AR (12,171) (6,765)
Interest income FLEMA 5 (26,944) (13,437)
Dividend income from financial BAFERT AR
assets at fair value through other HHNEREEMEEY
comprehensive income A& B A 5 (63) -
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEMZE. BERBBEE
property, plant and equipment Bey( Uz ) B8 5 (5) 76
Depreciation of property, plant and M. WEREETE
equipment 13 439,917 302,245
Changes in fair value of an REMENTEES
investment property 14 (78) (183)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15 5,842 5,676
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 16 11,101 10,095
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of FEMRE MR R ) &=
inventories to net realisable value Al IRRE 6 19,612 (180)
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of g S5 EWEE (BE
trade receivables e ) HE 6 (16) 273
Impairment of items of property, plant ME. WFE&ZEEE
and equipment E 13 858 3,914
Equity-settled share option expense LA E M AR R 31 1,226 296
975,680 611,556
Increase in properties under development % F 4242 1) (29,624) (10,858)
Increase in inventories FEEM (154,646) (206,680)
Increase in trade and notes receivables & 5 FEURIE & FEI Z 2
11 (110,684) (60,391)
Increase in prepayments, other TETFRIA. EAthEUGRIA R
receivables and other assets H & ER M (4,248) (10,248)
Increase in amounts due from related JFE U B RS 5 FRIB AL N
parties (6,096) (2,204)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits 2 #E3RFFUR A 10 ) 1,880 (1,889)
Increase in trade payables B S I IR N 42,614 63,405

Increase in other payables and accruals — E {58 RE {4 E A

1840 110,940 137,861

(Decrease)/increase in government grants BN (354> ) 10 (22,645) 23,513
Decrease in amounts due to related e BE RS 5 SORR

parties (1,405) (5,146)
Cash generated from operations TESTEELNIRS 801,766 538,919
Income tax paid =ANIZIEST (50,901) (20,448)
Net cash flows generated from RETEHMBRESREFE

operating activities 750,865 518,471

continued #&/...



236  HUAHONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED #E4Tf@ a2 5R AR « 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE#i

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2022

,.v_\éiﬁﬁiﬁé'%% BE_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

2022 2021
s —E-—F
Notes Us$’000 US$'000
Btat FErx FET

CASH FLOWS FROM RETEHFERERE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received ECRE 28,450 5,899
Purchases of items of property, plant BEYE. MENMREER.

and equipment, prepaid lease TENTHEERIE KA

payments and intangible assets BE (996,182) (938,911)
Purchases of equity investments BERTEATE AR

designated at fair value through other 2E WM RAERE

comprehensive income - (6,290)
Purchases of an investment in an BER B2 RNKRE

associate (6,717) (7,405)
Proceeds from disposal of items of LEDE. BEREZHEEE

property, plant and equipment FTiS 708 109 54
Receipt of government grants for WEIB TS E. BE &

property, plant and equipment S B 38,414 83,594
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERANFEF AL MEE

assets at fair value through other Wiy & mb & E RS 5IE

comprehensive income 5,707 -
Dividends received from financial assets — WHiZ AFEFAEMEE

at fair value through other W eREERE

comprehensive income 63 -
Net cash flows used in RETEFMARSRETHE

investing activities (930,156) (863,059)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEZBMERSRE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRD P13 5RIE 6,248 7,419
New bank loans FILIRITE N 514,622 1,070,805
Capital contribution from non-controlling  FF¥EA%#EZS HE

interests 392,000 -
Interest paid EAFE (47,286) (11,729)
Repayment of bank loans ERRITER (199,670) (47,860)
Principal portion of lease payments SAHEERE D (3,246) (3,995)
Receipt of government grants for OB BT 0 B 75 B R O 4 B

finance costs 11,100 -
Payment of share issued expenses SRR EITHS (832) -
Increase in a pledged deposit — I IR FIL AN (759) -
Net cash flows generated from BMEEBMERSREFHE

financing activities 672,177 1,014,640
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERBSESEYBINFE

EQUIVALENTS 492,886 670,052
Cash and cash equivalents at FNRELREEED

beginning of year 1,610,140 922,786
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEEREETE, F5

changes, net (94,261) 17,302
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERAERAEEEY

END OF YEAR 23 2,008,765 1,610,140
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBAESEEYERIM

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHEER 23 735,800 379,968
Non-pledged time deposits with original ~ PESEREIER DR

maturity of less than three months when = {f A K FE B E EATF X

acquired 1,272,965 1,230,172
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in PR R EE S RERF

the statement of financial position and FroiR & MIREEEY

in the statement of cash flows 23 2,008,765 1,610,140
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NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022
“E-H+-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong on 21 January
2005. The registered office of the Company is located at Room
2212, Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central,
Hong Kong. The principal place of business is located at No.
288, Halei Road, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Shanghai.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
During the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of semiconductor
products and real estate development.

In the opinion of the directors, the parent of the Company is
Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Huahong Group”),
which is a state-owned company established in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) and supervised by the Shanghai
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission (“Shanghai SASAC”). The ultimate parent of the
Company is Shanghai SASAC.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

B SRR MY EE

REREEEHR

ETHEREBER AR ([ ARAE ) B—
FR_ETRF—A-_+—BHEEBF
MR BER AT, ARRINEMHE
BABEPIREBBI125ERIRITHL
2212F, T EEEMA A LETMRT
SR E RS E #2885

ARAMEBEHR/REZER. RF
A, AR FRRTIERELERE
mAEE RHE REHERE

EERA, ARANERAAR/LEE
W(RE)ARAR ([ FLEE ), &%
RAEAIRLHPEARKME(THE ) K
NIHEETHAEEAELEEERZE S
(TEEMHEEZR ) EENEE R,
ARABNREERAA R LBETERE
éo

BEAFARNESR
ARBHFRABFBEOT:

Percentage of
Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ to the Company
registration and registered share ARREERRES L
Name business capital ('000) Direct Indirect  Principal activities
MR,/ BRTEE/
28 B AR ES HRA( L) HE BE  IEEKEH
Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation ~ Cayman Islands US$0.001 100% - Investment holding
(“Grace Cayman’) REHE 000157 RERR
Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation
([ Grace Cayman )
Shanghai Huahong Grace Semiconductor PRC/Mainland China RMB7,828,578 100% - Manufacture and sale of
Manufacturing Corporation (‘HHGrace”)* HE /RER AR7 828 5787 semiconductor products
FEENEN+ERMEERAA( LN ) TERBETERER
Huahong Semiconductor (Wuxi) Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China US$2,536,852 22.2% 28.8%  Manufacture and sale of
(*Hua Hong Wuxi"y™ mE/ hEN 2536,852% T semiconductor products
EOHERE (&S ) BRAR ([ E1EH )" EEREETERER
Shanghai Huahong Real Estate (Wuxi) Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000 22.2% 288%  Real estate development
(*Huahong Real Estate Wuxi")** HE /HER AR30,0007T Bt EFE

LEETER(BH ) BRLAA([ EREXES )
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2022
T _F+-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REIREEER(EF)

(continued)

ERTLANER (&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Percentage of
Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ o the Company
registration and registered share ARARERRES L
Name business capital ('000) Direct Indirect  Principal activities
HRAL/ BRITEE/
&3 B RER EBEA( ) Ei B TEEHEH
Huahong Semiconductor Manufacturing (Wuxi) PRC/Mainland China RMBG,680 100% - Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. (*Hua Hong Manufacturing Wuxi")** RE/FER AR 6,680 semiconductor products
EERaE (B ) EROA ([ 2U8ERSE ) TERBETERER
Global Synergy Technology Limited (“GST’) PRC/Hong Kong HK$10 100% - Trading
TEHBARRR ([ B ) HEVES S 1087 g5
HHGrace Semiconductor USA, Inc. USA - 100% - Sales office
*H - HEHER
HHGrace Semiconductor Japan Co., Ltd. Japan JPY10,000 100% - Sales office
A% 10,0008 HENER
*  HHGrace is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned company under Y BT R N RE B A RS B
PRC law. S PAT
“*  Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong Manufacturing Wuxi are o ZEYTAE R R AT UG A B IR 15 A B4

registered as a Sino-foreign joint company under PRC law.

under PRC law.

Huahong Real Estate Wuxi is registered as a domestic company

During the year, Hua Hong Manufacturing Wuxi was

established.

NS

BiEMBrIEE R Ao

ELERELIRE T EZETMBA
B A

AN, FERGERBKIL.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eeeonnn AR MTEE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for an investment
property, equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (“US$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has, directly or
indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights
of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

2B EE

ZEFBHRRIBEHE LGNS
(IEBGAE ) BHNEEYE
SEA(TFBHBMEER |, B
PRAEEEBMEHMEER. FEGER
(TEBEEER ) 2B ). BEAR
S ERAR TR R RHEDIREL, 87
BRDBBELKAERE, SR
NHEFENREMR. FERAFE
FPAEM R AR SR RERE RIZAF
B ABBZNEREERIN . ZFHH
BRAEXT([ET )25, M3
RSN, FMEBECRHBREREOINT
(V28

RERE

HAVBRRBEARARFAREFLQF
(REAIAKE NBE_T__F+
A=+t REFENMBER. TA
AR ARAERAHEENNER
(BREEBLEER ) MAKEEE2H
WRETEGMEA LB ERBREE
AR R EETER, BEENITEERKE
TRRAFEERE®R, MAKERE
A E RS ( BRI T A% B
B E S RRAERE IR AR )

R—RERTOEESZBREEKIE
HlEZHEE, WARREEKEEE
BERRIE T R SRR T A
¥, A ARRSHRRESREHE
B, AEEeERMARBEER
B, 8.

(a) HEZEEE T EMBREEE AN
BRRHE,

(b) RBEEMADLZHEMZEARNERN,
4

(c) AEEHREENEERRR,

TR ERA R A E B R IR O S A
R, YA -REABRREE. T2
Bl A R AR B RS E S 2 B R
RAaAlk, LTHESES AREZSED
REERIER AL,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ERERMEE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described above.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a

loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the

first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:

Proceeds before Intended
Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

2AmMBERE(F )

REEE(E)

T%iﬁ?&&ﬁﬁﬂ’ﬁ@ﬂ& S & D T R
REBE ﬂi‘%ﬁ/\&#? Petges, B
EBOHE R E LB G SR, NE
BB RABZER 5 MES M S EA AL
EERAE. #m. KA. XHRBAS
MEBELHRE AR 22,

HEERBABR LA =HIFHREZ
—Iﬁiylﬁﬂjfﬁ g, AEESEHT
HEREEBIRKE . TARINMA
S “EJJ BBREEGIRE), mig
BmR P Ao

A S B 2k K8 —F A B R B4,
BIEBCHER)Z T RAANEE ( BIE
e ) RaE, (i)TMIEE %'Jﬁﬁﬁnﬁ’]ﬁﬁ
EEE N F R R RN

B, REROFIBRENAFE, (ii)Ffr
REEMZERNRFE R EEF T
AIAMEERN BB EB. LR EMD
EHE M WEEJSE’JZKE@JEfE%{ ES
PHEABBERBEN(WER), W
ZSE@EEE&%mFﬁﬁEjZﬁﬁE'Jﬁ
VAR — MR,

BHBENRBRKE

AEBCRMALERFREIBRRE R
ERATRETE B BRELEL,

BRR B ImEER BERHER Z At
ERVARCHIEN
BB EREI6T YE BEK

({B5TA) RiE (FERTH
BHIZHTEE
ERGIEREITR  BELAN -
({B5TA) EBITAAZHA
DR B REER BB 5 28
—F-)1FZ2 B, BB
—E-_TFEAHZFE  BHBREER
B2t Fo%. BEY
SR RS
16558 KT 2 &t
BRI RGBS

GEHER 41
A TES
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual
Framework”) issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to
HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine
what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that
would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int
21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed
in a business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3
should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively
instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group
has applied the amendments prospectively to business
combinations that occurred on or after 1 January 2022.
As there were no business combinations during the year,
the amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost
of those items as determined by HKAS 2 /nventories, in
profit or loss. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment
made available for use on or after 1 January 2021.
Since there was no sale of items produced prior to the
property, plant and equipment being available for use,
the amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

31 December 2022
—THF ‘ 7/—‘7 T f

B RS ¥R R B

228 BN BB RKE(HE)

HERARARE ZRETEEMHREE
AlMEE R EHER TX.

(a)

BAREMBRELEFEIWR (EFTA)
N—F—N\FRABMNTEHE
BERAEZR ([ HSAER |) 00 4R B
RBRRZ 5/ K AIER A
AIfEs, MBAKNEREELER,
ZEERI AT BB AW RS %R
FIFIBMEERRAWGISN, BB
A2EHRSERETEENAEBR
BREER. ZPISMERRE, HR
BRMIENEBA P AEEBR
FREGHERIEI7TRAEE (EER
MHHRERERES - 2ES21
BEMRERIARAE, KABTEYH
BHRESEAEIFNERED FIER
BB G EREITRAEE (
BB HRERERES ) -2ESR
215%, MIEBMBER. LI, &
FEFIABBFRAEERRER S
THEERER. AEEEH-F
T oF AR RBEENER
BHETHEEER . ARFARY
BXRBOO, RETHAREENES
B R R A BRI E,

=

FRGERIFE1R (EFTA) R
LHEREYE. BMEARERBEN
AR MR EEEEDERERTE
ZEEREMTALE RBIEMBRED
EERIAR HE ZEMMAEHE,
Bk, BERAREESEERE
R EREaTEAEEENE
BB 2SR EEB 2K
Ko REBBH _T-_—F—A—
Bz &AM ERNME. BE R
REEBEPEAZFET R, A
REWMER. BEMEEAIHERZ
MY EBEREENER, Bibx
CHERS R3O E 3k
EEMFE,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2022

—ECF+ZA=1+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do
not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under
the contract. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled
all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and no onerous
contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

(d) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out

amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendment that is applicable to the Group are as follows:

e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those
paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. The
Group has applied the amendment prospectively
from 1 January 2022. As there was no modification
or exchange of the Group’s financial liabilities during
the year, the amendment did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

2.38 SEMEIE M Kt W 2 B B B
4 g

AEEWENZENHEHREAER T

ERMEMRERZ T REIESFTES

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements. HREXER,
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BENBRSEAZ0ER Ll N
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its B ElE% PEIBHEENED R

Associate or Joint Venture® “5——F | iK)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and EREBREEYE 168 EREENEERE
Leaseback? (B3R

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’ BENEREEAZ RERAAT

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'® ﬁ?’éﬁﬁ%fm%ﬁ‘l%ﬂ% FEAHS

(B3TK)

Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 BRUBREEUE TS BABAE BT ED
and HKFRS 9 — Comparative (3% ) FRRERRTEE
Information® E95 - L REH

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as ERGHEANZIR(BAR)  EESEEIBIENG
Current or Non-current (the ([ZE=FF5T )
“2020 Amendments”)?*

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities BEGHENER(BEIR)  REEZETIEE
with Covenants (the “2022 (8567 ))
Amendments”)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting ERGHENEIRRERUER SHRAE

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies’ %ﬁﬁ-/ﬁi‘ ERRELE
(5%

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting BREEUSSR(BIR) SR
Estimates’

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets BEGHENS R BIR)  HE-REELHEER
and Liabilities arising from a BERENELHE

Single Transaction’

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 T ORZEFZ=F-A—HRZEFABHZ
EEHEEN
2 FEffective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 2 ROZF-WNFE-—HA-HRZEFHIEZ
FJZ B X4
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for 3 HREETE 5 KA R A B AT IR
adoption
4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective 4 AR ZFE = —FE ,J, :5;5 FEEFE
date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods il 5’75@ W E A= /gF—H—
beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a A IZ ﬁ%ﬁ7in2¢f€§ﬁ7o ok, H
consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments, RIEZZTFBETRE T - —FK
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements il éﬁ%é‘ﬁ%Sﬁ ﬁjﬁﬁimffﬁ —
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains BAANLEEILELIE EiE F

a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the Q%’(Wﬁ?ﬁgﬂigﬁ/
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion R — B T A i T

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to
the classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it
on initial application of HKFRS 17

HRR—F —FFE+ HREMHAEELY
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss
resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s
interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are
to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of a
broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in
a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee
does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates
to the right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall
be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16
(i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG .30 BB 4 5k 4 M > BB EHE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current, in particular the determination
over whether an entity has a right to defer settlement of the
liabilities for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA
issued the 2022 Amendments to further clarify that, among
covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement,
only those with which an entity must comply on or before
the reporting date affect the classification of that liability as
current or non-current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments
require additional disclosures by an entity that classifies
liabilities arising from loan arrangements as non-current when
it has a right to defer settlement of those liabilities that are
subject to the entity complying with future covenants within
12 months after the reporting period. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. An entity that applies the 2020 Amendments early
is required to apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments,
and vice versa. The Group is currently assessing the impact
of the amendments and whether existing loan agreements
may require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-
mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality
to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance
provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
is non-mandatory, an effective date for these amendments is
not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting the accounting
policy disclosures to ensure consistency with the amendments.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies. Accounting estimates are defined as monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that
period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is
available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related
to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or other component of equity as
appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall be
applied prospectively to transactions other than leases and
decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did
not recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences for transactions related to leases.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 Ej{%%‘fﬂ(fﬁﬁg
POLICIES
Investments in associates REENTINIKRE

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of an associate is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investment in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
an associate is included as part of the Group’s investment in
an associate.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit
or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment property, equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in

their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 04 EAEH HEME ()

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, investment properties and non-current assets/
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating
unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to
an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest
group of cash-generating units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) bhas significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAERETHEHBE(E
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued) BT (&)
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: (continued) AT AT B3R A E KK B
(&)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b) ZATARFTE TIEMMGHENE
applies: B2
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEBEXSEBR —%E
group; )P 4=E/NCIE
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (i) EBAS—HEB (5 —EB
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary MERE. FRAKARTF
of the other entity); AE)WEERRRAEE D
E
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (iiy ZEBEAEE AR —F=
same third party; FHAEERE
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the (iv) B A—RE-_FEENE
other entity is an associate of the third entity; EhE ME—EBRA%E
=FEBMNEE QT
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (v) ZEBATEEFEKNEE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity EHBHNEEREENRR
related to the Group; SRR ERETE
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ZEBBE@)IBMIALTIZES
person identified in (a); s B
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) (a)(i )Iﬁﬁﬁ§|J/\i¥T§ TR
influence over the entity or is a member of the key B8 257‘7‘22%%2% (3
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent E f‘g’%ﬁ’]l AIMEEER
of the entity); and B8 &
(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (Vi) ZEBIZEBBSEN
part, provides key management personnel services SR CIF D E=/NE W= PN S ETE= N
to the Group or to the parent of the Group. SEHEA TkT,\E Z2ER
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended

use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful

lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal

annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 3.8%
Plant and machinery 9.5% to 19.0%
Office equipment 19.0%
Motor vehicles 19.0%
Leasehold improvements 20.0%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,

at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 04 EAEH HEME ()

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal
or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Investment property

Investment property is interest in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such property is measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the investment property is stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
investment property are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Process technology licence and software

Process technology licence and software are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years of
the underlying products, commencing from the date when the
products are put into commercial production.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.
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2QABEREHBEME(H)

POLICIES (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Land use rights 42 1o 50 years
Buildings 2 to 20 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets to leases of office equipment that is
considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 04 EAEH HEME ()

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
other income and gains in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as other income and gains in the period in which
they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through

profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value

through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 04 EAEH HEME ()

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining
fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is
required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 04 EASHHEME (F

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit
risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days to 150 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

— Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2

Stage 3 Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal

to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings or payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, amounts
due to related parties, interest-bearing bank borrowings and
lease liabilities.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 04 EAEH HEME ()

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied.
Gains or losses on liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
except for the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own
credit risk which are presented in other comprehensive income
with no subsequent reclassification to the statement of profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement
of profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis, and
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Costs for properties under development include
land costs, construction costs and other direct and indirect
development expenses in relation to property development.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 04 EAEH HEME ()

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when there is a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event
and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 04 EAEH HEME ()

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement of profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2ABREFTBERBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods
or services to the customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services in exchange for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using a binomial model, further details of which
are given in note 31 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

2QABEREHBEME(H)

LA 4249 5K
AprEE—RBRESS, 5EE
HERHAEBEXERNELERNE
EmsEE, ~"EEER(BRESE)
AR sk ey 0 A MBS B, (B B4R
HIRBEAMBBEATA ([ REGEER
2 1o

REHARARESETREGERI SN
A, Th2REH B KR FEME
B, AHEMIMNEHERMFA AR
AEE, E—FHBHERUBREME
31,

P A5 52 5 NS [ 4 o A PR AN BB
0, AR, HIRS A E R E R
HNERERNMAXER. BERBA
HIfTR S IR ERNRBEE R HH
RN, RRFEHE I LA
SEHRKEERENRATAZKBN
REMA. BAERERNGRIER,
Tyie V) AR B R RET R K0
@JO

EERBHNXEBPQTELTEER
B RO B RIRRA, MHEREER R
MR BEMERIRFT E AR RRRBAAE
B A T AZE B &EMGA 87,
MIERBGI S RRER D AR F
Bo PR 2R B I EARRE RS IR TS 2
SKEE A AR 1R R IR B R 1T o
RERIFEBB IR ER A FERET T
BERB K HKRBE G TIENE T A
X $Ho



2022 F[Z#E ANNUAL REPORT 2022 « #7482 HR /AR HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 273

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eeeonnn AR MTEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 04 EAEH HEME ()

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. This
subsidiary is required to contribute a certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension

scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the

payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in

connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2AE RS BERBE (&

POLICIES (continued)

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in US$, which is
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain Mainland China and
overseas subsidiaries and associate are currencies other
than US$. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into US$ at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into US$ at
the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the
dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of Mainland China and overseas subsidiaries
are translated into US$ at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of Mainland China and overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into US$ at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the commercial property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial property,
that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased
out and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are described below.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on
a market-based valuation technique as detailed in note 37 to
the financial statements. For an unlisted equity investment of
US$176,190,000 as at 31 December 2022 without recent deal
price to be referenced, the Group determines the comparable
public companies (peers) and select the price multiple.
addition, the Group makes estimates about the discount for
illiquidity and size differences. Further details are included in

notes 18 and 37 to the financial statements.

Fair value of an investment property

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from the

discounted cash flow projections.

Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates
of future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing
lease and other contracts and (when possible) by external
evidence such as current market rents for similar properties in
the same location and condition, and using discount rates that
reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in the

amount and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of the investment property as at 31
December 2022 was US$169,363,000 (31 December
2021: US$184,883,000). Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity

analysis, are given in note 14 to the financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into one
single business unit that includes primarily the manufacture
and sale of semiconductor products. Management reviews the
consolidated results when making decisions about allocating
resources and assessing the performance of the Group.
Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented.

The principal assets employed by the Group are located
in Shanghai and Wuxi, the PRC. Therefore, no segment
information based on the geographical location of non-current
assets is presented for the year.

Revenues are attributed to geographical areas based on the
locations of customers. Revenues by geographical segment
based on the locations of customers for the year are presented
as follows:

erass PIISERERME

REDHER
HRERRE, FEEERA—ELY

B, T2ERUENRHEFERE
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KA R EERB R ELGEEE,
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AEBEANTIZEEUNRTE LER
B, HUBZIFRDEENMIEUE
RERZINDEER

IR & RS WA TR B P AT 8
Do FRREFPAEMEID HHE D F
WAZFIET

2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—F

US$’000 US$'000

EYH FET

China (including Hong Kong) e BIERE) 1,811,269 1,205,149
North America b 297,683 159,281
Asia (excluding China and Japan) TN TEEFERER) 210,610 169,227
Europe B 114,728 70,627
Japan Bz 41,198 26,470
2,475,488 1,630,754

The Group is involved in the business of the manufacture
and sale of semiconductor products. Revenue from the sale
of semiconductor products is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the semiconductor products, where
the performance obligation is satisfied. The normal credit term
is 30 to 45 days upon delivery. Payment in advance is required
for some contracts.

Information about major customers

No revenue amounting to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue
was derived from sales to a single customer for the year ended
31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil).
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HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 4T &8845 R A "] » 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE &

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA, Hit WA RKERH
AND OTHER EXPENSES & A
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains and other A L HAUWA R ias & E A A A
expenses is as follows: DT
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FErx FET
Revenue from contracts with customers BEF &z
Sale of goods HEEm 2,475,488 1,630,754
Other income Hi A
Gross rental income from investment REREMELEHED
property operating leases: THS A LBEE .
Fixed lease payments B &R 14,358 14,488
Interest income F B A 26,944 13,437
Government subsidies BT AL 27,679 7,288
Sale of scrap materials SHERER 1,476 586
Others At 524 1,015
70,981 36,814
Gains Y
Foreign exchange gains, net NG FE 5 W 25 )5 R - 23,944
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEDE. MENMKEER
plant and equipment IRE & 5 _
70,986 60,758
Other expenses HihEH
Foreign exchange loss, net HNEBE 5 1R R 2R 106,804 -
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEDE. MEMIEEREN
plant and equipment B8 - 76
Others Hih 4,556 89
111,360 165
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. KA. Hitik AR KHERH
AND OTHER EXPENSES (continued) ftEH (&)
2022 2021
—Eg—— —E-—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FERT F=7
Types of goods EmEn
Sales of semiconductor products and FEREEDREERM
total revenue from contracts with RKEEFPELHLAUA
customers 2,475,488 1,630,754
Timing of revenue recognition LONiFA=10]
Goods transferred at a point in time AR —RHEENER N
and total revenue from contracts RKEEFPELHBUA
with customers 2,475,488 1,630,754
The disaggregation of the Group’s revenue based on the BE_T__H+_A=1t—HL*F
geographical region for the year ended 31 December 2022 is &, REBERRNKADEEHIN

given in note 4. FMisEd,
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BiADER
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ RNEBMAOBAEF HRINBR TFA)
(crediting): THEIBEE.
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Notes Us$’000 US$'000
et Ep FET
Cost of inventories sold BEETFERA 1,631,832 1,179,156
Depreciation of property, plant and ME. BENMERETE
equipment 13 439,917 302,245
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTRESETE 15 5,842 5,676
Amortisation of intangible assets A 16 11,101 10,095
Research and development costs R B8 k2N 160,936 86,068
Lease payments not included inthe ki ABEAESE
measurement of lease liabilities MAEERR 33(b) 2,625 1,572
Auditor’s remuneration % B B = B 1,395 660
Employee benefit expense (including EERAMHAS ( BHEEER
directors’ and chief executive’s TR THABOE M
remuneration (note 8)): (BIzE8 ) ):
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE. He REMER 382,804 289,787
Equity-settled share option expense AR A E BB RIER S 31 1,226 296
Pension scheme contributions RNSFTEMER( TR
(definedcontribution scheme) * HHEE ) 31,660 28,287
415,690 318,370
Impairment of items of property, plant  #1%. BB R BEEER
and equipment B 13 858 3,914
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment & 5 EUIE ( #E )/
of trade receivables BB 21 (16) 273
Write-down/(reversal) of inventories to 12 &#i ( BE ) &
net realisable value AR E 19,612 (180)
Changes in fair value of an investment &R FEEE)
property 14 (78) (183)
*  There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by * REEEREF B AR
the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of R R F B 5K Fo

contributions.
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B RS ¥R R B

—E-__F#+-HA=+—H
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BIEEH

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$000
FEx FET
Interest on bank borrowings IRITIEFF B 39,451 12,347
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEF B 880 879
40,331 13,226

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EEREREITHAENHMH

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

RIE ETAR B R BB R &G 5£383(1)
(a). (b). C)ENHETR(AR(HE =
ERHZER )R ) FoBWBENARFE

EERERITHRABRH

Ban T

2022 2021

—E=-= —E—F

US$’000 US$000

FEx FET

Fees e 234 231
Other emoluments: EHapil < .

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ ZFil. AL R EWFIZ 206 179

Performance related bonuses ER R IR BRI IEAT 452 593

Equity-settled share option expense NEREENEBRERS 57 99

Pension scheme contributions RIS EHEIHE R 9 9

724 880

958 1,111

In prior year, certain directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out
in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date
of grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above directors’ and
chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.

RBEFE, ETEFREARANE
Bt R E AR EREH A RGER
FERHE, EAE—DEIRENR R KM
31, HABREN R FECKREY
REBEHEXRER, YRROAHETAR
REFR B HREABRNSED T AR
BEERERITHRABNHHEES,
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EENEETHAENEM
REMUNERATION (continued) (48 )
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIUFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FHANMBLIERTEETIAHOES
during the year were as follows: m
2022 2021
—EB-—F - —F
Us$’000 US$'000
FErx FET
Stephen Tso Tung Chang SR AE A 78 77
Kwai Huen Wong, JP FiEE, KFat 78 7
Long Fei Ye HheE 78 77
234 231
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRWBEN TRULIERITESH
independent non-executive directors during the year HinBle( T =_—%F. &),
(2021 Nil).
(b) A non-executive director and the chief executive (b) kHITEERBESITHAER
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Performance settled Pension
and benefits related share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration

FM. 2RR RERRMN NRREEN BikE
e BENNE MR REREEx  HEHR FHeER
US$000  US$000  US$000  US$000  US$000  US$000
TER TER TEn TEn TER TER

2022 —F--
Chief executive: ReTHRAE.
Mr. Junjun Tang EHERE - 206 452 57 9 724
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERESITHAENIHN
REMUNERATION (continued) (48 )
(b) A non-executive director and the chief executive (b) HTESERBRSTHAE(H)

(continued)

Salaries, Equity-
allowances  Performance settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration

FH. RER  ERAEES NESREN ERE
ik BN WAL BIRERX IR Ham
US$:000 US$'000 US$000 US$000 US$:000 US$:000
TET TET TET TET TET TET

2021 —EC-—f
Chief executive: ReTHRAE.

Mr. Junjun Tang EHELE - 179 593 99 9 880
Save as disclosed above, none of the directors received BRI EEIN, MEEEN T
any emoluments during 2022 and 2021. ToERZIEBEZ—FIWRRAEAEH

B o
There was no arrangement under which a director waived REA, BEESELLHEREK

or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. B = B E B o
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31 December 2022
T _F+-A=+—H

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included one
director, who is also the chief executive (2021: one director
being also the chief executive), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the
year of the remaining four (2021: four) highest paid employees
who are not directors of the Company are as follows:

9. IEBREHEER

FR, IZea EERE—RES
(MAERSTHRABNZZEZ—F. —
ZEZE(NMARSTHRAR)), EHH
BN EXE8, TN, EHME
(ZE2=—F. HB)WIIEARRES
NEmHEEMFFBSLT.

2022 2021

—E—= —E-—F

US$’000 US$'000

EpH FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind B, F8E R EWF = 1,127 1,094
Performance related bonuses AR IR MM TEAL 771 1,384
Equity-settled share option expense R EENERERS 121 97
Pension scheme contributions RIS R B 9 26
2,028 2,601

The number of highest paid employees who are not directors
of the Company and whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

HEEN A THRIBOLIFARBEEH
ReFEEABLT.

Number of employees

EEAE

2022 2021
—E—-= —E-—F
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 £3,000,000/8 7T 2 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T £3,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7 £ 4,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T E4,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7 £5,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7t £5,500,000/ 7T 1 -

HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001/ 7 £7,000,000/ 7T -
4 4

In prior years, share options were granted to four non-director
and non-chief executive highest paid employees in respect of
their services to the Group, further details of which are included
in the disclosures in note 31 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised in
the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included in
the above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.

RBEFE, MEFEERFEESTR
ABMESFHEEREAASBIRHR
BRERERE, RE—PHBRUHR
RIESRE ., HEABRENQFED
ZEBMNERRER, XNEEBEH
EFARNAFERBERRARNEED
SHARRFE R RFRBITHRA BN R
= EBNFMRED
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10. FT18%

Profits arising in Hong Kong were subject to profits tax at the
rate of 16.5% during the year (2021: 16.5%). No provision for
Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Company and
a subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong had no assessable
income during the year (2021: Nil).

The Company'’s subsidiary incorporated in the Cayman Islands
is not subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”) as it does not
have a place of business (other than a registered office) or
carry on any business in the Cayman Islands.

All of the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC and
only having operations in Mainland China are subject to PRC
enterprise income tax on the taxable income as reported in
their PRC statutory accounts adjusted in accordance with
relevant PRC income tax laws based on a statutory rate of
25%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and
with approval from the tax authorities in charge, one of the
Group’s subsidiaries, HHGrace, is qualified as a “High and
New Technology Enterprise” and was therefore entitled to a
preferential tax rate of 15% from 2020 to 2022.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC
and with approval from the tax authorities in charge, one of
the Group’s subsidiaries, Hua Hong Wuxi, is entitled to an
exemption from CIT for five years, commencing from the first
year that Hua Hong Wuxi generates taxable profit, and a
deduction of 50% on the CIT rate for the following five years.
Hua Hong Wuxi was in accumulated tax loss positions as at 31
December 2022 and the tax holiday has not begun.

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated and operating in
Japan was subject to corporation tax at a rate of 33.58%
(2021: 33.58%).

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated and operating in the
United States was subject to federal corporation income tax at
a rate of 21% during the year (2021: 21%), as well as state tax
at 8.84% (2021: 8.84%).

RERE SR AKRI6.5%( ZF=
—F. 16.5% ) TR EENFEH. A
RARR R —REBBAMERINTA
AR ERITEEERTHUA, W&
REBMNERIELBE( ZZ=—F.
£ )

o

BHRARBERSESEMKIZNTA
AERSHEYEEE XM (M
WMERIRIN) HEEEMER, WA
FRABEHBNECEMEHR ([ EEMR
BH o

FBEARREDEZMEEETEAM
LENTFAR, BRERIEEREEHR
BREABRNPEIEZERE T2 RER
U AIZ25% K EE R R BN ELE
Fiig o

BIEFBRAEERERREREEE
WEAHLE, AEE—RTFTARELR
NHEEERK A S FEMEE ], &
R -_ZE-_TFE T - —FHMARK
15% M BB R,

BIEFBAEERERREREEE
WEAtE, AEE—RTRRIETED
EEBESERH AN E —FRAFE
ROBMmEEmSE, kEEAFRR
50%, BZE T —_F+_A=+—
H, EMEBHFIHEEE, B4
TRER M AR

AR EE B AT M EERN TR A
JlE 1%233.58% ( — & — — . 33.58% )
Fy (b TR R BT

AAREERFMA L K EERNT AR
JERNFERNIL21%( ZZF = —F. 21%)
B B ERSHENE84%( ZF =
—F. 8.84% ) MMTRELEHT
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31 December 2022
T _F+-A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FR8% (& )

The major components of income tax expense of the Group NEBAEHESH T EBAEK MM
are as follows: .
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Current income tax — PRC EHERH — P 74,516 49,910
Current income tax — elsewhere EHAEH — HaibE 43 41
Withholding tax on the distribution of B A R R AR B TR
dividend from a PRC subsidiary 2,500 -
Deferred tax (note 28) IRFERLIA ( fizE28 ) 12,440 15,398
89,499 65,349
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before BARNR RERE D TR a4 E TR

tax at the statutory rate of 25% for the jurisdiction in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to

VEME R KA TE TR R 25% T B B B A /m Fl
REARERY, BRERREFED

the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: HMIERSTOERIOT.
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FErx FET
Profit before tax T B A 496,070 296,320
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% RN E25% T EHFIE 124,018 74,080
Effect of different tax rates for specific BEA D MER S
provinces and countries or enacted by EREMH TR ENTZE
local authority (57,612) (39,700)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of gt —HAR & EAFL B Y
previous periods 309 71
Profits attributable to associates B N A (SR A (1,826) (1,015)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR B 32 434 153
Tax losses not recognised due to tax B BA i R R B TE g 18
holiday 50,695 47,629
Tax losses not recognised due to [ R JR AN K A] BE B A JE R A
improbable future taxable profits i AR HE R TR IEE 18 1,481 2,144
Temporary differences not recognised RIERE =% 129 927
Additional deduction of research and Tt B2 AR AN L b 0K
development costs (42,532) (33,753)
Additional deduction of equipment 2% 1 E A IR (3,630) -
Effect of withholding tax at 10% (2021: HAREBFEF AR HYIR
10%) on the distributable profits of the AIA10% ( Z = —4F .
Group’s PRC subsidiary 10% )it BB & 18,033 14,813
EAEBERBERTEN
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BIER Y 89,499 65,349
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DIVIDEND

The directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,303,399,389 (2021: 1,300,169,098) in
issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
the exercise price on the deemed exercise or conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

31 December 2022

—E-__F#+-HA=+—H

11.

12.

B RS ¥R R B

3=\

EETERLMNBE_T_—_F+_A
=t -ALEFEZEFRE( T~
FBE)

BRAAEBRERSE ARG
BREF

BRERZF T ERT QBT ERE
BFEHEABGEFANARAERFRNE B
£71,303,399,389x ( — & — — 4.
1,300,169,0984% ) & @ fx /Y N # F 15
HErE,

SRCHEIRVNSEIRES AR ER
IR A AREFREMFTE SHER
KAz EBBRIMEF OB A EERE
RENERBZFANDETEERARA
I E R P B BRI RTT
PR BASEBRFATTREETZE
BN 98,
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12.F P AL ERERSEAENL
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE EREFR(E)
PARENT (continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are BRERAREERFNAETIER.
based on:
2022 2021
—EB-—F - —F
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Earnings B
Profit attributable to ordinary equity SAREREERE A
holders of the parent FE (R 449,912 261,476

Number of shares

REOEE
2022 2021
—EC- & —E-—F
Shares B
Weighted average number of ordinary ARsrEERERZFNNTER
shares in issue during the year used in BEITE BRI
the basic earnings per share calculation 1,303,399,389  1,300,169,098
Effect of dilution — weighted average TR EE OB E.
number of ordinary shares:
Share options B8 A% 10,545,888 19,996,637

1,318,945,277  1,320,165,735
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—ECoF+ZA=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 9% BERSDE

Plant and Office Motor ~ Leasehold Construction
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles improvements in progress Total
BT HERHE W% AE RENERE EEIR h
US§'000 US§'000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000
SE TER TER TER TER TER TER
31 December 2022 ZE-CZE+ZA=+-R
At 1 January 2022: R-B--E-A-R.
Cost R 480,349 6,752,780 64,260 1,805 4,289 252,902 7556,385
Acoumulated depreciationand ~ BEFERE
impairment (200048)  (4,133.22) (44,323) (1,244) (4.257) (16,880)  (4,439,884)
Net carrying amount FH3E 240,401 2,619,557 19,937 561 32 236,013 3,116,501
At 1 January 2022, net of \-Z2--F-F-H,
acoumulated depreciatonand 1B 23t TERAE
impairment 240,401 2,619,557 19,937 561 32 236,013 3,116,501
Additions RE - - - - - 955,100 955,100
Transfers g5 1,609 478,395 3,556 53 1Y) (483,655) -
Disposal RE - (194) (236) )] - - (441)
Depreciation provided FREHRNE
during the year (15,646) (419,467 (4,655) (136) (13) - (439,917)
Impairment HE - (822) (36) - - - (858)
Exchange realignment EHAE (19,884) (221,418) (1,734) (40) &) (19,590) (262,669)
At 31 December 2022, net of i St
accumulated depreciation and TZR=1-H,
impairment MREFRERAE 206,480 2,456,051 16,832 421 58 687,668 3,367,716
At 31 December 2022: RNZE-ZF
'I':ﬂ E+_ E :
Cost R 442,241 6,640,233 49,805 1,506 3,968 703,329 7,841,088
Accumulated depreciaionand ~ Z: T ERAR
impaiment (235,767)  (4,184,182) (32,073) (1,079) (3,910) (15461)  (4473372)
Net carrying amount FESE 206,480 2,456,051 16,832 421 58 687,868 3,367,716
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2022
—_T-_—_F+—-A

=+—H

13.M%. BERZRE(&E)

(continued)
Plant and Office Motor Leasehold  Construction
Buildings machinery  equipment vehicles  improvements i progress Total
BF  HRREE Rk g RENERE IR 5
US§ 000 US§000 US§000 US§000 US§000 US$000 US§000
e e SE T T & TE
31 December 2021 ZRI-E1ZAZ1-H
At 1 January 2021: RZEZ-F-A-H
Cost A 471,159 5,138,983 56,047 2,081 4191 872,854 6,545,315
Accumulated depreciationand  ZEFHEREE
impaiment (219613)  (3753370) (38428) (1.777) (4,151) (1753)  (4034873)
Net carrying amount FEE 51,546 1,385,613 17,619 304 40 865,320 2510442
At 1 January 2021, net of \-E--F-F-H,
accumulated depreciatonand 1B EEHTERE
impairment 1,546 1,385,613 17,619 304 40 855,320 2,510,442
Additions AE - - - - - 855,168 855,168
Transfers E 454 - 1,475,794 6,276 393 - (1,482,463) -
Disposal RE - (80) (25) (25) - - (130)
Depreciation provided ERiRE
during the year (16302)  (281,664) (4,148) (122) 9) - (302245)
Impairment A - (3735) (179) - - - (3914)
Exchange realignment A% 5157 43,629 394 1 1 7988 57180
At 31 December 2021, net of RoB--%
accumulated depreciationand ~ +=F=1—H,
impaiment MhErnERRE A0401 2619557 19,937 561 R 236013 3116501
At 31 December 2021: i
tZA=t-A
Cost A 480,349 6,752,780 64,260 1,805 4,289 262902 7,556,385
Accumulated depreciaionand ~ E:fERAR
impairment (239948)  (4,133.229) (44323) (1,244) (4,257) (16,889)  (4,439,884)
Net carrying amount EREE 240,401 2,619,957 19937 561 32 236,013 3,116,501

For the year ended 31 December 2022, certain items of the
Group’s machinery and office equipment of US$858,000 (31
December 2021: US$3,914,000) were obsolete with a minimal
recoverable amount determined based on their fair value less
costs of disposal and were therefore fully impaired.

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment with a net carrying value of US$1,803,095,000
(31 December 2021: US$2,256,289,000) were pledged to
banks to secure the Group’s banking facilities (note 26).

HE-_ZT-_—_F+-_H=-+—HL*F
B, AEEBRERPEAREPETES
858,000%( L ( —E-—F+-A=+
—H. 3,914,000 7T ) E@E, MR
B E N FER SR &R AU
ElEeEE, EfmxaRE.

RZEZZ_F#+=ZA=+—H, &
% B B ™ % B A1,803,095,000%
T ZEZ—F+=-_A=+—8.
2,256,289,000 7T ) M HE T . K
B REEDEEFRITURGAEER
RITEE ( IEE26 o
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31 December 2022

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 14. REY
2022 2021
—Eg—— —E-—F
US$’000 US$'000
FERT F=ET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—B®EEE 184,883 180,476
Net gain from a fair value adjustment NP EFHEN W FRE 78 183
Exchange realignment [ 5 A% (15,598) 4,224
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt A=1+—HrEAE 169,363 184,883

The Group’s investment property is situated in Shanghai,
the PRC. The directors have determined that the investment
property is an industrial property based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of the property.

The Group’s investment property was revalued on 31
December 2022 based on valuation performed by Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, an
independent professionally qualified valuer, on an open market
value basis. The valuation is based on capitalisation of income
derived from the existing tenancy with allowance for the
reversionary income potential of the property.

Every year, the Group’s property manager and the chief
financial officer decide to appoint which external valuer to
be responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group’s property manager and the
chief financial officer have discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results annually when the
valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

The investment property is leased to a related party under an
operating lease (note 33 and note 35(b)).

AEBENREMELNTE LS, EF
EERYENUEL. BHEERETER
EMERTEMH,

R-Z-_—F+-A=+—H, x&H
MIEEMEERE—REEEEERNE
MHERMPERITEETHRARER
NEVREAFATERET T EH. ZEES
ETRBROMNBYEBEAERKA
BETRIRA B AEREE o

BF, AEENYELE MM BEER
EREINBEEMBEREED XS
BiEE, EREFERBHMEN T HE.
BE BUMEMELZAGERKE, K
SENMELERMBRERFRENT
BEETHER, CERABEMEFIR
—RIGERERAELR.

REMEBRBELEHOEHETHEE A
( I FE33FAMTEES5(D) o
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31 December 2022
—ECF+ZA=1+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

Fair value hierarchy
The recurring fair value measurement for the Group’s
investment property, which is an industrial property, was
made using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at
31 December 2022 and 2021. During the year, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and

14. REWHE(E)

D EER

AREEREME(ATEPE )R =-F
T oFERZE—F+ZA=+—HHK
BEAFENEDNFEAZERATATHER
AR ( E3R ) B, RERN, FIR
ME2 MW ENTESEER, AE3

EHZE %

Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil). WIEEASGEL ( —E-—F. £),
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the T A EEGEmBGERmNEE
key inputs to the valuation of the investment property: g A BRI E
Significant unobservable Weighted
Industrial property Valuation techniques inputs average
IEME B E R BRI BRI AU Ik
As at 31 December 2022 Term and reversion method Estimated rental value US$13.2
(per sg.m. per month) (equivalent to
RMB89.00)
RZZE_ZF+_A=+—H FHRERZX fHEtEEEE 13.2%7T
(BFHAEH) (HERARY
89.007T )
Term yield 6.75%
ESEETES
Reversionary yield 7.25%
BER IR
Long term vacancy rate 10.00%
RHEEX
As at 31 December 2021 Term and reversion method Estimated rental value US$13.3
(per sg.m. per month) (equivalent to
RMB86.00)
RZZE-_—F+_A=+—H FHRERZX hEtHEEER 13.3% 7T
(BFHAEH) (HERARE
86.007T )
Term yield 6.75%
FHERE
Reversionary yield 7.25%
EEREI R
Long term vacancy rate 10.00%
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 14. BB (&)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Under the term and reversion method, fair value is measured
by taking into account the rental income derived from the
existing lease with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the lease, which is then capitalised into the value
at appropriate rates.

The term value was estimated based on the existing rent, the
tenancy period as stated in the lease agreement and the yield
during the term period (tenancy period). The reversionary
value was estimated based on the market rents, the market
yield and the reversionary periods.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated rental value
and the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would
result in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the
investment property. A significant increase/(decrease) in the
long-term vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation would
result in a significant decrease/(increase) in the fair value of
the investment property. Generally, a change in the assumption
made for the estimated rental value is accompanied by a
directionally similar change in the rent growth per annum and
the discount rate and an opposite change in the long-term
vacancy rate.

DFEER(E)

RIBFHLERE, XTFEDEHARR
BHROEEMBESWA, IRZFHELD
METERERBRAGIRES BR, HiR
WERENML R B EAHEEEN
EHo

EHEEDREAERHEMFIANERA
He. HHERFHAR(EE) DHREMG
ito EREBEDNREMERS. 5O
HERRERBRER

B HEEEATSHESFEREER
RiEgLEFAATR)BEBREMEN
NFERNEEN R ) REEE
KRR REFAE TR )&
EYREMENRFEKREBRD (5
mle —m=E, AEFHEEEEES
MBREFFEE, HeFBERLER
EHERAEE, MEMHZEXHER
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15. RS E
2022 —E-=
Land use
rights  Buildings Total
Tt fEFARE B At

US$000  US$000  US$°000
FTERr TER FTER

At 1 January 2022, net of R-E-——#—H—H,
accumulated depreciation k25t E 60,191 15,140 75,331
Additions NE 9,393 6,394 15,787
Depreciation provided during FRFTIRITE
the year (1,952) (3,890) (5,842)
Exchange realignment PE 5 3 & (5,370) (1,481) (6,851)
At 31 December 2022 RZZE-_—_F+-A=+—H 62,262 16,163 78,425
2021 —E-—F
Land use
rights Buildings Total
4 i AR BF #Et
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2021, net of R-ZZE-_—F—H—H,
accumulated depreciation B[S i =S 60,354 18,867 79,221
Depreciation provided during FATIRITE
the year (1,556) (4,120) (5,676)
Exchange realignment [ 35, 3 = 1,393 393 1,786
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+=-A=+—H 60,191 15,140 75,331
As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s land use rights RZZBEZZF+-A=+—H, ~%H
with a carrying value of US$50,231,000 as at 31 December RZBZ—F+-_A=1+—HEREHEHER
2022 (31 December 2021: US$46,604,000) were pledged to 50,231,000 ( ZE=Z—F+=ZA=
banks to secure the Group’s banking facilities (note 26). +—H: 46,604,0003%7T ) & T i

FREDETFIRITURS RSB IR
1TRE (FI3E26 )o



2022 FE % ANNUAL REPORT 2022 o #EiT#Ee2 AR N5 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTORLIMITED 297

16.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022
—ECoF+ZA=+—H

16. BN EE

B RS ¥R R B

Process
technology
licence Software Total
TEEMEFA g4 et
Us$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FEn FEx FEx
31 December 2022 —E-_—_F#+=-H=+—H
At 1 January 2022: WZZZ__F—H—1H.
Cost (D% 297,366 146,577 443,943
Accumulated amortisation and EHEHIRE
impairment (279,314) (129,317) (408,631)
Net carrying amount REFE 18,052 17,260 35,312
At 1 January 2022, net of NR-EB-_—F—H—H,
accumulated amortisation and Nk R RORE
impairment 18,052 17,260 35,312
Additions NE - 11,718 11,718
Amortisation provided during FAE L
the year (5,248) (5,853) (11,101)
Exchange realignment PE 5 F % (1,316) (1,627) (2,943)
At 31 December 2022, net of R-E-—F#+=-A=+—H,
accumulated amortisation and Nk Rt 888 MO E
impairment 11,488 21,498 32,986
At 31 December 2022: RZE-__F+=-_A=+—H.
Cost AR 270,734 147,145 417,879
Accumulated amortisation and  ZET#EES &R E
impairment (259,246)  (125,647)  (384,893)
Net carrying amount BREFE 11,488 21,498 32,986
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31 December 2022
T _F+-A=+—H

16.INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 16. B &EE (&)

Process
technology
licence Software Total
T &SI Al B a5t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FE7T FET

31 December 2021 —E-—-F+=-H=+—H
At 1 January 2021: RZZE_—F—H—QH.

Cost [DEN 290,715 131,796 422,511

Accumulated amortisation and S LR E

impairment (267,884)  (117,680)  (385,564)

Net carrying amount AREFE 22,831 14,116 36,947
At 1 January 2021, net of R-_ZE-—F—HF—H,

accumulated amortisation and ks 2188 LoRE

impairment 22,831 14,116 36,947
Additions NE - 7,777 7,777
Amortisation provided during FRVEH S

the year (5,099) (4,996) (10,095)
Exchange realignment bE i AR 320 363 683
At 31 December 2021, net of R-_E-_—F+_-_A=+—H,

accumulated amortisation and MR 288 MRE

impairment 18,052 17,260 35,312
At 31 December 2021: R-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8.

Cost AR 297,366 146,577 443,943

Accumulated amortisation and R ET#EES RIRE

impairment (279,314) (129,317) (408,631)
Net carrying amount BREEE 18,052 17,260 35,312
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17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

31 December 2022

—E-__F#+-HA=+—H

B RS ¥R R B

17. RBEE A FRE

2022 2021

—=E=-= —E-—F

USs$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

Carrying amount BRMEE 130,721 122,040

Particulars of the material associate are as follows:

TEMENFFBET:

Percentage of

Place of Paid-in equity interest
registration and capital attributable
Name of company business B to the Group  Principal activities
RMB'000 REERG
NGRS ke ARETT BEESE FEEH
Shanghai Huahong Technology PRC/Mainland 548,000 50%  Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (“Huahong China development and
Technology Development”) HE L PEALH investment
PREINMBRERARAR R pERIRE
([EFEMRERER )
Shanghai Huahong Investment PRC/Mainland 480,000 20%  Investment
Development Co., Ltd (“Huahong China ®E
Investment Development”) HE B A

PEEIRBERER AR
([FUREER |

The Group's voting power held and profit sharing arrangement
in relation to Huahong Technology Development are 40% and

50%, respectively.

The Group’s shareholding in the associate is held through a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

AEBEAREIMEERFENRER
K M B 22 k) B 73 40% 2 50% 0

AEBEBARBNEZEFRBAREX
KNI 3
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B 5 ¥ R B

17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

31 December 2022
T _F+-A=+—H

17.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of Huahong Technology Development and
Huahong Investment Development:

REBERTANKRE(E)

TREEFEIMEBERMNETIREER
RIS EHL

Huahong Technology Development Huahong Investment Development

ERRERE EREER
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-CF TE-F —E-CF —E-—
t-A=t-A tzZA=t-A t=A=t-H t+=A=t+-~H
US$’000 US$'000 US$°000 US$'000
FTER F=En TER FET
Current assets MBEE 31,186 27,884 24,365 16,969
Non-current assets ERBEE 307,918 324,496 76,980 21,354
Current liabilities mBEE (91,340) (100,312) (186) (37)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (23,606) (23,233) (7,949) (175)
Net assets FEE 224,158 228,835 93,210 38,111
Net assets, excluding FEE, TRED2
goodwill 224,158 228,835 93,210 38,111
Reconciliation to the Group’s REEREE QT
interest in the associate: RREE R
Proportion of the Group’s REEREZ AT
interest in the associate HOREZS L 151 50% 50% 20% 20%
Carrying amount of the REAKHE
investment 112,079 114,418 18,642 7,622
Huahong Technology Huahong Investment
Development Development
E R R E N EER
2022 2021 2022 2021
B —E-—4F —E=-= T —F
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET FER FET
Revenue WA 26,283 29,423 850 104
Profit and total A R 2 E W A
comprehensive income BEE 14,832 13,342 23,775 470
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e ARG ERER B EE

18. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 18. €WRE

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

Us$’000 US$'000

FER FET

Equity investments designated at fair value f§7F Bz A FEFAEMEE
through other comprehensive income: W HI AR E

Listed equity investments EHRARE 2,442 14,310
Unlisted equity investments FELETRAKRE 176,190 243,478
178,632 257,788
Equity investments designated at fair value through other EEBIEAFEFT AL M2 E WS/ R
comprehensive income are listed equity investment in AEEAEEYAETRITRMHAER
Shanghai Awinic Technology Co., Ltd. and unlisted equity NAEWH EmRAREAREREBESD B
investments in Shanghai Huali Microelectronics Corporation 174,170,000 JT }%2,020,000% T
(“Shanghai Huali”) and QST Corporation (“QST”) with carrying WEBZENHEFERAR( LBE
amounts of US$174,170,000 and US$2,020,000, respectively, N REBYWERBEBERRARIITHE
which were irrevocably designated at fair value through BB LETmRAKRE, MAKEE
other comprehensive income as the Group considers these REBZSRETHBIMIEE /IZ AT
investments to be strategic in nature. BErf AHMEENE, DHRZEIRE

JERESNEE
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19. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 19. REHPYE
2022
—E-=
US$’000
FER
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HB8ERAEE 114,492
Additions NE 20,231
As at 31 December R+—_A=+—8H 134,723
The Group's properties under development are recognised in AEEZERPVENTEANBEE L
leasehold land situated in Mainland China. A RER
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s properties under ﬁf::g:\:iﬂ'iﬂ =+—8, &%
development with an aggregate carrying amount of @%&Eqamiﬂﬁﬁéﬁﬁé’zgg,oa&ooo%
approximately US$88,033,000 (31 December 2021: Nil) were TI=F=_—F+-A=+—H: &)
pledged to secure bank and other borrowings granted to the EHEA T RBRBUE T ASBRTREA
Group (note 26). B ( Mi3E26 )
20. INVENTORIES 20. 7 &
2022 2021
—EC-CF T —F
Us$’000 US$'000
FER FET
Raw materials R 255,511 185,541
Work in progress ER5 179,510 139,754
Finished goods IR Th 171,039 126,119
606,060 451,414
Provision for inventories FEREE (28,000) (18,497)

578,060 432,917
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21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES

31 December 2022

—ZE-=F+=ZRA=+—H

B RS ¥R R B

21. ESRRFIEREWERE

2022 2021

—=E=-= —E-—F

Us$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

Trade receivables 2z 5 ElsIE 229,409 154,339
Notes receivables TEWEE 64,038 28,424
293,447 182,763

Impairment of trade receivables B 5 W IE R E (1,591) (1,721)
291,856 181,042

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit and the credit period is generally 30 to 60 days. There
is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables, based on the
invoice date and net of loss allowances, is as follows:

AEEEEZFNESRBPUGER
T, EEH MR R/0E60K, AEE
WEEAEFEERR, NEBELER
HE SRR FIARRERS B E MR R
RERHEMEEREE. &2 RBKHIEA

RRE

WERRAHE, BZREFA(NRE

BEE ) RES T T

2022 2021
—s-= —E-—F

US$°000 US$'000

FERx FET

Within 3 months 31E A AR 212,563 149,900
3 to 6 months 3Z=6f@ A 15,255 2,718
227,818 152,618

The movements in loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

BERWREREBERENESN

T

2022 2021

—E-= -

US$’000 US$'000

FER F=

At 1 January Hn—HA—H 1,721 1,619
Impairment losses, net (note 6) BEEEFE (M6 ) (16) 273
Write-off s - (199)
Exchange realignment b (114) 28
As at 31 December W+—-_A=+—H 1,591 1,721
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31 December 2022
—ECF+ZA=1+—H

21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES
(continued)

The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss for all trade and notes receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade and notes receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. The expected credit losses have also
incorporated forward-looking information. The expected credit
loss rates for trade and notes receivables that were not yet

past due or aged within 3 months are minimal.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by geographical region, product type, customer type and
rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit
insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written
off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to

enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure

on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

21.

ESRURERERREE
)

AEBRAEBMBHRELEANEIRA]
P ERREEBRCBILTE, ZE
A A FFRLPTAE B 5 B R R R R
REEEFERNERER, RtEE
HIEEER, E5RKEBERERER
ERBEAREERRREMARREE
T, BHMEEEBRTEEREEE
Fto HARBIRIRE RIEAAANE
HREMF AN EREBRNEREERE
KIHE,

/

i

n

W& B EBR AR BB TR AR
i, LAt ERMEEER. BEEHE
RAAELBEER0S BEF S 14
Bl DEE, ERAL. TPRER
TR AR BERE TR BR
RERRBEES ) OAMKBET.
SHERMIEIEE R, WERERR
s ORI BB RB A HIR, AT
RER G EEFRANARRTRE
Ko —RTTE, WH S EUHERNE
B R BAERARHNTED, 2
F LA

TXEFAEEE B R ERETENE
5 YGRS AR O E#
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21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES NEZEWNFEREKREE
(continued) (#& )
The credit quality of the trade receivables is as follows: EHRWHIENEEEENT.
As at 31 December 2022 R-EB-Z-H+Z-HA=+—H
Past due
gzt
Less than
Current 3 months Over 1 year Total
BE A R3EA —FEE =8
Expected credit loss rate FEHEEEEX 0.07% 1.63% 100.00% 0.69%
Gross carrying amount (US$'000) BRMBE
(F=7) 224,961 3,065 1,383 229,409
Expected credit losses (US$'000) TEEEEEE
(F=7) 158 50 1,383 1,591
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+=-ZHA=+—H
Past due
180 Hf
Less than
Current 3 months  Over 1 year Total
BNE A RABfE A —F &5t
Expected credit loss rate JEHEEEEX 0.18% 1.40% 100.00% 1.12%
Gross carrying amount (US$'000) BRMBE
(F=7) 152,329 570 1,440 154,339

Expected credit losses (US$'000) FEEEEEE
(F=7) 273 8 1,440 1,721
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31 December 2022

—E-—#+-A=+—H

22. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

22. ST FRIE. HMERRER

OTHER ASSETS BHiEE

2022 2021
—Eg—— —E-—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FERT F=ET
Other receivables H o pE U Fh1E 24,476 23,485
Prepayments and other assets TaRTFIE R H A& 4,009 13,707
Value-added input tax AN EIRTRE 20,687 7,206
49,172 44,398
Impairment of other receivables H h fEUGRIE BB (899) (959)
48,273 43,443

Other receivables are repayable on demand. H ith Y RIE A B IR ESREE

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other

receivables are as follows:

ot FE MR SRR E R R R 2 B
T

2022 2021

—s-= T

US$’000 US$'000

FER FET

At 1 January n—HA—H 955 940
Exchange realignment PE 0 A (56) 15
As at 31 December Nt+t-—A=+—H 899 955

The Group applies a general approach in calculating ECLs for
other receivables. Other receivables related to debtors that
are in default are classified as Stage 3 and the lifetime ECL
rate was estimated to be 100% based on historical credit loss
experience, resulting in an impairment balance of US$899,000
(2021: US$955,000). The remaining other receivables are
classified as Stage 1 without any significant increase in credit
risk tracked since initial recognition. Their recoverability was
assessed with reference to the credit status of the debtors,
and the expected credit losses as at 31 December 2022 and
2021 were considered to be insignificant.

REBREB MBI EFTEEMEWIA
MIBREERE, BENBEBAMBED
HEMEWRIBEREAE =R, RERE
S EEBELRETEHEREEBR
K B100%, A IR E 4 & /2899,000
E( T —%. 955,000% 7T ), E
HBEMBEKKERELAE R, 84
FTHEREBHNEERBRIYEEAEKXR
. ErI U2 R ERARE B
MAE, MEBEZT_—_FR_FT——
FH+-AZ+—BNEHEEBERR
BTEK,
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 23 HERESZEYURDIE

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

EEEER N

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Cash and bank balances e RIBITES 736,530 379,995
Time deposits TFEAIFH 1,273,277 1,232,393
2,009,807 1,612,388

Less: pledged deposits A BEIRER
Pledged deposits [REEECIEER N (1,015) (2,221)
Others Hh (27) (27)
Cash and cash equivalents WERIREEEBY 2,008,765 1,610,140

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to US$1,305,378,000 (2021:
US$975,405,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between seven days and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

RMEER, XEEMIR S MIRITER
UERTHERDIAARE(IARE )
=18, &1,305,378,000% t( = Z —
— . 975,405,000 7T ) AREN
AERLBRAREMER, A, BEP
B P H  ONEE E ER 01 ) Be (S BE .
EERNEETERE), ~AEBELES
BERERRIMNEXEFNRITHEARE
HRBHMER,

RITRE DHREE R RITERFRIZF
BRR R, MEHEMERIEFA
SENASREFTRAMLERE=([EA
TN, LB HE R R EREA
Bo RITRBIFRANEER BT
3 8 38 A RCERAYERTT o



308 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED ZE4[-:& AR AT » 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FZ &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBSmRME

24. TRADE PAYABLES 24

An ageing analysis of the trade payables of the Group as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is

B RARE

REREPRZERBHG, AREE
SN FIBNIRE DTN T

as follows:
2022 2021
—E—-= —E-—F
US$°000 US$'000
FEn FET
Within 1 month & A AR 141,338 131,102
1 to 3 months 1231E A 60,772 41,450
3 to 6 months 32616 A 11,699 7,223
6 to 12 months 62 121E A 9,388 2,767
Over 12 months 1218 A E 13,802 11,843
236,999 194,385

The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on terms of 30 to 60 days.

BSREMNRIEAERE. THER—K
RI0KXEGCOKRIR AL E,

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. Htt BN REBEREHE A
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Other payables and accruals EMEMREREGER 318,917 307,416
Contract liabilities aR8aE 192,588 182,453
Payroll and bonus payables e Ha MIEA 82,439 70,539
Others Hity 27 27
593,971 560,435

Other payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
repayable on demand.

As at 1 January 2021, the carrying amount of contract liabilities
was US$82,720,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, contract liabilities
of US$182,453,000 (2021: US$82,720,000) at the beginning of
the year were recognised as revenue. The increase in contract
liabilities in 2022 and 2021 was mainly due to the increase in
short-term advances received from customers in relation to the
sale of semiconductor products.

HpENFREEER. RERAREX

REE

R-ZE-_—F—HF—H, A4YEEEFA
{&/482,720,000% 7T,

HE-_Z-_—"F+-_A=+—HILF
g, F1)182,453,000k T( T~ —
. 82,720,000% 7T ) WA LB FEHHE
REBA RZEZ_FR-_F-_—F
MENABEMNEERANEEEYE
BEMEBNTFEIBFUEM,
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31 December 2022

—ECoF+ZA=+—H

26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

26 */u\ﬂ{T{ﬁTA

2022
—s=-=
Effective
interest rate
(%) Maturity US$’000
BB FIZE(%) =)t FER
Current E
Bank loans — unsecured SRITER — &K 0.55-5.50 2023 314,039
0.5525.50 —E-=
Current portion of long-term K HIR1TE 2 A BN EA
bank loans — secured =i ﬁtﬂﬁ 1.20-6.30 2023 112,717
1.20£6.30 —E-=
426,756
Non-current FRE
Secured bank loans BHEMBITER 1.20-6.63 2024-2030 1,451,580
1.20£6.63 —T-NF - —FB=FF
Unsecured bank loans MR ITE R 2.00 2024-2030 30,000
—EMFE-—B=FF
1,481,580
1,908,336
2021
—E-—F
Effective
interest rate
(%) Maturity US$'000
EBREFIE (%) EI|HA FET
Current }ﬁib
Bank loans — unsecured IRITER — BEH 0.78-1.14 2022 180,989
0.78%1.14 —E_F
Current portion of long term K AR 1T & 7 &9 BN EA
bank loans — secured % *ﬁ%ﬁﬁ 1.20-4.10 2022 14,035
1.20£24.10 B —F
195,024
Non-current FERE
Secured bank loans BEEMRITER 0-4.10 2023-2028 1,395,279
0£4.10 —FE_T-)N\F

1,590,303
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
(continued)

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FErx FET
Analysed into: DA
Bank loans repayable: FEEBIRITER.
Within one year —F R 426,756 195,024
In the second year EF 183,281 107,943
In the third to fifth years, inclusive Fo-EZERT(BEHEERTF) 827919 677,961
After five years hFE 470,380 609,375
1,908,336 1,590,303
Except for bank loans of US$132,562,000 (2021: $2132,562,000% jo( = & = — .

US$30,249,000) which are denominated in RMB, all borrowings
are dominated in United States dollars.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, certain of the Group’s
bank loans were secured by pledges of the Group’s assets
with carrying values as follows:

30,249,000%F 7T ) WIRTTEFTUAAR K
sHESN, FrA BRI ETHE,

RZEZ—FR-F-_—F+-A=+
—H, AEENETRITERHAEF
REBHEEFEER, EEMNERAED
T

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

Notes Us$’000 US$'000

Btat FErx FET

Property, plant and equipment ME . BB MERE 13 1,803,095 2,256,289
Right-of-use assets BREEE 15 50,231 46,604
Properties under development LErphyE 19 88,033 -
1,941,359 2,302,893
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- —F+-A=+—H

AL STATEMENTS
B RS ¥R R B

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27.10EE8E

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

Us$’000 US$'000

FErx FET

Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—B®EEE 17,813 21,640
Additions INE 6,394 -
Accretion of interest ) B 3% A0 880 879
Payments BN (4,144) (4,878)
Exchange realignment ME H R (1,595) 172
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—BmEAE 19,348 17,813
The maturity profile of lease liabilities as at 31 December 2022 HEAER=ZE-_=ZF+=-A=+—H

is as follows: RIE| BB R

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

Us$’000 US$'000

FErx FET

Within one year —F N 5,458 2437
In the second year E_F 2,615 1,842
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-EFERT(BIEEEMT) 5,059 5,527
After five years HF% 10,119 12,895

Total undiscounted lease liabilities REWIREEBERE 23,251 22,701
Discount amount AL IR EE (3,903) (4,888)
Total present value of lease liabilities HEBENRRE 19,348 17,813
Current portion BIEREL 5 4,704 1,676
Non-current portion JEBNHAER &> 14,644 16,137

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

Us$’000 US$'000

FErx FET

Analysed into: DI

Within one year —F R 4,704 1,676
In the second year E_F 2,014 1,142
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FEFERT(BIEEEMTE) 3,622 3,772
After five years AF% 9,008 11,223
Total present value of lease liabilities HEBEBENEIRE 19,348 17,813
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28. DEFERRED TAX 28. IEFERLIH
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the FRABRLHERBEREENESNT .
year are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIESE
Difference of
Fair value Fair value fixed assets
gains on gainon between
financial an investment Withholding  accounting and
investments property tax tax basis Total
SREEN REMEL B EAE
AHEKE NFHERE Tt ezt @t
US$'000 US§000 US$000 US$000 US$'000
TET TET TER TET TET
As at 1 January 2021 N_E-—F—F—H 2,114 585 10,922 - 13,621
Deferred tax charged/ ~ ERMA /(G ) B&EN
(credited) to profit or BRI MFE10)
loss during the year
(note 10) - 21 14,813 - 14,840
Deferred tax charged ~ FRMARMZEREN
to other comprehensive  IEIERIE
income during the year 2,335 - - - 2,335
Exchange realignment 3% 79 14 - - 93
As at 31 December 2021 RZZ=—F+-f=1+—-H}K
and 1 January 2022 “Z-"F-f-H 4,528 626 25,735 - 30,889
Deferred tax charged to ~ FRINEEXMELHAE
profit or loss during the ~ ( Ft3E10)
year (note 10) - 12 15,533 3,566 19,111
Deferred tax charged FAMEEMZEKEN
to other comprehensive  EREFHIE
income during the year (4,528) - - - (4,528)
Exchange realignment  E X% - (48) - 55 7
Gross deferred tax WZE--#+-A=t-8
liabiliies as at 31 EEREARLER
December 2022 - 590 41,268 3,621 45,479

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

BBE(PEAREXNMBECEMREHR
%), R BEA KR INE B Emah
Bl EE T IRALEAIZ10% 5 A IRH
Bio B, NEBANTEAMAKT
MZEFARE ST N\F—A—HE
FE A HY 2 A P 20 TR O BB AR TR N R o
el P B P 3 ER SN B % B 3 PV R AR [
RFIABEHE, AIeLEAERENEN
&,

R A 1) AR BROK A<F AS B X 48 Bf 7 A ]
P IERo
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Deferred tax is not recognised in respect of the Group’s
investments in associates where the Group is able to control
the timing of remittance or other realisation and where
remittance or realisation is not probable in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate temporary differences relating to
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities arising on investments in
associates is US$77,595,000 (2021: US$71,536,000).

ERIE ('

EAREEAEGERBE R

AR AR

PER S A E M T BRI, ARR
A RARRERKERNKE TR, K&
@HTT@WEEE%TXéﬁEHMLL%RIEO ﬁ
BN E R EIREEERNRERIELER
HABEZ TR EZE4A%A77,595,0003%
T ZF=—%. 71,536,000% T )o

Deferred tax assets EERIBEE
Losses
Write-down of avallable Fair value
inventories and for offsetting oss on
impairment of against future financial ~ Government
receivables Accruals Leases taxable profits investments Grants Total
A AR S
FEMRR ARERH  SRREN
EUERE  EfER BE  wimEE  ATEER  BREY @t
US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000
TR T3n T3n T3n T T Tn
As at 1 January 2021 W-E2--5-A-H 2,369 5,740 370 486 - - 8,965
Deferred tax credited o £/ AJB%RH)
profitor loss during the ~ EFEHIE ( FiEE10)
year (note 10) 109 (203) 22 (486) - - (558)
Deferred tax charged ERMAEMZENE
to other comprehensive  HYIERETRIE
income during the year - - - - - - -
Exchange realignment [ A% 56 161 9 - _ _ 26
Asat31December 2021 RWZZ=—F
and 1 January 2022 TZA=+-BR
~“F--F-f-H 2534 5,698 401 - - - 8,633
Deferred tax credited) ~ FMEFA /(415 ) E%
(charged) to profit o EEIERA ( 1310
loss during the year
(note 10) 571 1,469 24 - - 4,607 6,671
Deferred tax charged FRMeE2ERE
to other comprehensive  B)IETEH B
income during the year - - - - 3,820 - 3,820
Exchange realignment [ X 5% (241) (702) (34) - 59 70 (848)
Gross deferred tax assets R=T-—F
asat 31 December 2022 +-A=+-H
BEsRgELs 2,864 6,465 391 - 3,879 4677 18,276
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28. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position.
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the
Group for financial reporting purposes:

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED ZE4[-: & AR AT » 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FZ &

HEREVEBER, ETELEHRELEERSE
BEEETBRREKFIEE, AT AR
BiRE B S A BRI A ETT

2022 2021
—E—-= —E—F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Net deferred tax assets recognised in RERE AR R ER
the consolidated statement of financial EEFRIR B BT
position 14,066 3,479
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in ?v?/.:.\ﬁﬁk#ﬁi’%ﬁﬁ iy
the consolidated statement of financial BRI B EFRE
position (41,268) (25,735)
Net deferred tax liabilities EETIR B EFRE (27,202) (22,256)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of ATIEE W RERRCHIBEEE:
the following items:
2022 2021
—E—-= —E—F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Unused tax losses RE)ARIARE 29,540 22,332
Deductible temporary differences AR R =R 17,876 17,018
47,416 39,350

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
US$22,576,000 (2021: US$18,800,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has
tax losses arising in Mainland China of US$6,964,000 (2021:
US$3,532,000) that will expire in one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits.

PiNE-S IEE;%EEWTEIEE?TER
22,576,000 T ( T — — £,
wﬁmpm%m,Tﬁ@%ﬁﬁﬁi
FEERN QR RRERD SR, NEE
TR FR B A 3 2 A X TE B 786,964,000
(T - —4%. 3,532,000% 7T ),
1858 — 2 14 P B HA DA 85 7R 2R B AR B
i o
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28. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be recognised.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
the temporary differences as it is not considered probable that
the above items can be recognised.

31 December 2022
—F+ZA=+—H

28 JEEBIE (] )

B RS ¥R R B

HRNEERIREEDREEBIESZRN
FARF], BTKAIEEA BRBE N AT
A SH R T RER MM IRE 1R, ML B
HZEBRERRERREE,

mRR R ERIER AR

RIS EIHER,

B ERE R ZRRAREREBEE,

29. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 29. BUS# B

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January w—H—H 66,837 58,926
Additions NE 58,237 154,965

Released to offsetting research and B AR SR B AR
development costs (31,368) (65,596)
Released to offset finance costs BB 75 & B (11,100) -
Offset with long term assets ERHEE (38,414) (83,594)
Exchange realignment IE A% (6,478) 2,136
As at 31 December w+—-_A=+—H 37,714 66,837

The Group received government funding for several
government-sponsored projects focusing on the research and
development of advanced technologies.

AEENZERNEE AR DR SR
BNELED, ZFREBINHEL

HERM o
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31 December 2022
—ECF+ZA=1+—H

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. RA
2022 2021
—E—-= —E-—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FErx FET
Issued and fully paid: BT REE
1,306,836,740 (2021: 1,301,191,585) 1,306,836,7400% ( F.
ordinary shares 1,301,191,585/% ) 1,994,462 1,986,152

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as
follows:

AR TRAHSH LT

Number of Amount of

shares in issue  share capital

ERITROEE BRAESEE

’000 US$’000

T FEx

At 1 January 2021 RZE=Z—F—H—H 1,297,818 1,979,033

Share options exercised (note (a)) IT{E BB ( BisE(a) ) 3,374 7,119
At 31 December 2021 and RZE-_—F+_A=+—"HK

1 January 2022 —E-_4—HF—H 1,301,192 1,986,152

Share options exercised (note (a)) TTPRERRAE ( BiFE(a) ) 5,645 8,310

At 31 December 2022 RZE-__F+=-_A=+—H 1,306,837 1,994,462

Note:

(a)

The subscription rights attaching to 4,738,000 (2021: 1,197,000)
share options under the 2015 Options were exercised at the
subscription price of HK$6.912 per share (2021: HK$6.912 per
share), resulting in the issue of 4,738,000 (2021: 1,197,000)
shares for a total cash consideration of US$4,173,000 (2021:
US$1,065,000). An amount of US$1,803,000 (2021: US$465,000)
was transferred from the share option reserve to share capital
upon exercise of the share options.

The subscription rights attaching to 907,000 (2021: 2,177,000)
share options under the 2018 Options were exercised at the
subscription prices of HK$15.056 and HK$17.952 per share
(2021: HK$15.056 and HK$17.952), resulting in the issue of
907,000 (2021: 2,177,000) shares for a total cash consideration of
US$1,768,000 (2021: US$4,235,000). An amount of US$566,000
(2021: US$1,354,000) was transferred from the share option
reserve to share capital upon exercise of the share options.

(a) REBE-_ZT—RHFRERE, 4,738,000
(=T = —4. 1,197,0001) ) B &
M RBECIERBESTR6.912
BT =_—F. BK6912FT)
171, 3| B 3 174,738,0000 ( = &
— — 4. 1,197,000 ) & 17, #38
% K 8 54,173,000k t( =T = —
. 1,065,000E 7T ). HEAREEITE
%, 1,803,000% jo( = T = — 4.
465,000 7T ) B E MR HE
BEERA,

(b)y RIZE=ZF—/)\FE KM, 907,000
(=T = — . 2177,0000 ) B
BENESREEERRBESR
15.056/8 7T A }17.95208 T( = &
— — 4. 15.056/8 T &17.952%

) 77 £, 3| B % 97907,0000% ( =

— — . 2177,0000% ) & 15, #

4 KRB A1,768,000E T( - F =

— 4. 4,235,000 7T ), HERREETT

i %, 566,000% T( =& — — 4.

1,354,000 7t ) RIEC R BB R AE B

BB,

RSN
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 31. BB AERTE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. The Scheme includes two batches, each of which
was effective on 4 September 2015 (the “2015 Options”) and
on 24 December 2018 (the “2018 Options”), respectively.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
directors, including a non-executive director, an executive
director and other employees of the Group. The share options,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
7 years from the respective effective dates.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, and commences after a vesting
period of two to five years and ends on a date which is not
later than the expiry date of the Scheme.

ARk B—BERESE(]ZE
g 1), sEEAHAEEIEFNEREME
B A BB HEE R HE X EE,
ZErE D Amit, SR _E—Hh
FAAMB([ZE—AFERE ) R
—E-N\FF+ZAZt+mHE((=ZZE—
NEERE])EB. Zirdl2FaE
B2HEBRARTES(BRIE—RIE
WITES., —RRTES ) REAKEEE
HiEE, BRIESWEUHKISE], ZEE
AEREHS R & A B HARE T 7 A W

IREF A AR IR AZ AT B th 2 R AT B AR A
HETSBAZSERETFERAQT
THEEBITRMN 210%, REMA+ — &
AHIRE, ZrIESFAERSHEERE
B ERIT 2RO BB TEBBA
NEME A REEEITI’RG 21%. #—
R Tt PR R B AR A BB AR SR 7
BEREAE A,

MARFEE. BRTHRABREER
RAFEE 2 EMBEA TR THERER
EEBSBUIENITESHE, LN,
WEREMR+Z@EAE, ZFFAQF
FERRABLIFENTESTHEESA
AR A+ 2 B AR N AR BT
R RE BTG 20 1% 2 E (1R
BRI BEBARQRROESRTE )BEa
5008 87T, AIZBEEAERREARNE LB
SRR

ERLBEREZTERBESRE, X
R-ERFRBHEFABARRZETE
fERm 2 BRTAR 1Eo
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. B EFTE (&)
The exercise price of share options is determinable by the BIRE ITEBARAESESE, TS
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock DPRATREZ &ZEE: ()VAREKHD
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the AP B BER STz WM iE,
date of offer of the share options; and (i) the average Stock R (AR RB RO AR L AR R
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five RHBEEBLF 2 N THE,
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer.
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends BN IEM T RFE AEERE K
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. RERERRSEENEF
2015 Options —E-hFERE
The following 2015 Options were outstanding during the year: FAR, UTFERESNABE_Z—RF
R EITE.
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price HK$ of options  price HK$ of options
per share 000 per share '000
InfEEY s
THEE BREZEA I BREHA
BRET T4 BRAETT T
At 1 January Hn—A—H 6.912 4,738 6.912 5,935
Exercised during the year FRITE 6.912 (4,738) 6.912 (1,197)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H - - 6.912 4,738

31 December 2022

—E-—#+-A=+—H
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 1. R AERTEI (&)

2015 Options (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the outstanding
2015 Options as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

“E-AFRRE(R)
RBERR-_T-AFEREETHEA
TTEBERENITEE RITEBMT .

Exercise period
1T

4 September 2018 to 3 September 2022

—E-N\FAANBE-_ZE-__FHLA=H

4 September 2019 to 3 September 2022

—E-NAFAANBE-ZZ-_FHLA=H

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F
Number of options Number of options Exercise price*
BREHE fERRES A TEE*
’000 ‘000 HKS$ per share
T4 T gRET
- 1,952 6.912
- 2,786 6.912

- 4,738

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company’ s share capital.

The 4,738,000 (2021: 1,197,000) share options exercised
under the 2015 Options during the year, resulting in the
issue of 4,738,000 (2021: 1,197,000) ordinary shares of the
Companyfor a total cash consideration of US$4,173,000
(2021: US$1,065,000). An amount of US$1,803,000 (2021:
US$465,000) was transferred from the share option reserve to
share capital upon the exercise of the share options, as further
detailed in note 30 to the financial statements.

WEEITHRIAATIRE T, HARE]ZRA
BHMBUNE, RIEREZTEENTH

E2e

IEo

FR, _ET-—AFEREERT
4,738,000 ( ZZFE——4. 1,197,000
) BREREITE, SIBARAE T
4,738,0000% ( —ZE = —%. 1,197,000
I ) LAk, 8IESRER4,173,000
E(ZF=-—%F. 1,065,000%7TT )
INEF TG SR M sE 30 — A aFut, BERARRE
KE1T{E 1%, 1,803,000E (T = —
. 465,000% 7T ) B BB A I AR 4
REERERA,
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. B EFTE (&)
2018 Options - \FERE
The following 2018 Options were outstanding during the year: FR, UTFERESABE_Z—/\F
BRI T
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price HK$  of options  price HK$  of options
per share 000 per share '000
InFEFS TS
THEE BREHE 1TEE  BREHAE
gRET T4 FlETT T
At 1 January Rn—A—H 15.317 24,963 15.310 33,547
Exercised during the year FRITE 15.244 (907) 15.088 (2,177)
Forfeited during the year FRRU 15.403 (618) 15.357 (6,407)

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8H 15.318 23,438 16.317 24,963
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

2018 Options (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the 2018 Options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as

31 December 2022

—ZE-=F+=ZRA=+—H

B B =
31. BT &8 (/R
B \FERE ()

R R =T — B HEIE T
68 A 0 17 5 B AT B RO T

follows:
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Number of Number of Exercise
options options price* Exercise period
BREHE ISR TEE* TR
’000 '000  HKS per share
T4 T BRET
6,523 6,954 15.056 24 December 2020 to 23 December 2025
—ECEF+ A+ HAE=E-AF+=A=+=H
4,512 4,943 15.056 24 December 2021 to 23 December 2025
—F+ - A-t+HBEE-_ZE-_RFEt+-A=-+=H
9,429 9,859 15.056 24 December 2022 to 23 December 2025
- —F+-A-+WAE-ZE-RFt+-A=-+=H
925 1,025 15.056 24 December 2023 to 23 December 2025
=T AZTHAEE RS T AZ+=H
62 62 18.400 29 March 2021 to 28 March 2026
A t+hBEZZE=_"F=A=+/\H
125 125 18.400 29 March 2022 to 28 March 2026
R CE=AZTAREZZZREF=AZ1+NHRH
125 125 18.400 29 March 2023 to 28 March 2026
—=F=A-t+thBE-ZE-_~F=A-+/\H
125 125 18.400 29 March 2024 to 28 March 2026
TECNF=AtTARE_ZE-_ARE=ZA=F+NH
256 316 17.952 23 December 2021 to 22 December 2026
B+ -A-+=ZRE-ZT-AFt+-A=-+=H
639 677 17.952 23 December 2022 to 22 December 2026
TR+ -A-+=ZRE-Z-AFt+-A=-+=H
642 677 17.952 23 December 2023 to 22 December 2026
— =+ A+ ZHEZE-_X"F+=-A=+=H
75 75 17.952 23 December 2024 to 22 December 2026
—E-NF+ A+ =ZRE-_ZT-AFt+-A=-+=H
23,438 24,963
*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment Y M EETERRLARET, KA A]

in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in

the Company’ s share capital.

ZIRAEHE ML E), RIEKEZ
7T 1E A 7%
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31.

32.

31 December 2022
—EF+=ZR=+—H

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

2018 Options (continued)
The Group recognised a share option expense of the 2018
Options of US$1,226,000 (2021: US$296,000) during the year.

The 907,000 (2021: 2,177,000) share options exercised
under the 2018 Options during the year, resulting in the
issue of 907,000 (2021: 2,177,000) ordinary shares of the
Companyfor a total cash consideration of US$1,768,000
(2021: US$4,235,000). An amount of US$566,000 (2021:
US$1,354,000) was transferred from the share option reserve
to share capital upon the exercise of the share options, as
further detailed in note 30 to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
23,438,000 2018 Options outstanding. The exercise in full of
the outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 23,438,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of US$60,844,000 (including US$14,796,000
transferred from the share option reserve to share capital).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 22,670,809 2018 Options outstanding, which
represented approximately 1.73% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 233 to
234 of the financial statements.

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations for
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises, which are applicable to
the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC, profits of the PRC
subsidiaries, as determined in accordance with the applicable
accounting rules and regulations in the PRC, are available
for distribution in the form of cash dividends to the Company
after the PRC subsidiaries have (1) satisfied all tax liabilities;
(2) provided for losses in previous years; and (3) made
appropriations to the statutory reserve funds. The Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to appropriate not less
than 10% of their profit after taxation to the statutory reserve
funds until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their registered
capital.

31.

32.

BRESTE (&)

—E-N\FEREE)
AREBRFRRE - — \FRERER
B AER 1,226,000 T ( —F —
—4£. 296,000% 7T )o

FR, ZT— )\ FER#EIFET07,000
M—ZF = —4%. 2,177,00017 ) B& A%
HEEITE, BIBA R RE1T907,000/%
(= ——%. 2,177 0000% ) & @A,
#3848 51,768,000 T ( —F =
—% . 4,235,000% 7T ), MBS IR
TI30#E — S RFul, BBIRIEEITIE,
566,000 T ( =& = —4. 1,354,000
EU)MFECHBERERGEEEER
Z’KO

Rk E R, K2RQAF % HF23,438,000
MERITEN T \FERE, BE
AARERHERNERE, BHITESN
RITEMB R e BEEINETT
23,438,000 A% AN 22 &) & 38 A% M 18 pn i A
60,844,000% 7L ( BIEHEREREE
BEE R ANE14,796,0005 7T )o

PHEZ SV KRR BE, ARR%HE
22,670,809 M AT —F — \FE
fEHE, HZBHARRQRBBITRMNEIL
1.73%.

(GRS

REBRAEE RBAEFENHE R
B BN ISR K F233F2348
RAEREHRFB R,

RIBEFEARIEEECENER IR
BROBRARARAWNFEFRA), &
REAHTEE R RRHIEENS
Brameas, R EFRF()
ENMAERGARE QRBEFES
BIELEE, REBATHBEIEL
BERARSBREFARARBELD
Ko RABHHEFARAZBTIR
HBEBRRENN10%EREERFHES,
BEERBEREDEEIMEARNS0%,



2022 F[Z#E ANNUAL REPORT 2022 « #7482 HR /AR HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 323

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. LEASES

As lessor

The Group leases its investment property (note 14) to Shanghai
Huali, under an operating lease arrangement, with a lease
term of 20 years. The terms of the lease generally also require
the tenant to provide for periodic rent adjustments according
to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was US$14,358,000
(31 December 2021: US$14,488,000), details of which are
included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenant are as follows:

31 December 2022

“HE+-A=+—H Ejﬁ%i&%ﬁja

33.#HE

ERHBEA
AEBRE-BESHERE, BHE
EE(MF14) BT E8ES, B
HA20% . %M AR — MR IR R TE A&
HMARBEERTAMERESARED
B, "EERFABRRANHEERAS
14,358,000 T ( —E-—%+=-A=
+—H. 14,488,000 7T ), HFEH
R HREM S,

= —E—F+ZA=+
—H, AEERBENUTRBLEERORN
KRB EREAFPMARMIRA SR
LU

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—4F

USs$’000 US$'000

EPH FET

Within one year —F R 14,641 15,754
After one year but within two years —FRERMT RN 14,641 15,534
After two years but within three years MEBRER=FRN 14,641 15,534
After three years but within four years —FERERUFR 14,641 15,534
After four years but within five years WFEZERAFRN 14,641 15,534
More than five years BiBEAF 32,636 50,190
105,841 128,080

The Group received advance rental payments of US$3,041,000
from Shanghai Huali as at 31 December 2022 (31 December
2021: US$3,606,000).

R-EBE-——F4+=-_A=+—H, &~x&
E U B e h 38 A 43,041,000
En( 2 —F+=ZA=+—H.
3,606,000% 7T )o
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33. LEASES (continued)

As lessee

The Group has various lease contracts for land use rights,
offices and dormitory properties used in its operation. Lump
sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land
from the owners with lease periods of 42 to 50 years, and no
ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these land
leases. Leases of offices and dormitory properties generally
have lease terms between 2 and 20 years. Generally, the
Group is restricted from assigning andsubleasing the leased
assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
Detailed information regarding right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities is set out in notes 15 and 27, respectively,

to the financial statements.

(b) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to

33.HE(HE)

fERERA
AEEBERAREXFEEN LR
. RAERBEEWENETHES
4, DIEBIEE —RIERZAME T K
BRAEL, HEN T42250F, m
RIEZE LA ERNGR, BTeEE
SMERZIE, BAERBEWENE
H@E N T2220F, —MME, &%
B mAEBAINATEZ LS ER
E&E,

HEREEENHERBABNE
K EF 1B 20 Bl 0 B 75 kMY RE15
K27,

(b) REDRFTERINEERESEL

leases are as follows: I
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
USs$’000 US$'000
EH FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEREBEME 880 879
Depreciation charge of right-of-use  {FREEETERX
assets 3,890 5,676
Expense relating to short-term leases #2458 HATH E B I 2 2,625 1,572
Total amount recognised in profit RIBRERN B
or loss 7,395 8,127

(c) Total cash outflows for leases and non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are disclosed in
note 39 to the financial statements.

(c) HERSMLABUALEREEE
EHERERNIFERERE N R
RMTEBINKER
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—E--FtZA=t+—H

34. COMMITMENTS 34. &Ik

AEBRREMRBUNTERARE.

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
USs$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Contracted, but not provided for: EETH, ([BREME.
Property, plant and equipment mE. BEKRE 284,304 283,019

35.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 35. BHk H X5 RAEER

BALANCES

(a) Name and relationship (a) BEEKRER

Name of related party Relationship with the Group

RS B BEAKENREE
Huahong Group and its subsidiaries
FIKREREFLF

— Hua Hong International Inc. (“Huahong International”)

— FEMERARQR ([ FOERE )

— Shanghai Huahong Zealcore Electronics Co., Ltd.
(“Huahong Zealcore”)

— DEFETBEEHRARQR ([ FLRE])

— Shanghai Hongri International Electronics Co., Ltd.
(“Hongri”)

— BT EEEREFARARI(M4R )

— Shanghai Integrated Circuit Research and Development
Center (“ICRD”)

— PEEREEAETRO ([ EXEHEME )

— Shanghai Hua Hong Jitong Smart System Co., Ltd.
(“Jitong”)

— PEEMGRERAFRNERAR ([ 5@ 1)

— Shanghai Huali

— BBES

NEC Corporation (“NEC”)*
NEC Corporation ([ NEC | )*

— NEC Management Partner, Ltd. (“NEC Management”)
— NEC Management Partner, Ltd. ([ NEC Management |)

26.60% shareholder of the Company
FiH%26.60% 2 A FIIR
Subsidiary of Huahong Group

FEAEEFRA
Subsidiary of Huahong Group

FEAEEFRA
Subsidiary of Huahong Group

FEAEEFRA
Subsidiary of Huahong Group

FEAEEFRA
Subsidiary of Huahong Group
EHEEF A

Shareholder of the Company
(before 19 February 2021)
RRARE (KRB —F_A+NBZA)

Subsidiary of NEC
NECF A 7]
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31 December 2022
T _F+-A=+—H

35.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)

(a) Name and relationship (continued)

B[p.BEMEREREER(E )

(a) BBREE(HE)

Name of related party

Relationship with the Group

)yt BAREEMBIR
SAIL and its subsidiaries
EEBANREFAT

— Shanghai Alliance Investment Ltd. (“SAIL")

— BB ERR AT ([ LG8 )
— Sino-Alliance International Ltd. (“SAIL International”)
— Sino-Alliance International Ltd. ([ SAIL International ] )

Huahong Technology Development
EITRER

— Shanghai Huahong Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(“Huahong Real Estate”)

— PEEUNEXARAA([FLEX])

— Shanghai Huajin Property Management Co., Ltd.
(“Huajin™)

— DEERYEERERAR(] E#E )

Holding company of Sino-Alliance
International Ltd.

Sino-Alliance International Ltd. F)4ZEA% A 7]

14.5% shareholder of the Company

FiiR14.5% 2 AR BIIR

Associate of the Group

ZN SN

Subsidiary of Huahong Technology
Development

FITRER T AT

Subsidiary of Huahong Technology
Development

FUMRERF AT

* NECR-ZE-—#F_-HA+hAHEHE
RALN G AT E R B, NECK
B FRE] T HEREBNEEH 7o

* NEC disposed of all of its shareholdings in the Company on
19 February 2021. From then on, NEC and its subsidiaries
are no longer related parties to the Group.
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31 December 2022

—E--FtZA=t+—H

35.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 5. ARG RAEeR (&)

BALANCES (continued)

(b) BHLIRZ
AEBENFAD BB T ETATER

(b) Related party transactions
The Group had the following material transactions with

related parties during the year: R5:
2022 2021
—E-=F —E-—4F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx F=ET
Sales of goods to related parties ElE] k== =de
(note (i) ( B sEG) )
Huahong Zealcore* TR 9,711 6,404
ICRD* SR E R R 4,394 8,742
Hongri* LINER 3,342 3,376
Purchases of goods from related B BEEER
parties (note (ii)) ( B &E(i) )
Hongri# e 18,422 18,247
Huahong Zealcore* TEAT 825 688
Shanghai Huali EEgED 69 519
Jitong FTim 20 249
NEC Management NEC Management - 233
Rental income from a related party R BREE: A H9FE S UA
(note (iii)) ( B sE(iii) )
Shanghai Huali# LgER 14,254 14,497
Service fees charged by related B T W RS B
parties (note (iv)) ( B=E(@iv) )
Huajin =48 400 338
Huahong Real Estate EIEHE - 28
Interest expense charged by a a7 AR T B 2
related party (notes (iv) and (vi)) ( BEEExIv) B (vi) )
Huahong Real Estate EATEHE 714 795
Expense paid on behalf of a related X BB 5 LRI
party (note (v)) ( BitsE(v) )
Shanghai Huali EEED 32,728 30,760
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31 December 2022
—ECF+ZA=1+—H

35.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (continued)

(b) Related party transactions (continued)

# The related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Note (i) The sales of goods to related parties were made
according to the prices and terms agreed between the
related parties.

Note (ii) The purchases of goods and intangible assets from
related parties were made according to the prices and
terms offered by the related parties.

Note (iii) The rental income received from a related party was
based on the prices and terms agreed between the
related parties.

Note (iv) The service fees and interest expense charged by
related parties were based on the prices and terms
agreed between the related parties.

Note (v) The expense paid on behalf of the related party is
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Note (vi) The Group entered into a 20-year lease in respect of
certain dormitory properties from Huahong Real Estate.
The amount of rent payable by the Group under the
lease is US$1,696,000 per year. At 31 December 2022,
the balances of those right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities were US$12,229,000 (31 December 2021:
US$14,5673,000) and US$14,772,000 (31 December
2021: US$17,225,000), respectively.

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED ZE4[-: & AR AT » 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FZ &

B[p.BEMEREREER(E )

(b) BBLIRZ (&)
Y BB ZIER ETARAE T
TIAZFTIRE IR ER o

&)

WL (i)

Kt (iii)

Bt (iv)

Biit(v)

K&t (vi)

18] G B 77 ] & i) B i T3 4R 45
LTI T 15 E 6 (8 18 R AR
1Eitio

E BB B 6 B R AETE
BETIIRIREEH 7 & (e (&
TR AR EL o

X8 B e 2 A TR
1R T 15 6 1815 R R
M

IR% B R FE 5 T5 i B
T 1R 15 £ B It 7 175 E Y (B 1
R

BB 77 5 1T 89 B 5 3 T AT
B, REZREFER,

REFGEENEXHER
ETHEEYET L — 1B
ZtFMHEL. TEERHE
ERTEMNMHEZEF
1,696,000% L, K = F =
—FE+-HA=+—H, #%
ERHEEERMEAE
) 4 g o B B12,229,000
ET(ZFE=Z—F+=A4
= + — H: 14,573,000%
JT) K14,772,000% T( =
E-—F+-H=+—H.
17,225,000 7T )o
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—ZE-=F+=ZRA=+—H

35.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 5. ARG RAEeR (&)

BALANCES (continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties

(c) ERRARETS ZE M RASBERER

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
US$’000 US$'000
FEn F=ET

Amounts due from related parties JRE s G 5 SR IR
Shanghai Huali EBER 10,996 6,359
Huahong Zealcore E =0 1,457 406
ICRD SRCE IR 553 145
13,006 6,910

Amounts due to related parties FE A< A 5 5ROR
Shanghai Huali HEER 3,115 3,673
Hongri 4T H 2,613 2,995
Huahong Zealcore B i 211 304
ICRD SR E IR 76 468
Huajin B 53 5
Jitong st 28 32
Huahong Real Estate BB - 24
6,096 7,501

(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the

(d) 2EEFTEEEAENHE

Group

2022 2021
—E—-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$'000
FER FET
Short term employee benefits HEEEET 5,622 6,569
Pension scheme contributions RIREFT B 103 81
Equity-settled share option expense  LAlEzs4EE B IR X 419 364

Total compensation paid to key YRFEEEEAERN
management personnel & 42 %8 6,144 7,014

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in
note 8 to the financial statements.

EEHM2E - THBHNHBEHRERM

78,
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. REHETHWEMTAE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial SHEeRIANRESRRNEDEN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as T
follows:
Financial assets — at amortised cost THEE — ZEEA A
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$'000
FErx FET
Trade and notes receivables H 5 e IE R RS 291,856 181,042
Financial assets included in prepayments, st ATERT3RIA. Efth el RIE
other receivables and other assets LEMEENSREE
(note 22) ( fizE22) 23,577 22,530
Due from related parties e U a5 SR IE 13,006 6,910
Restricted and time deposits B RE HTF R 1,042 2,248
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIREEEY 2,008,765 1,610,140
2,338,246 1,822,870
Financial assets — at fair value through other comprehensive SREE - FEAAEMDE K
income without recycling to profit or loss & ( TREFIA A )
2022 2021
—E—-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Equity investments designated at fair BE AR ATERFAEMEEKES
value through other comprehensive IR RIS &
income 178,632 257,788
Financial liabilities — at amortised cost LB E — I EE A
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Trade payables B SN RIA 236,999 194,385
Financial liabilities included in other sFAEMENFIA R EEERN
payables and accruals (note 25) EEEE ( FIFE25) 318,944 307,443
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITER 1,908,336 1,590,303
Due to related parties JE T RARS T FRIE 6,096 7,501

2,470,375 2,099,632
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e ARG ERER B EE

J7.EMIANDIFERLXTE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

B &

AEBEeBTA(MEERAEEQF
BEABHEENSRIE ) WREERD
FEHIDT.

Carrying amounts Fair values
AREE DFE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E- — % ZE-_ —E-—F

US$’ 000 US$'000  USS$'000 US$'000
TR TET TER =T

257,788 178,632 257,788

Financial assets TREE
Equity investments designated BT AEATE
at fair value through other STAEMEE
comprehensive income W BRI & 178,632
Financial liabilities cRIAE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5t B R1T{E 1,481,580

1,395,279 1,537,685 1,417,069

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted and time deposits, trade and
notes receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables, trade payables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, amounts due from/to related
parties and the current portion of interest-bearing bank
borrowings and lease liabilities approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance department reports directly to the
chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
chief financial officer. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the board of directors twice a year for interim
and annual financial reporting.

ERECHERSIREEFEY. BER
BLREMER. EHRBGTARERSE
B RIABRNRENSREE. KR
WkTE. B5RINHIA. FTARMERN
REREHEANSBEE. BKS
e BREE T B Kt BRITIE R R EE
BENRDEOOAFEEEKREER
#, TERARZFTAGREHAE
Hlo

AEEBETAMBEESENREIE
EETSRITAQATFEAENBRRK
B, WHEHERAVHRERS ©
EHmEAH, MBHAOMERITANE
BEPIBELETERNEZHAK
B. MEMMBREEZRIIE, [E
BIENERBEZTS@EFIHRMA, A
TP R FEM R R,
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37

31 December 2022
ZRT A =+—A

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing
bank borrowings have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s
own non-performance risk for the non-current portion of
interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31 December 2022
were assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income have been
estimated using the market approach. If there is a recent
deal regarding the unlisted investments, the fair values are
estimated based on the dealing price. If there is no such deal
to be referenced, the directors will determine comparable
public companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage
and strategy, and calculate an appropriate price multiple, such
as price to book value (“P/B”) multiple, for each comparable
company identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the
enterprise value of the comparable company by net assets.
The trading multiple is then discounted for considerations
such as illiquidity based on company-specific facts and
circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied to the
corresponding net assets of the unlisted equity investments to
measure the fair value. The directors believe that the estimated
fair values resulting from the valuation technique, which are
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position,
and the related changes in fair values, which are recorded in
other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that they
were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting
period.

AR AT o 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE k&

37$@IEWQ¥E&®¥E

Jﬁ n&( i} )

TREENRABENAFERKENER
BARS(MEBEFFREE ) A
RMAEBTANSRIIKR, [etAFE
THERIA N A R R R -

STRBRITERAEREBE D EH A FETD
FREAEARAUFH. E8RRBREF
%U%%@WIEMEﬁﬂf%ﬁﬁ%
REMEREMTE, AEEFHER

B, RZEZ_F+-A=+—HEH
QEIE)JL‘I'EfﬁTﬂE?Am;F;ML@JEB B
RSN AL EEBILTER,

BERBAFHERF ARLMEE RS IE
Lﬁn‘ﬁ&$&ﬁz N ERA TS ARG

o MBEMRRHEBALHRE,
@iﬁﬂﬁwx%ﬁm o fHIL AR L

REAH2E, i%ﬂﬂ‘ﬁﬁéﬁﬁ %ﬁ
R, PENEREBETAILRLETA

(A7), AEBENSITEALRA

AAEEENERER, MHERE( |—rh
R ) B8, %iE %(Tﬂ;z—Ié“tlz?’A
RIZ R BERIVEEEMS. X5E
%&&f?ﬁ*ﬁ?ﬁi\\j%’i%/ﬁ&ﬁﬁ/ﬁ?ﬁﬂzum
B EREETUARE, MIBESEAR
FELTRAIRENBRFEENFER
FE, BEERR, stAREHBIRREK
B 1 1B B 90T P AR B R A B LA SR BT
AEME2EKEH AT EREZSES
B, MRBERRNEERARE,
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e ARG ERER B EE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Financial assets measured at fair value

31 December 2022

37V.€MIENATFERAFEE

B (&)

D EER
TRERNASESRTANATFERE
AR

R FEGTEN B EE
—E-—#+-A=+-8

Fair value measurement using

AFEHERAUTEE

Quoted Quoted Quoted
prices prices prices
in active in active in active
markets markets markets
RERME ERmE RERTS
WHHRE MHE®RE HHEHRE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R E2 E3 At
USs$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 USs$’000
FEx FEx FEx FET
Equity investments designated BEBEATE
at fair value through other SFAEMEE
comprehensive income W RR IR E 2,442 - 176,190 178,632
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 37.€EMITENAFERLAFE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) ATEER(E)
Financial assets measured at fair value (continued) TR FEFTENHEE (&)
31 December 2021 —E-—F+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AF{E ERMALFEL

Quoted Quoted Quoted

prices prices prices
in active in active in active
markets markets markets

WERMS REEME  RNERMHS
WMISHRE WHERE HmEHRE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ERF Fo4 FE34% HET

US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
=T FEIT T T

Equity investments designated EBEAZAYE

at fair value through other SFAEMEE

comprehensive income Was AR IR & 14,310 2,236 241,242 257,788
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of R EER, AEBMBERBERAF
the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period. BEELAENER,
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RERN, B1REFRNTFENE M
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 (2021:Nil). WEER( T -—F. &),
During the year, there was a transfer from Level 2 to Level REAN, RZEZ_F+=ZA=+—
3 for an equity investment designated at fair value through H, BRMEE 52,236,000k T H 5 € A
other comprehensive income with a carrying amount of BRATES AR M2 ER G RERE
US$2,236,000 as at 31 December 2022 because there was no BE2MEAEIR, ARITELBNRS
recent dealing price to be referenced and the significant inputs BRA#HaE, BATEFEMAERR

used in the fair value measurements were unobservable. ABUE BT AT EE,
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 37.
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The recurring fair value measurement for the Group’s financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss was performed using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at 31 December
2022 and 2021. Below is a summary of the valuation technique
used and the key inputs to the valuation:

EMITEANAFERAFE
B (&)

DFEER(E)
AEBERAFHEFABSENEBEERN
BAMATEAEDNER T —_F K=
T —Ft-_A=+t—BWNEXTAE
R A\BUE ( £348 ) L. TXRMAHE
FrRfAERMEERH ABIEME .

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair

technique unobservable input Range value to the input

EATTEE AFESERAYE

fHERHN BAHE EE ZBBE

Equity investments designated  15TE AfR/AFE:H A Valuation multiples  Average P/B multiple 2022: 1.3x-2.7x 5% (2021: 5%)
at fair value through other Hitp2EkRH of peers 2021: 0.8x-3.4x increase/decrease
comprehensive income RAKE would result in
increase/decrease

in fair value by 5%

(2021: 5%)

fhERE EESRN > ZTIZF 4327 5%(ZFZ—F. 5%)

TECF 08:34x HEN/ RO BEN

NFEEM,/ HD5%

(ZB=—F. 5%)

Average P/S multiple 2022: 3.8x-8.5x 5% (2021: 5%)

of peers increase/decrease

would result in

increase/decrease

in fair value by 5%

(2021: 5%)

FZFEmEE ZTICF. 38x85x  5%(ZTZ—F. 5%)

Discount for illiquidity

B RBIEATRE

Mg,/ WAOEEH

NTEEN,/RD5%

(ZZ=—F. 5%)

2022: 20%-30% 5% (2021: 5%)

2021: 20%-30% increase/decrease

would result in

decreasefincrease

in fair value by 5%

(2021: 5%)

TETF 20%30% 5% ZE=—F. 5%)
TECF 20%30%  HENROBER
DFERD /EM5%

(ZZ=—F. 5%)
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
The movements in financial assets categorised into Level 3
during the year are as follows:

7.eMITENAFERLATE
Bk (&)
ATVEBR(E)

ERNHEABMMNEMEEZ DN
T

Equity investments
designated at fair
value through other
comprehensive

income

EERRAFETA

His2EKEN

RIERE

US$’000

FER

At 1 January 2021 F—H—H 227,757

Total gains recognised in other REM 2 E NS ERE

comprehensive income Wz e zE 8,155

Exchange realignment P& 3 % 5,330
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R-E-_—F+-_A=+—HK

—E-_F—H—H 241,242

Transfer from level 2 SEFEIEEYN 2,236
Total losses recognised in other REM 2 EBEERNEBEE

comprehensive income (48,629)

Exchange realignment HE 34, 8 B (18,659)

As at 31 December 2022 RZE-_—_F+=-A=+—H 176,190
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. B EMREEBFEREXK

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
loans, cash and short-term deposits. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities, such as trade and other receivables and trade and
other payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
recognised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a floating interest rate. The Group’s policy is to
manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate
debts.

As at 31 December 2022, if the interest rates had been 100
basis points higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
profit before tax for the year would have been US$14,546,223
lower/higher (31 December 2021: US$7,793,346), mainly as
a result of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate bank
borrowings.

AEENTESHTABERITER.
ﬁi&ﬁ@fﬂomgfﬂlﬂmix
ﬁﬁﬂﬁ$$@mzkﬁaﬁio$%
EEZEEZEREEELNAEMER
BENBE, B S REMBKKIAINA
5B 5 Kk E A &~ A

$%@$@IEWEEWIEH@EM
KRk, SNERR. FEERRIEAEE
%@@o%%@ﬁﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬁxﬁﬁ
FRBHBOR, BRBEBERBMN T3

R = = b

AEEmBET SN XESNER, T2
EAREEF BN R BRITERBH,
REBOBRAEREEMFBMEE
A BEIEN B,

WZZEZ=ZF+=ZRA=+—H, 1hﬂ
#onskoR 10052, MATEEMES
W, imﬁﬁnjmﬂﬁmﬁwii&.‘bu
14,546,223 1 ( —ET-—F+=-HA=
+—H. 7,793,346E T ), HEBHRK
R ENF R IRTTE TR0 F) B S AN SR

/J\o
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT B.UBEBEEREFERKXK

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures arise from sales or purchases by its significant
subsidiary operating in Mainland China in US$ other than the
subsidiary’s functional currency, which is RMB. During the year,
approximately 27% (2021: 26%) of the Group’s sales were
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the subsidiary making the sale, whilst 71% (2021: 70%) of
costs of sales were denominated in the subsidiary’s functional
currency.

In addition, the Group has currency exposures from interest-
bearing bank borrowings, held by its subsidiary operating in
Mainland China. As at 31 December 2022, interest-bearing
bank borrowings with a carrying amount of US$1,775,774,000
(31 December 2021: US$1,560,054,000) are dominated in
United States dollars, other than the subsidiary’s functional
currency, which is RMB.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s profit before tax (arising from USD and RMB
denominated financial instruments):

(Ilg)

ShNEE R

AEEEBRISHINERKR. ZERKE
FEEARRAMEENEE T AF
ELETTNEE, MIWIENEINEER
ARE#TT, RER, AEEMNIHERE
RA27%( Z B = —4F. 26% ) JyAE
ITHENTATNNEEEB AN ER
HE, BRI, HEXARF7T1%( =
T —4F. 70% ) A FRAININEEE
*ETE,

o, NEBEEERK SR ERITERL
SNES R PR, R fE R H TR B A AT
EMFRAREE, RZE__F+=
AR=+—H, [REEA1,775,774,000
EnN(ZE-_—F+=-A=+—8.
1,560,054,000% 7T ) M FF B IR 1T &
LAZETTEHE, MIEUZFRRIAINAE
BAREEE,

" 3

\

TRETEMEREMEERFTENIS
AT, RBEHRAEERANEN (B
ENRAREFENERTAES )Y
ARBEZRNEIEREEBGURE -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in US$ rate before tax
ExEREM - BADSERIEM
(D) (R )
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE
If US$ weakens against RMB iMETHAREEE 5% 60,535
If US$ strengthens against RMB WETHAREHE (5%) (60,535)
Year ended 31 December 2021 B Z-—F+-_A=+—"HILFE
If US$ weakens against RMB WETHARKIEE 5% 48,160
If US$ strengthens against RMB WETHAREHE (5%) (48,160)
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty cannot meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables).

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties and related parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure
to bad debts is not significant.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and
notes receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets, amounts due from related
parties and restricted and time deposits included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets. The Group has no other financial assets which
carry significant exposure to credit risk.

Further qualitative and quantitative information regarding
trade receivables, for which the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs under HKFRS 9, is disclosed in
note 21 to the financial statements.

Apart from trade and notes receivables, all the carrying
amounts of financial assets at amortised cost, applying the
general approach under HKFRS 9, are classified as Stage 1 in
terms of ECLs as at 31 December 2022 in addition to the fully
impaired other receivables classified as Stage 3, as stated in
note 22 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to monitor regularly the current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

e MR ERARMEE

B.UBEBEEREFERKXK

(%)

FERR
FEERBREHFHEEIBETERT AN
BEFAHMETEEMSI RS REBRZAE
2o ZF%@EE?KEE?%E/E@J( TEB
REZRWFE ) NEERR

AEEREREERVTREERINES
MAMAR P, NEBMBEREE, AT
EREEAFARINEFHERBE
AZERF. LI, BRFEL BRI
HEHRETTER, WASENERRAR
W REK.

REMBIMARARE FREFEY.

B 5 AR IR R B 1B M AT AR R
B, HEWHREREMEEN SR E
FE. FEU AR T RIA A R BRI E B
FRHNEAESASERESREEN
ﬁ&nuﬂﬁﬂ’ﬁ{gfﬁﬂﬁMo ﬁi .Iﬁ/ﬁé'ﬁﬂ
FEEXEERBNHEREE,

BB USRI E— P EEREE
BRHAKEREEEMBREERE
IR ERAMETEAERREER
1B ) R RRM E2N N E.

BB 75 R MY 22 N FT L ) ﬁﬁ%:%
B RENEMEKHEA(RE
SRENGRIA L EWREIN ), ARE
HERAGENEREENRTE(RE
BEMBMELENEISRRA —RITE
R_T - —FT A=t —HNEHRE
EBEENBEAFE KR,

REBESRME

AEHE E’]B@ﬁ#jmﬁﬁ ﬁk? EEBT&%EHH/IIL
PELFE, URREFTENESH
BRREF2CREBESEHNREA
BEE, MEHERHRRARSES

== gh
™ 2Z o
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

.U BEBEEERERERE

(IIE)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

RBESEE ()
RBEHR, AEESRABERESLD
RERNFNE BN T

31 December 2022 —E-_—_F#+=-H=+—H

On Less than 3to12 1to Over
demand 3 months months 5 years 5 years Total
REX PR=ER =ZE+=@F -ZIF HENUEL Bt
US$°000 US$’000 US$’000 Us$’000 US$°000 US$°000
TER TER TER TR TR TER
Interest-bearing bank FERITER
borrowings - 43,521 486,724 1,290,956 521,043 2,342,244
Lease liabilities MEBE - 1,626 3,832 7,674 10,119 23,251
Trade payables B SRR 34,889 202,110 - - - 236,999
Financial liabilities included & AE b B A
in other payables and RE-ERD
accruals TRAEE 223,271 95,673 - - - 318,944
Amounts due to related JE < BB 5 3R
parties 6,096 - - - - 6,096
264,256 342,930 490,556 1,298,630 531,162 2,927,534
31 December 2021 —E--F+ZA=+—H
On  Lessthan 3to0 1to Over
demand 3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Total
BREX PR=fR =ZE=+=HAA —Eh% AFNUL o
US$000 US$000 US$'000 US$000 US$000 US$'000
TER FET TET = TErT FET
Interest-bearing bank FERITER
borrowings - 43,255 176,631 868,841 631,600 1,720,327
Lease liabilities MEBE - 731 1,706 7,369 12,895 22,701
Trade payables B SRR 21,833 172,552 - - - 194,385
Financial liabilities included STAE AR 30
in other payables and RE-ERD
accruals SRR 215,220 92,223 - - - 307,443
Amounts due to related JEf<T AR 5 5UE
parties 7,501 - - - - 7,501
244,554 308,761 178,337 876,210 644,495 2,252,357
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had certain interest-
bearing bank borrowings denominated in United States dollars.
The interest rates of these instruments are based on the LIBOR
with a tenor of three to twelve months, which will cease to be
published after 30 June 2023. Replacement of the benchmark
rates of these instruments from LIBOR to an RFR has yet to
commence but it is expected that there will be renegotiations
of terms in the future. During the transition, the Group is
exposed to the following risks:

e Parties to the contract may not reach agreement in a
timely manner as any changes to the contractual terms
require the agreement of all parties to the contract

e  Additional time may be needed for the parties to the
contract to reach agreement as they may renegotiate
terms which are not part of the interest rate benchmark
reform (e.g., changing the credit spread of the bank
borrowings due to changes in credit risk of the Group)

e The existing fallback clause included in the instruments
may not be adequate to facilitate a transition to a suitable
RFR

The Group will continue to monitor the development of the
reform and take proactive measures for a smooth transition.

The information about financial instruments based on an
interbank offered rate that has yet to transition to an alternative

benchmark rate is as follows:

As at 31 December 2022

.U BEBEEERERERE

(%)

MREEHRE
R-TE-—F+-A=+—H, ~A&EE
BEAETUAETHEN BRITER.
ZECRTEMNFERERNGBIRITRE
wE, HIRA=Z+=-M@A, BE=Z
ZEFRNAZHHEZEBEILEAH, Wk
FisiE2E TANEER R BEIRTT
REFREEHABERRTIE, BEFTA
R EF BRI RNBEER, A%
EmEEGA TR

R A KR EA 2B A
WEFRE, HANE SR
T 5 5 15

s HRNANBTRFSENHETE
PRI = BB M 5RSK (Bl
SEEERBRNESMLZRITE
BEOEENE), MEHSTHF
T RSN A W

. TARSENRARBERLTT
SELALR 9B B — (B 2 ML IR
kS

AEBRBEERNEER, YRIUR
BIEEERFIRBK,

AR ERIRITREF S ERRBIERE
REENZNEHTENERNT.

R-B==F+=A=+-8

Non-derivative
financial liabilities
— carrying value

krTESRERE
— REE
US$’000
FERT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHERTTER
— United States dollar LIBOR — LIBORZ%ETT 1,542,514
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT B.UBEBEEREFERKXK

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the year.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total equity plus net debt. The Group includes,
within net debt, trade payables, other payables and accruals,
interest-bearing bank borrowings, lease liabilities and amounts
due to related parties, less cash and cash equivalents. The
gearing ratios as at the end of each of the reporting periods
were as follows:

(Ilg)

BEXERE
AEBEEAEENEZRRR, HEX
SENRFECERNRERRIFNER
e, RXRHEEBELERBREER
Ko

AEBERBEEIRAN S EE R FHE
HEARRE, RERIGAREARE,
AEBERERHERN TRROKE. [
BRBRIEEALETH IR AEBTF
EAINEB M E R BERRR. NF
A, REEEEEARNBER. BERSIE
FRtEEmEE,

AEBENEERBLXRERER, BE
BELRRFEERAESEEINER
Bt E. AEBEREZEMNFIA. Hit
ENFRBEMREGEER. SHERTTER
HER BN KRN FENGRRE
RBSEEMFAFAE REREH
RWEERBLERDT:

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

t=A=t—-B +ZA=+—H

US$’000 US$'000

FErx F=x

Trade payables E S e ERIE 234,293 194,385
Other payables and accruals (note 25)  HthfEZUE R EEE A ( 325 ) 401,383 377,982
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRRITER 1,908,336 1,590,303
Lease liabilities HERE 19,348 17,813
Amounts due to related parties JE 1~ B 5 5k I8 6,096 7,501
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BeRRSEEY (2,008,765) (1,610,140)
Net debt FEE 560,691 577,844
Total equity G kL 4,135,468 3,684,547
Total equity and net debt BERBENFEE 4,696,159 4,262,391
Gearing ratio EEBERLE 11.94% 13.56%
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to

right-of-use assets or lease liabilities

(2021: Nil) in respect of lease arrangements for buildings.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities are (b)

as follows:

343
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31 December 2022

R CH+fZRA=1—

39. &8

(a) EBFHAERS

of US$6,394,000

:—ZE'E: éﬂi\ )o

B RS ¥R R B

Eﬁ.ﬁblbiﬁﬁﬁﬂ

RER, AEBHEEEDHELH
BRANFREEESHESENIE
e RNE 56,394,000k (==

RMEZBMELNHEBESNT.

Interest-

bearing
bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
FTERITER HEAE
US$’000 US$’000
FER FER
As at 1 January 2021 R-ZZE-_—F—HF—H 566,175 21,640
Changes from financing cash flows  F&ERE&REEH) 1,022,945 (4,878)
Interest expense FEem% - 879
Foreign exchange movements HNE B 1,183 172

As at 31 December 2021 and R-E-_—F+-A=+—H

1 January 2022 rZE-—F—H—H 1,590,303 17,813
Changes from financing cash flows MEEESREEH 268,564 (4,144)
Interest expense FERX 39,451 880
New leases g - 6,394
Foreign exchange movements N =) 10,018 (1,595)
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZTB-__F+-_HA=+—H 1,908,336 19,348

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement

(c) HERS R

E‘I’)\ﬁi/}|b§i§m$ﬁﬁfﬁi//w uuj el

of cash flows is as follows: B,
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Within operating activities KETEEN 2,625 1,572
Within financing activities REESA 4,144 4,878
6,769 6,450
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40. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH 0. EERFERERZHFZE

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material non-
controlling interests are set out below:

FAH

AEBERERFERERZ FAAZ
BT

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Percentage of interest held by FEFERRAE RIS A RS R
non-controlling interests:
Hua Hong Wuxi B EHET) 49% 49%

The board of directors is the supreme governing body for Hua
Hong Wuxi, in which non-controlling shareholders hold three
seats out of seven. Therefore, the proportion of voting rights is
different from that of the ownership interest above.

EEeRFUEHNESEERE, A
TREREK, HEPF=REFFRIFER
BRo Eitt, WERELGITRR LA
BrEkmtdl,

2022 2021
—E—-= —E-—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FErx FET
Loss for the year allocated to SEEIFERER 2 FAERE.
non-controlling interests:
Hua Hong Wuxi AT 145 (43,341) (30,505)
Accumulated balances of non-controlling  F\$R4 B HAZE1RAR 2R 25T 464
interests at the reporting date:
Hua Hong Wuxi Egad) 1,104,998 814,188
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40. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiary. The amounts disclosed
are before any inter-company eliminations:

31 December 2022 ,E\Zl.ﬁ%ﬁ% B{;J-%‘I

W.FERFEREZZHFEE

FoR (&)

TREE L FRBFEER, P
BrzeBREMRRREHENZSME.

Hua Hong Wuxi  Hua Hong Wuxi

HIT 45 T MR85

2022 2021

—E—-= —E-—F

US$’000 US$'000

FEx F=x

Revenue SHE WA 1,007,153 481,167

Other income HapUg A 30,296 32,757

Total expenses Fs 1A %8 (1,125,901) (576,179)

Loss and total comprehensive loss FREB L EHEEIBRRE

for the year (88,452) (62,255)

Current assets MEVEE 1,648,490 1,019,923

Non-current assets EMEEE 2,862,686 2,539,652

Current liabilities mEEE (877,123) (610,803)

Non-current liabilities EREBE (1,378,965) (1,287,163)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) RESEENATE TR )RS

operating activities TMEFEE 240,417 (8,320)

Net cash flows used in investing activities WEEEBFRARESREFE (866,530) (824,666)
Net cash flows generated from financing BB RS REREFE

activities 1,085,213 922,342

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  MNE[E RS 2, F5 (20,577) 5,299

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re RRSEEBYIEINEE 438,523 94,655

41. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD M. BREHRESE

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the
Group after 31 December 2022.

AEEBR_ZE-_—_F+=-A=+—H%

MEEEEAMREE,
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

42, AR B IR R

BRARARBERAROPBERAERE
FEFInT -

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
+t=ZA=+—-H +ZA=+—H
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RERTAH 2,155,052 1,976,048
Total non-current assets IEREE EMRTE 2,155,052 1,976,048
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Trade and notes receivables B SR GIA R KRR 5,785 -
Prepayments, other receivables and TERFRIE. Efth FEUCRIE
other assets HtEE 1,649 6,027
Due from a subsidiary FEUF AT 508 998 908
Restricted and time deposits BR ME AT 27 27
Cash and cash equivalents WENIRESEEBY 56,171 28,112
Total current assets MEVE ELARE 64,630 35,164
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals EAu N RIE R EHE R 689 903
Due to subsidiaries e FREIFUE 98,309 95,841
Total current liabilities MBI BG4 98,998 96,744
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES T EFE (34,368) (61,580)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHAERRBEE
LIABILITIES 2,120,684 1,914,468
Net assets FBEE 2,120,684 1,914,468
EQUITY Es
Share capital A&7 1,994,462 1,986,152
Reserves (note) ks (95T ) 126,222 (71,684)
Total equity AR 2,120,684 1,914,468
Suxin Zhang JunYe
RED g
Director Director
EZE BEFE
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 42. KRB B AR R (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)
Note: B 5 -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARK BT
(Accumulated
Share losses)/
Other option Retained
reserve reserve profits Total
( RFEE )
Hit#E  BRERKE BiEaA wEt
USs$’000 USs$’000 USs$’000 US$’000
FERn FER FEr ST
As at 1 January 2021 R-ZE-_—F—F—H (68,260) 17,100 (17,467) (68,627)
Loss for the year FANEE - - (1,534) (1,534)
Equity-settled share option AR EE IERER
arrangements - 296 - 296
Issue of shares BITR - (1,819) - (1,819)
At 31 December 2021 and RZZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H
1 January 2022 r=—F-_—F—H—H (68,260) 15,577 (19,001) (71,684)
Profit for the year FEREF - - 199,049 199,049
Equity-settled share option AR EE BB HE
arrangements - 1,226 - 1,226
Issue of shares BITRN - (2,369) - (2,369)
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—H (68,260) 14,434 180,048 126,222
43. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 43. BB HR AR A
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for HRRERCON_E-_=F=-A=1+HE

issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2023. BEgERERETIE,
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFMBEERE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set out

I AR G B 0 Aol o fE B R R RO
RKEUAREBE. AENIFEREDRAH
2, ARENDBEZAC TIEEEXRM

below. FEIRE,
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-BLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“EoCE ZTC-F ZZZFF RN ZEN\E
US$’000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000  US$000
FER TET TET TET TET
RESULTS E
REVENUE HEBRA 2475488 1,630,754 961,279 932,567 930,268
Cost of sales HERA (1,631,832) (1,179,156)  (726,486)  (650,107)  (619,114)
Gross profit 7 843,656 451,598 234,793 282,460 311,154
Other income and gains HAUWA Rz 70,986 60,758 57,313 69,091 43,613
Fair value gain on an investment property R ZA#EN A TEMS 78 183 198 163 247
Selling and distribution expenses BERSER (12,464) (10,673) (8,169) (8,828) (7,771)
Administrative expenses EHER (266,666)  (198,920)  (261,139)  (169,796)  (122,323)
Other expenses Hit &M (111,360) (165) (10) (406) (11,106)
Finance costs B (40,331) (13,226) (2,968) (1,242) (2,203)
Share of profits of associates DIEBE N REF 12,171 6,765 26,059 10,131 9,444
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BANER 496,070 296,320 46,077 181,573 221,055
Income tax expense FIEHAS (89,499) (65,349) (12,762) (26,588) (35,447)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ERHRA 406,571 230,971 33,315 154,985 185,608
Attributable to: AT RIEER.
Owners of the parent BAREBA 449,912 261,476 99,443 162,237 183,158
Non-controlling interests IR (43,341) (30,505) (66,128) (7,252) 2,450
406,571 230,971 33,315 154,985 185,608
As at 31 December
R+=RA=1+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“E-CF ZF--§ Z2ZERF ZZ-NF ZT-N\F
US$’000 US$000 US§000  US$000  US$000
SV TEn TEr TET FET
Total assets EERE 7052,670 6,202,099 4,568,586 3,613,303 3,078,274
Total liabilities aEes (2,917202)  (2,517,862)  (1,214,465)  (530,711)  (373,942)
Non-controlling interests IR (1,104,998)  (814,188)  (825,679)  (837,351)  (549,076)
3,030,470 2,870,359 2528442 2245241 2155256
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